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ANNEXE 4
CAPACITES FINANCIERE ET TECHNIQUE DE SGZ FRANCE

La société SGZ FRANCE, nouvellement créée, ne peut se prévaloir d'une activité passée
dans le domaine de I'exploration miniére. Par contre, son actionnaire unique SCOTGOLD
RESOURCES Limited, a réalisé et réalise d'importants travaux d’exploration miniére en
Ecosse. Ces travaux, lui ont permis de lever les fonds sur la bourse de Londres (AIM) et sur
la bourse de Sydney (ASX) nécessaire a la poursuite des travaux d’évaluation. Ces fonds
permettront aussi a SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited de financer les travaux d’exploration
de SGZ FRANCE. SGZ FRANCE compte sur son staff d’experts internationaux, de
nationalité anglaise, pour promouvoir et développer son activité en France. Le personnel
qualifié (chefs de projets, géologues, techniciens...) sera recruté en France au fur et a
mesure du développement de l'activité, directement liée a l'obtention des titres miniers
autorisant la réalisation des travaux. SGZ FRANCE privilégiera autant que possible les
recrutements dans les régions concernées par les travaux de recherche.

Cette annexe comporte :

e Annexe 4a : Un document original en anglais qui présente la maison mére
SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited.

e Annexe 4b : Une traduction simplifiée en frangais de l'annexe 4a, indiquant les
renseignements attendus sur la composition du conseil d’administration et la qualité
et nationalité de chacun de ses membres, sachant que le seul intervenant sur la filiale
francaise SGZ FRANCE S.A.S est Monsieur Richard Gray.

e Annexe 4c : Rapport annuel 2014 de SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited

e Annexe 4d: Copie du rapport daudit associé au rapport dactivité 2014.
Ces documents fournissent les capacités financiéres de la société, et son mode de
fonctionnement qui démontre qu’elle est capable de lever des fonds en bourse pour
les programmes d’exploration.

e Annexe 4e : Curriculum Vitae

- CV de Mr. Christopher Sangster, Président de SGZ FRANCE.
- CV de Mr. Patrick Maupard, Directeur Général délégué de SGZ FRANCE.

-  CV de Mr. Richard Gray, est le représentant de [I'actionnaire unigue,
SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited.

- CVde Mr. David J. Catterall, Expert en géologie miniere pour SGZ FRANCE.
- CVde Mr. Jeff Smith, Expert en géologie miniére pour SGZ FRANCE.







ANNEXE 4a : Présentation générale originale de SCOTGOLD
RESOURCES Limited

SCOTGOLD RESOURCES
LIMITED

ABN 42 127 042 773

24 Colin Street, West Perth

PO Box 1970, West Perth WA 6872
P: +61 8 9222 5850

F: +61 89222 5810

Web: www.scotgoldresources.com

BACKGROUND OF SCOTGOLD RESOURCES LIMITED.

History and business

SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited was established in 2007 and has been listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange (“ASX”) since January 2008 behind the code “SGZ”. The company’s shares were admitted to
trading on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange in February 2010. Over the last 5 years
SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited has raised over $ 12 million Australian dollars on the different market
place to support their expenses related to the mineral exploration activities.

The Company focused its exploration activities in Scotland and has chosen to search for economic
base and precious metals deposits. The Company’s principal objective, since 2008, has been the
advancement of the Cononish Gold and Silver Project in Scotland’s Grampian Highlands to a
production decision and exploration of the highly prospective tenements comprising the Grampian
Gold Project with the view of identifying further project opportunities.

Its principal activities are the exploration and exploitation of economic precious metal deposits.
SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited holds the wholly subsidiary Scotgold Resources limited (Scotland)
and Fynegold Exploration Limited (Scotland).

SCOTGOLD has focused initially on the development of the Cononish Gold and Silver Project and has
identified resources (Measured, Indicated and Inferred categories, JORC 2004) of 169,200 oz of gold
and 631,300 oz of silver at 3.5g/t gold cut-off. Subsequent to an initial rejection of its application for
planning permission to develop the project in 2010, the Company submitted a revised application
and on 13th October 2011, the Director of Planning issued a report to the Park’s Board
recommending approval of the application and at a special meeting on 25th October 2011, the Board
of the Park’s Authority unanimously approved the application subject to the conclusion of various
legal agreements and agreement on a number of outstanding conditions. These were successfully
concluded and on 15th February 2012, the Parks Board issued the Decision Letter granting planning
permission for the development.



The Crown Estate Commissioners unconditional grant of the Crown Lease was confirmed in May
2012. The Grampian Gold Project comprises Crown Option agreements of some 4,300km? in the
south west Grampians of Scotland and covers some of the most prospective areas of the Dalradian
geological sequence in the UK. This sequence extends westward from the UK to the eastern seaboard
of Canada and the Appalachian belt in the US, and eastward into Sweden and Norway, has been
identified by the British Geological Survey as being highly prospective for both significant gold and
base metal deposits. On a more local scale, the Dalradian sequence extends to the south west from
Scotland into Northern Ireland where it hosts other gold resources at Cavancaw (0.5 Moz of gold)
and Curraghinalt (3.5M oz of gold).

The Company is conducting a regional stream sediment sampling program over the wider Grampian
gold project area whilst continuing to evaluate a number of previously identified high grade outcrops
in the vicinity of the Cononish project.

Nowadays, a large part of deposits found have been discovered in 1980 by the different National
survey, but they need a complete reinterpretation with news metallogenic models and technical
advances in exploration. As these deposits often have direct magnetic and/or gravity signatures, the
selection of new exploration targets and prospects was based on the interpretation of vast amounts
of geophysical and other data collected by ground and airborne geophysical surveys that have
become increasingly available over the last few decades.

From its tenement package, the Company’s team of experienced management identifies potential
exploration targets via interpretation of geophysical, geochemical and geological data and initiates
additional exploration, including drilling to determine the prospectivity and possible resource
potential of target areas. Based on the results of these studies, SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited’s
technical management determines whether to continue exploration evaluation of properties using its
own resources or maybe not, invite others exploration companies to become joint venture partners.

The market capitalization of SCOTGOLD is approximately AUD $ 14 million in June 2014.
Further details of this company are set out below.

SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited has previously raised funding for its activities via:-
(i) Issuance of new shares or injection by investors to fund its exploration activities;
(ii) Rights issue to its existing shareholders;

(iii) Securing a convertible note;

Mr Christopher Sangster is an experienced mining engineer; he directs the Company since the
takeover of the company Fynegold Exploration, 7 years ago.

Further details of the Board and key management of the Company are set out in the table below.

SCOTGOLD Resources Ltd modified its strategy and has now begun seeking more greenfield project in
other part of European shield, in the Cadomian terranes. The Company has commenced looking
outside Scotland and has recently formed a new wholly owned subsidiary: SGZ FRANCE SAS. It's a
France domiciled company, opened an office in Paris and employed highly experienced geologists to
assess potential opportunities within France.



The choice to create this French subsidiary has been motivated by the success of Variscan Mines -
France with their first granted mineral exploration license during the last year also that the mining
industry was stop since two decades. Once it has acquired projects, the Company plans to initiate
exploration activities using the most up-to-date exploration methods in an attempt to define
economic mineral deposits and possibly move towards pre-feasibility studies and mine development.
Any new mine development will be conducted with the very highest international standards of
environmental protection, employee safety and local community involvement.



Board composition

The composition of the Board is as follows:-

Name

Position

Background

Nationality

Alexander
Littlejohn

Non-
Executive
Chairman

Mr  Alexander Littlejohn is the Managing Director of
the DTS Group, one of the Largest and well,
established dental laboratories in the United
Kingdom and is based in Glasgow. He is the director of
Core3D. has global network
for digital dental solutions and the director of Halo dental surgeries.

British

Nathaniel
le Roux

Non-
Executive
Director

Mr Nathaniel le Roux spent most of his career in financial markets
and was Chief Executive of IG Group plc between 2002 and 2006.

He is an independent director of the London Metal Exchange and a
trustee of various charities.

He was born in Scotland and went to school in Edinburgh.

He holds an MA in Law from Cambridge University and an MSc is
Anthropology from University College London.

British

Chris
Sangster

Non-
Executive
Director

BSc (Hons), ARSM, GDE

Mr. Sangster is a mining engineer with over 28 years’ experience in
the mining industry. He has a BSc Hons in Mining Engineering from
the Royal School of Mines, Imperial College in London and a GDE in
Mineral Economics from the University of Witwatersrand.

He currently lives close to the Company’s exploration licences at
Comrie in Scotland with his wife and family.

Mr. Sangster's career covers extensive production and technical
experience at senior levels in both junior and multi-national compa-
nies in gold, diamonds and base metals in Africa, UK and Canada
and covers a wide range of mining applications.

Between 1996 and 1999 Mr. Sangster was General Manager for
Caledonia Mining Corporation for the Cononish Gold Project and a
Director of Fynegold Exploration, where he was responsible for all
aspects of the project including feasibility study preparation, project
due diligence, finance negotiations, exploration initiatives and plan-
ning permission applications.

After 1999, Mr. Sangster moved to the Zambian Copper belt with
Anglo American Plc. / KCM Plc. where he attained the position of
Vice President Mining Services and in 2005 joined Australian Mining
Consultants as a Principal Mining Engineer. More recently, Mr. Sang-
ster was employed as General Manager for AIM — listed company
European Diamonds Plc.

British

Phillip
Jackson

Non-
Executive
Director

B. Juris. LLB MBA FAICD

Mr. Jackson is a barrister and solicitor with over 25 years legal and
international corporate experience, especially in the areas of commer-
cial and contract law; mining law and corporate structuring. He has
worked extensively in the Middle East; Asia and the United States of
America. In Australia, he was formerly a managing legal counsel for
Western Mining Corporation, and in private practice specialized in
small to medium resource companies.

Mr. Jackson is currently a director and senior executive of the Aus-
tralian and Asian subsidiaries of a large multinational oil services
company. He has been a director of a number of Australian public
companies, particularly junior mining companies. His experience
includes management, finance, accounting and human resources.

He has been chairman of Aurora Minerals Limited since it listed in
2004 and Desert Energy Limited, since it listed in August 2007.

British




Name

Position

Background

Nationality

Richard
Harris

Non-
Executive
Director

Mr. Richard Harris is a mining engineer with over 30 years’
experience in the mining and finance industries as a mining analyst
and public company director. He has considerable experience
evaluating mining projects, advising, restructuring and raising capital
for mining companies.

Previously he was a director of Australian silver miner Alcyone
Resources Ltd in 2009 after organizing a syndicate group which
recapitalized and relisted the company. In 2005-2008 as Managing
Director (later Executive Chairman) he founded and listed as an IPO,
Eleckra Mines Limited on the ASX.

He holds a BSc (Hons) degree in Mining Engineering from University
of Wales.

British

Richard
Gray

CEO
&
Managing
Geologist

Mr. Richard Gray most recently served as Head of Mining &
Expansion at Avocet Mining PLC. He has extensive international
experience, in both underground and open pit mine operations, and
brings considerable operational knowledge and management
experience and skills to the Company, particularly in the development
and implementation of gold mining projects. He has previously held
various roles at both majors and juniors within the gold mining sector
and his successful career has included 15 years working in South
Africa for Gencor Ltd and 10 years in West Africa for Golden Star
Resources Ltd. Whilst at Golden Star he served as General Manager
of Bogoso Gold Limited, General Manager of Golden Star Wassa
Limited and Senior Vice President Operations of Golden Star
Resources Ltd. He holds a BSc (Hons) Mining Engineering from the
Royal School of Mines, Imperial College and an MBA from the
Graduate School of Business, Cape Town University.

British

Peter
Newcomb

Company
Secretary

Mr. Newcomb is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia with over thirty five years professional and
commercial experience.

He has worked in a number of industries and locations including
London, Scotland, Singapore and Perth. The majority of his
experience over the last fifteen years has been in the resources
industry in Western Australia.

Mr. Newcomb is also Finance Director and Company Secretary of
Taruga Gold Limited and Company Secretary of Athena Resources
Limited.

British




Executive Officers

SCOTGOLD Resources Limited has a total of 5 geologists who are employees and permanent
consultants directly employed by the Company, with a combined experience of over 157 years of in
the mining industry.

Name Position Background Nationality
Mr Mr Richard Gray most recently served as Head of Mining & Expansion at
Richard CEO Avocet Mining PLC. He_ ha; an inte_rnational exp_erience, !n both
Gray . underground and open pit mine operations, and brings considerable British
Managing | gperational knowledge and management experience and skills to the
Geologist | company, particularly in the development and implementation of gold
mining projects.
Mr c Mr. Newcomb is a Fellow of the Institute of Charte_red Accountants in
Peter Somptany England and Wales and a member of the Institute of Chartered British
Newcomb ecretary Accountants in Australia with over thirty five years professional and
commercial experience.
Mr Mr Sangster is a geologist with thirty years’ experience in the
Christopher ) mining industry. He has worked in South Africa including Anglo
Sangster President American Plc.
SGZ FRANCE | He has a large experience in a large range of commodities: diamonds, oil, British
base and precious metals. He joined Scotgold Resources in 2007, when
Fynegold Exploration was purchased while he was CEO.
He is now working on a gold project development, near Comrie, in a
natural park in Scotland.
Mr Deputy Mr Maupard is a highly qualified in the asset's management or
Patrick CEO companies. He has huge experience in the accountancy, with nearly 25 =
. . rench
Maupard - years of practice. He is the manager
SGZ FRANCE | of Cabinet Maupard Fiduciaire, founder
of HBL France, an international reputation audit firm.
EXPERT
Name Position Background Nationality
Mr Mr Smith is a mining geologist expert with nearly 44 years of experience in
Jeff the mining industry. He mainly worked in Spain and South Africa, on behalf
Smith Consultant | of famous companies among which are: Anglo American. In the 90s, he British
expert was involved in the evaluation of the Tharsis deposit, located
in Iberian Pyrite Belt in the province of Huelva. The
mine was operated (3.5 Mt).
Mr Mr Catterall is a mining geologist expert with nearly 30 years of experience
David J. in the mining industry. He mainly worked on the African continent (South
Catterall Consultant | Africa, Angola, Zambia, and Central Africa) on behalf of major corporations British
expert like Anglo American.

In 2000, he decided to offer his services as a consultant; he is
working since 2007 for Scotgold.




Shareholding structure

The capital structure is susceptible to change. It's not abnormal to see others tables; they are
published during all the year. (Market Place or Company Website)

The top 20 shareholders of SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited are as set out below:-

22/10/2014
SCOTGOLD Resources LIMITED
Top 20 Shareholders
Rank Name Shares % of Total
1. MR NAT LE ROUX 87,333,333 15.61
f 2. HSDL NOMINEES LIMITED 27,060,496 4.84
f 3. BARCLAYSHARE NOMINEES LIMITED 23,187,730 4.14
f 4. HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED — A/C 2 21,055,480 3.76
f 5. GOLDEN MATRIX HOLDINGS PTY LTD 19,874,933 3.55
f 6. WESTLAND GROUP HOLDINGS PTY LTD 17,500,000 3.13
I 7. TD DIRECT INVESTING NOMINEES (EUROPE) LIMITED <SMKTNOMS> 17,047,694 3.05
f 8. HARGREAVES LANSDOWN (NOMINEES) LIMITED <15942> 15,996,658 2.86
[ 9. SHARE NOMINEES LTD 12,822,200 2.29
’ 10. MR JOHN BENTLEY 12,545,603 2.24
! 11. MR GRAHAM DONALDSON + MRS CHRISTINE DONALDSON 11,851,786 2.12
r 12. HARGREAVES LANSDOWN (NOMINEES) LIMITED <VRA> 11,765,681 2.10
r 13. MR PETER JOHN NEWCOMB 10,417,855 1.86
f 14. MR RICHARD MILNE HARRIS 10,000,000 1.79
f 15. SECURE NOMINEES LIMITED <SVCLT> 9,995000 1.79
r 16. INVESTOR NOMINEES LIMITED <WRAP> 8,495,724 1.52
f 17. HSDL NOMINEES LIMITED <MAXI> 6,939,688 1.24
’ 18. INVESTOR NOMINEES LIMITED <NOMINEE> 6,571,630 1.17
! 19. MS DORITA THOMSON 6,305,916 1.13
f 20. GILTSPUR NOMINEES LIMITED <BUNS> 6,281,501 1.12
Totals: Top 20 holders of ORDINARY FULLY PAID SHARES (TOTAL) 343,048,908 61.31
Total Remaining Holders Balance 216,480,661 38.69




Group Structure

The present group structure of SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited and its subsidiary and
associated companies are illustrated below:-

SCOTGOLD Resources Ltd

SCOTGOLD
Resources Ltd
(Ecosse)
FYNEGOLD
Exploration Ltd
(Ecosse)
Subsidiary L % held History, business and principal activity
Capitalization !
SGZ FRANCE SG; FRANCE is a.French sgb5|dlary WhIC.h is looking for
SAS precious and strategic metals in France. This company was
Unlisted 100 incorporated in October 2014 in order to participate for the
reborn of the mining sector. This is a very strong asset with
FRANCE high potential and development.
SCOTGOLD In October 2007, Scotgold Resources Limited (Aus.) acquired
Resources Au$ the entire share capital of Scotgold UK.
Limited 100 The company through his placement on the stock market will
5.5 millions benefit from a more important source of funds to develop its
projects in Scotland.
SCOTLAND
FYNEGOLD I_n May 2007, Scotgold Resgurces had completgd the acquisi-
Exploration tion of Fynegold, a UK-registered company with gold-related
Limited Unlisted 100 assets in Scotland.
The company was also worked on the Cononish evaluation
gold project.
SCOTLAND
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SCOTGOLD RESOURCES
LIMITED

ABN 42 127 042 773

24 Colin Street, West Perth

PO Box 1970, West Perth WA 6872
P: +61 8 9222 5850

F: +61 8 9222 5810

Web: www.scotgoldresources.com

Présentation de SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited

Historique et Business

SCOTGOLD RESSOURCES Limited a été créée en 2007, elle est cotée sur |'Australian Stock
Exchange («ASX») depuis Janvier 2008 sous le code "SGZ". Les actions de la société ont été
admises sur le marché de I’AIM (Bourse de Londres) en Février 2010. Au cours des 5 derniéres
années SCOTGOLD Resources Limited a levé plus de 12 millions de dollars australiens sur les
différents marchés boursiers pour soutenir leurs dépenses liées aux travaux d'exploration miniére.

Ses principales activités sont I'exploration et [I'exploitation des gisements de métaux
précieux économiques. SCOTGOLD Resources Limited détient a 100 % les entités: Scotgold
Ressources Limited (Ecosse) et sa filiale, Fynegold Exploration Limited (Ecosse).

La Société qui concentre ses activités d'exploration en Ecosse a choisi de rechercher des gisements
économiques de métaux de base ou de métaux précieux. Depuis 2008, le principal objectif de la
Société, a été le développement du projet a Or et Argent de Cononish dans les Highlands d'Ecosse
(domaine du Grampien) jusqu’a la prise de décision de mise en production, tout en
continuant I'exploration du projet aurifére et des prospects a fort potentiel compris dans la licence
d’exploration, en vue d'identifier de nouvelles cibles a développer.

SCOTGOLD a d'abord mis l'accent sur le développement du projet or et
d'argent Cononish et a identifié des ressources (mesurées, indiquées
et présumées catégories, JORC 2004) de 169.200 onces d'or et de 631.300 onces d'argent avec une
teneur de coupure de 3,5 g / t d'or. En 2010, suite a un premier rejet de sa demande de permis
d’aménagement pour développer le projet, la Société a déposé une demande révisée le
13 Octobre 2011, le Directeur de I'aménagement du territoire a publié un rapport destiné a la
Commission du parc pour recommander |'approbation de la demande.

Une réunion spéciale eue lieu le 25 Octobre 2011, le Conseil de I'Autorité du Parc a approuvé a
l'unanimité la demande sous réserve de trouver divers accords juridiques et un accord sur certaines
conditions particulieres. Ceux-ci ont été conclus avec succes et le 15 Février 2012. Le Conseil du Parc
a publié une lettre de décision d'octroi d'un permis de construire pour le développement du projet.
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Les représentants de I'Etat de la Couronne ont attribué de maniére inconditionnelle un bail

sur les droits de la Couronne en Mai 2012. Le projet aurifére Grampien comprend des accords avec la
Couronne sur pres de 4,300 km2 dans le sud-ouest des Grampiens en |'Ecosse et couvre I'une des
zones les plus prometteuses de la séquence géologique du Dalradien au Royaume-Uni. Cette
séquence s'étend de I'Ouest du Royaume-Uni a la cote Est du Canada et jusqu’a la ceinture des
Appalaches aux Etats-Unis, mais aussi vers I'Est, en Suéde et en Norvege, ou elle a été identifié par le
British Geological Survey (BGS) comme étant une province a fort potentiel pour les gisements de
métaux de base ou d’or. Plus localement, la séquence du Dalradien s'étend du sud-ouest de I'Ecosse
a 'lrlande du Nord ou elle renferme d'autres gites auriferes notamment a Cavancaw (0,5 millions
d’onces d'or) et a Curraghinalt (3,5 millions d’onces d'or).

La Société mene un programme régional d'échantillonnage de sédiments de ruisseau sur une
zone plus large que celle du projet a or du Grampien, tout en continuant a évaluer un certain
nombre d'affleurements de haute qualité déja identifiés a proximité du projet Cononish.

Aujourd'hui, une grande partie des gisements trouvés ont été découverts dans les années 80 par les
différents organismes nationaux (inventaires miniers). lls ont besoin cependant, d'une compléte
réinterprétation et réévaluation, basée sur de nouveaux modéles métallogéniques, et grace aux
progrés techniques faits dans I'exploration. Comme <ces dépots ont souvent des
signatures magnétiques et / ou gravimétriques propres, la sélection de nouvelles cibles
d'exploration a été basée sur linterprétation d'une grande quantité de
données géophysiques. Ces données sont recueillies par des levés géophysiques sols / aéroportés et
sont de plus en plus accessibles.

L'équipe de direction expérimentée de la Société identifie des cibles d'exploration grace
a l'interprétation des données géophysiques, géochimiques et géologiques déja disponibles.
Elle a initié des travaux d’exploration additionnels, travaux comprenant du forage dans le but de
déterminer I'attractivité et le potentiel du possible gisement de ressources minérales sur une
zone cible. Sur la base des résultats de ces études, les techniciens de SCOTGOLD Resources
Limited déterminent s'il convient de poursuivre ou non, l'exploration et ['évaluation des
différents prospects soit a l'aide de ses propres fonds ou si elle doit, au contraire,
inviter d'autres sociétés d'exploration miniere a devenir des partenaires de projets en signant
une joint-venture.

La capitalisation sur les marchés financiers de SCOTGOLD est d’environ AUD S 14 millions
en Juin 2014. De plus amples détails sur I'entreprise sont disponibles dans les tableaux ci-dessous.

SCOTGOLD Resources Limited a déja obtenu le financement de ses activités par l'intermédiaire
notamment de :

(i) Emission d'actions ou participations de nouveaux investisseurs pour financer ses activités
d'exploration;

(ii) Augmentation de capital ouverte a ses actionnaires existants;

(iii) Assurer une obligation convertible;

Mr. Christopher Sangster est un ingénieur minier expérimenté; il dirige la société depuis le rachat de
la société Fynegold exploration, il y a 7 ans.
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Pour plus de détails sur le personnel clé et la gestion de la Société, voir le tableau présenté ci-
dessous.

SCOTGOLD Resources Ltd a modifié sa stratégie et a commencé a rechercher des projets
« greenfield » dans le reste du bouclier européen, dans les terrains Cadomiens. La Société a
commencé a regarder en dehors de I'Ecosse et a récemment créée une nouvelle filiale entiéerement
détenue : SGZ FRANCE SAS. C'est une société domiciliée en France, qui a ouvert un bureau a Paris et
emploie des géologues hautement expérimentés pour évaluer les potentielles
opportunités en France.

Le choix de créer cette filiale francaise a été motivée par le succes de Variscan Mines - France avec
I’obtention de leurs premieres licences d'exploration minérale accordées au cours de I'an passé
alors que le secteur minier était a I'arrét depuis deux décennies.

Dés qu’elle aura acquis des projets, la Société prévoit d’entreprendre des activités d'exploration en
utilisant les méthodes les plus avancées dans le domaine de I'exploration miniére pour tenter de
définir des gisements d’intéréts économiques avant peut-étre alors de s'orienter vers des études de
préfaisabilité (avant le développement d’une mine).

Tout nouveau développement de la mine sera mené sous la coupe des plus hautes normes
internationales (Ni-43-101, JORC) en matiére de protection de I'environnement, de sécurité des
populations et de participation des communautés locales.
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Composition du Conseil d’administration de SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited

Nom Fo_nctlo_n, Expérience
Nationalité
Alexander Président M. Alexander L?ttlejohn e_st le ,direc_:teur général du groupe DTS, Iun des plus
Littlejohn Non-Exécutif grands laboratoires dentaires établis au Royaume-Uni. Il est basé a Glasgow.
Il est aussi le directeur de Core 3D, qui posséde un réseau mondial en solutions
Britannique | numériques dentaires et le directeur de Halo cabinets dentaires.
M. Nathaniel le Roux a passé la plupart de sa carriere dans les marchés
_ Directeur financiers e.t.a été chlef de la direction d'IG Group Plc entre 2002 et 2006.
Nathaniel Non-Exécutif Il est administrateur indépendant du London Metal Exchange (LME) et
le Roux administrateur de divers organismes de bienfaisance.

Nat est né en Ecosse et est allé & I'école a Edimbourg. Il est titulaire d'une

Christopher

Britannique maitrise en droit de I'Université de Cambridge et d'une maitrise en anthropologie
du Collége de Londres.
BSc (Hons), ARSM, GDE.
M. Sangster est un ingénieur minier avec plus de 28 ans d'expérience
dans l'industrie miniére. Il a un baccalauréat en sciences avec une spécialisation
Directeur

Non-Exécutif

en génie minier de la Royal School of Mines, de [I'Imperial College de
Londres et un GDE en économie des minéraux de I'Université de Witwatersrand.

Sangster scoTgoLD | Ilvit actuellement a proximité des permis d'exploration de la Sociéte, a Comrie en
Resources Ecosse, avec sa femme et sa famille.
La carriere de M. Sangster repose sur une vaste expérience technique et dans le
domaine de la production, en tant que sénior, aussi bien dans de petites
sociétés ou de multinationales que ce soit pour: l'or, les diamants et les
Président métaux de base ; en Afrique, au Royaume-Uni et du Canada et couvre une large
Directeur gamme d'applications miniéeres.
Général ] ] ) o
Entre 1996 et 1999, M. Sangster était le directeur général de Caledonia Mining
Corporation. |l travaillait sur le projet aurifere de Cononish, il était I'un
des directeurs de Fynegold Exploration, responsable de tous les aspects
SGZ du projet, y compris la préparation de I'étude de faisabilité, le projet de diligence,
FRANCE les négociations financiéres, les autorisations conduisant a I'obtention des titres,
la planification des premieres investigations pour I'exploration.
Aprés 1999, M. Sangster a déménagé dans la  Ceinture
cuivreuse zambienne avec Anglo American Plc / KCM Plc ou il atteignit la position
de vice-président des services des mines. En 2005, il rejoint le cabinet
d'expertise  Australian Mining  Consultants comme un  ingénieur
Britannique minier principal. Plus récemment, M. Sangster a été employé comme directeur
général de la société européenne Diamonds Plc cotée sur I'AIM.
B Juris. LLB MBA FAICD.
M. Jackson est un avocat avec plus de 25 ans d'expérience dans le domaine du
droit des sociétés internationales, plus précisément dans les domaines du droit
Phillip Directeur commercial; des c_or]trats; droit mi_nier et sur la structyration Qes entre_prises.
Jackson Non-Exécutif Il a beaucoup travaillé au Moyen-Orient; en Asie et aux Etats-Unis d’Amérique.

Britannique

En Australie, il a été, conseiller juridique principal de la Western Mining
Corporation, et a titre privé, dans un cabinet, spécialisé dans les compagnies
miniéres de petites et moyennes tailles.

M. Jackson est actuellement administrateur et dirigeant des filiales
australiennes et asiatiques d'une grande entreprise multinationale de services
pétroliers.

Il a été directeur d'un certain nombre de sociétés anonymes australiennes, en
particulier des « juniors » minieres. Son expérience comprend le management, la
finance, la comptabilité et les ressources humaines.

Il a été président d’Aurora Minerals Limited depuis son introduction en 2004 et
celui de Desert Energy Limited, depuis le mois d’Ao(t 2007.
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Nom

Fonction
Nationalité

Expérience

Richard
Harris

Directeur
Non-Exécutif

Britannique

M. Richard Harris est un ingénieur minier avec plus de 30 ans d'expérience
dans lindustrie miniere et dans la finance en tant qu'analyste
minier et directeur d'entreprise. Il posséde une expérience considérable dans
le domaine de I'évaluation de projets miniers. Avec des compétences dans le
domaine de la restructuration d'entreprise et pour lever des capitaux a
destination des sociétés miniéres.

Auparavant, il était directeur de I'Australian silver miner Alcyone Resources
Ltd en 2009 aprés avoir monté un consortium qui a recapitalisé et remis en
vente la société. En 2005-2008 en tant que directeur général (puis
ensuite président exécutif), il a fondé et introduit en bourse, Eleckra Mines
Limited sur 'ASX.

Il est titulaire d'un baccalauréat en sciences (BSc (Hons)) en génie minier de
I'Université du Pays de Galles.

Richard
Gray

Directeur
Général

(CEO)
&

Géologue
Principal

Britannique

M. Richard Gray a plus récemment servi en tant que chef de I'exploitation
miniére chez Avocet Mining PLC.

Il posséde une grande expérience internationale, a la fois dans la conduite des
opérations de mines a ciel ouvert ou souterraines. Il apporte son expérience et
sa connaissance de la gestion opérationnelle, des compétences
considérables pour la société, en particulier dans le développement et la mise
en ceuvre des projets de mines dor. Il a auparavant occupé divers
postes aussi bien dans des majors que des juniors spécialisé dans les mines
dor.

Sa carriere a inclus 15 années de travail en Afrique du Sud pour Gencor Ltd et
10 ans en Afrique de I'Ouest pour Golden Star Resources Ltd, ou il a été
respectivement directeur général de Bogoso Gold Limited, directeur général
de Golden Star Wassa Limited et enfin vice-président des opérations de
Golden Star Resources Ltd.

Il est titulaire d'un baccalauréat en sciences (BSc (Hons)) en génie minier de la
Royal School of Mines, Imperial College, et d'un MBA de la Graduate School
of Business, Université de Cape Town.

Peter
Newcomb

Secrétaire

Britannique

M. Newcomb est un membre de I'Institut des comptables agréés en Angleterre
et au Pays de Galles et un membre de I'Institut des comptables agréés en
Australie avec une expérience professionnelles et commerciales de plus de 35
années.

Il a travaillé dans un certain nombre d'industries et de lieux, notamment a
Londres, en Ecosse, Singapour et Perth. La majorité de son expérience au
cours des quinze dernieres années a été dans le secteur des ressources en
Australie-Occidentale.

M. Newcomb est également directeur des finances et secrétaire de la société
Taruga Gold Limited et Secrétaire de la Société d'Athéna Resources Limited.
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Equipe dirigeante et technique de SCOTGOLD Resources Limited

SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited a un total de 5 géologues qui cumulent 157 ans d'expérience
dans l'industrie minérale.

Fonction »
Nom . o Expérience
Nationalité
Richard Directeur M_. R‘lchard Gray a plus_ récemment servi en tant que chef de I'exploitation
G . miniére chez Avocet Mining PLC.
ray Général - - . . R . .
Il possede une grande expérience internationale, a la fois dans la conduite
(CEO) des opérations de mines a ciel ouvert ou souterraines et dans le
développement et la mise en ceuvre des projets minier auriféere.
& Il a auparavant occupé divers postes aussi bien dans des majors que des
juniors spécialisé dans les mines d'or.
Géologue Principal o 3 . .
Il est titulaire d'un baccalauréat en sciences (BSc (Hons)) en génie
Britannique minier de la Royal School of Mines, Imperial College et d'un MBA de
la Graduate School of Business, Université de Cape Town.
Peter Secrétaire M. Newcomb est un membre de llInstitut des f:om_ptables agréés en
. Angleterre et au Pays de Galles et un membre de I'Institut des comptables
Newcomb Général - . - ;
agréés en Australie avec une expérience professionnelles et
Britannique commerciales de plus de 35 années.
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Equipe dirigeante de SGZ FRANCE SA

Nom Fonction Expérience
Nationalité
Christopher Président de | Mr Sangster est un géologue avec une expérience d'une trentaine d’année
Sangster SGZ FRANCE | dans le secteur des ressources. Il a travaillé en Afrique du Sud notamment
pour Anglo American Plc.
Britannique I trayallle aujourd’hui sur le deve]oppement d’'un projet aurifére, prés de
Comrie, dans un parc Naturel, en Ecosse.
Directeur Mr Maupard est une personne hautement qualifiée dans la gestion de
Patrick Général sociétés et d'actifs. Il a une grande expérience dans le domaine de la
Maupard Délégué comptabilité, avec pres de 25 ans d'exercice. Il est le gérant du Cabinet
Maupard Fiduciaire, fondateur de HBL France, cabinet d'audit, de
SGZ FRANCE | réputation international.
Francais Mr Maupard, fait partie de I'ordre des experts comptable de Paris, et
réside dans cette méme ville.

Equipe technigue de SGZ FRANCE SA

Nom

Fonction
Nationalité

Expérience

Jeff
Smith

Consultant expert

Britannique

Mr Smith est un expert en géologie miniére qui totalise prés de 44
années d’expérience dans le domaine minier. Il a essentiellement
travaillé en Espagne et en Afriqgue du Sud, pour le compte de grandes
sociétés parmi lesquelles on compte : Anglo American. Dans les années
90, il a participé a I'évaluation du gisement de Tharsis situé dans
ceinture pyriteuse Ibérique dans la province de Huelva. Cette mine fut
exploitée (3.5 Mt de minerai) ce secteur fait aujourd’hui encore I'objet de
nouvelles recherches, initiées par la société Ormonde.

David J.
Catterall

Consultant expert

Britannique

Mr Catterall est un expert en géologie miniére qui totalise prées de 30
années d’expérience dans le domaine minier. Il a trés majoritairement
travaillé sur le continent Africain (Afrique du Sud, Angola, Zambie,
Centrafrique) pour le compte de grandes sociétés (Anglo American).
En 2000, Il décide de proposer ses services, en tant que consultant, il
travaille depuis 2007 pour le compte de Scotgold.

L'équipe actuelle sera agrandie dés |'attribution de titres miniers et le début des travaux en fonction

des engagements financiers annoncés et des programmes acceptés.

Il est prévu de nommer un chef de projet résident sur site qui aura en charge la planification des

travaux de terrain, leur réalisation (sondages variés) et de recruter avec une priorité aux

compétences locales les employés ou sous-traitants nécessaires a la réalisation des travaux.

Les programmes lourds exigeant une compétence particuliere (tels que géophysique, sondages ...)

seront sous-traités a des spécialistes et supervisés par un expert employé par SGZ FRANCE.
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Structure du groupe

La structure actuelle du groupe SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited et de ses filiales
est présentée par I'organigramme ci-dessous :

SCOTGOLD Resources Ltd

SCOTGOLD
Resources Ltd

(Ecosse)

FYNEGOLD
Exploration Ltd
(Ecosse)
L Valeur de la % L . S
Filiales Capitalisation détenu Histoire, business et activité principale

SGZ FRANCE est une filiale Frangaise qui est en train de

SGZ FRANCE regarder avec beaucoup d’attention les métaux précieux et les

SAS métaux stratégiques en France.

Non listé 100 )

FRANCE Cette société a été créée en Octobre 2014 dans le but de
participer au renouveau minier. |l s’agit la d’'un actif lourd, en
termes de potentiel et de développement.

En Octobre 2007, Scotgold Resources Limited (Aus.) acquiert

SCOTGOLD Au$ la totalité du capital de Scotgold UK.

Resources

Limited N 100 La société grace a son placement en bourse va bénéficier

5.5 millions d’'une source de fonds plus importante pour développer ses

SCOTLAND projets en Ecosse.

En Mai 2007, la société Scotgold Resources (UK) finalise le

FYNEGOLD " L .

. rachat de Fynegold, société enregistré au Royaume-Uni,

Exp_lorjmon Non listé 100 spécialisé dans les actifs « Or » en Ecosse.

imite
Elle travaillait déja a I'époque sur la prospection et I'évaluation
du projet aurifere « Cononish »

SCOTLAND

18




XE 4c : Rapport annuel 2014 de SCOTGOLD RESOURCES Limited

SCOTGOLD

RESOURCES LIMITED



SCOTGOLD

RESOURCES LIMITED

ACN 42 127 042 773

20



Company Information

Review of Operations

Di s’ Report

Corporate Governance Statement
Auditor’s Independence Declaration
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Staternent of Financial Position
Staterment of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements
Directors' Declaration

Independent Auditor’s Rej
Shareholder Details

Interest in Exploration Leases

Company Information — Scotland

Photographs contained in this Annual Report are for illustration
purposes only and are not necessarily assets of the Cormpany.

21



42127 042773
1an
ing Director
tive Director
Peter Newcomb

24 Colin Street, Perth, WA 6005

Computershare Investor S es Pty Ltd
Level 2, R e Bank Building, 45 St Georges Terrace, Perth, WA

+61 8

| Level 4, 130 Stirling Street, Perth, WA

sorporation | 116 Jam

Scotgold s Limited share: d on the
Exchange and on t d of the London St

The home excha

www.scotgoldresources.com.au

22



02 | Review of Operations

ABOUT SCOTGOLD

Australian Securities Exchange listed Scotgold Resources Limited (ASX.SGZ) was established in 2007 and listed
on the ASX in January 2008. The company’s shares were admitted to trading on the AIM market of the London
Stock Exchange (AIM:SGZ) in February 2010. The Company’s principal objective, since 2008, has been the
advancement of the Conanish Gold and Silver Praject in Scotland’s Grampian Highlands to a production decision
and exploration of the highly prospective tenements comprising the Grampian Gold Project with the view of
identifying further project opportunities.

Scotgold has focused initially on the development of the Conenish Gold and Silver Project and has identified
resources (estimated in accordance with the JORC Code (2004)) in the Measured, Indicated and Inferred
categories (see later for breakdown) of 169,200 oz of gold and 631,300 oz of silver at 3.5g/t gold cut-off.

Subsequent to an initial rejection of its application for planning permission to develop the project in 2010, the
Company submitted a revised application and on 13th October 2011, the Director of Planning issued a report

to the Parks Board recommending approval of the application and at a special meeting on 25th October 2011,

the Board of the Parks Authority unanimously approved the application subject to the conclusion of various legal
agreements and agreement on a number of cutstanding conditions. These were successfully concluded and on
15th February 2012, the Parks Board issued the Decision Letter granting planning permission for the development.

The Crown Estate Commissioners unconditional grant of the Crown Lease was confirmed in May 2012.

The Grampian Gold Project comprises Crown Option agreements of some 4,200km? in the south west Grampians
of Scotland and covers some of the most prospective areas of the Dalracian geological sequence in the UK. This
sequence extends westward from the UK to the eastern seaboard of Canada and the Appalachian belt in the

US, and eastward into Sweden and Norway, has been identified by the British Geological Survey as being highly
prospective for both significant gold and base metal deposits. On a more local scale, the Dalradian sequence
extends to the south west from Scotland into Northern Ireland where it hosts other gold resources at Cavancaw
(c. 0.5M oz of gold) and Curraghinalt (c. 3.5M oz of gold).

The Company is conducting a regional stream sediment sampling program over the wider Grampian gold project
area whilst continuing to evaluate a number of previously identified high grade outcrops in the vicinity of the
Canonish project.

SCOTCOLD ANNUAL REPORT | 2014
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
CONONISH GOLD AND SILVER PROJECT

Resources

Subsequent to the grant of planning permission in February 2012 and as a result of discussions with potential
financiers to the project, the Company embarked on an 18 hole (2200m) infill drilling program aimed at converting
Inferred resources to Indicated resources which was completed in October 2012. Full details of the results from the
infill program were announced in the press release of 8/10/2012 - Drilling Results.

Based on the results of the infill driling program, Dr Simon Dominy of Snowden Mining Industry Consultants Pty
Ltd (Snowden) compiled an updated Resource estimate reported in accordance with the JORC 2004 Code.

Table 1 below shows the revised Mineral Resource estimate as announced in the press release of 14/11/2012 -
Cononish Resource Update. The table also serves as the Company’s Annual Mineral Resource statement.

Cononish Main Vein Gold and Silver Mineral Resources {reported at a 3.5 g/t Au cut-off) compiled 14/11/12.

Reported using the 2004 JORC Code (JORC, 2004). Tonnages and contained ounces rounded to the nearest
100 tor 100 0z. Gold grade rounded to the nearest 0.1 g/t Au. The Inferred Resource grade is reported with a
grade range to indicate the likely upside due to the information effect.

Grade 4/ | Ounces (0z) | Grade {9/ | Ounces (o) |
Classification Tonnes (t)
oo | God | ser | sier |

Measured (M) 53,100 141 24,000 61.2 104,500
Indicated () 142,900 12.7 58,600 49.9 229,500
Total M. and I. 196,000 131 82,600 53.0 334,000
Inferred 264,600 10.2 (10— 15) 86,600 34.9 297,300

- Annual Mineral Resource Statement as at 30/06/2014

Scotgold Note: Incorporating the grade range, the Inferred Mineral Resource is estimated to lie between 86,000
0z Au and 127,000 oz Au. It should be noted that any upside may not exist or it may only be present in a portion
of the resource.

Note: This information was prepared and first disclosed under the JORC Code 2004. It has not been
updated since to comply with the JORC Code 2012 on the basis that the information has not materially
changed since it was last reported.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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Review of Operations

Cononish Resource classification (JORC 2004)

There has been no change to the reported Mineral Resources between 30/06/2013
and 30/06/2014, which as at 30/06/2013, totalled inclucing Measured, Indicated
and Inferred categories, 460,600t @ 11.7g/t Au and 45g/t Ag.

The results from the 2012 infill program, importantly, substantiated and
increased the grades and tonnages in previously classified Inferred category
blocks with an increase in tonnage of 15.9% and 16.5% in contained ozs in the
blocks impacted and give significant encouragement to the Board regarding
confidence in the potential conversion of other Inferred blocks which may occur
as future mine development progresses.

In addition to the currently defined resources, Scotgold believes that there is
potential to define further resources close to the Cononish mine, subject to
appropriate further work. The extensive gold-in-soil anomalies, mineralisation
associated with outcrops and trenching and geophysical anomalies in close
proximity to the current resource clearty warrant further follow up during the
development stage. Much of this potential is based on the along strike and
down dip extensions of the Cononish vein, but there are indications that
other reefs are present in the area too. At this stage, such figures are highly
conceptual and there is no guarantee that further exploration will define
additional resources.

Ore Reserves

There are no Ore Reserves estimated in terms of the JORC (2012) code as at
30/06/2014.

Reserves reported in 2013 under the JORC 2004 code are no longer applicable.
As noted in the following section and subsequent to its internal review of both
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves, the Company is examining a number of
different options and possible configurations for the project and has deemed it
appropriate to update both Minerals Resources and Ore Reserves to comply
with the JORC (2012) code when this work has been concluded.
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Review of Operations | 02

Project status

In order to facilitate financing under current market conditions, the Company, in conjunction with its consultants,
have continued to examine and evaluate possible alternative configurations for the Concnish Gold and Silver
Project with a view to optimising retums and attempting to reduce the initial capital expenditure and the overall
funding requirement to bring the project to production.

The initial options considered to date have considered varied processing rates, strategic mining sequences

and mining selectivity. These options remain under current review and a number of other options relating to
construction, commissioning and production build up periods, as well as plant configuration, are currently being
considered for further examination and evaluation before a preferred development option can be finalised.

From the initial options considered, it was apparent that a change to the current planning condition (Condition 13)
regarding the hours of operation of the processing plant presented an attractive opportunity to be actively pursued.
Current planning conditions restrict hours of operation of the processing plant from 07h00 to 23h00 Mondays to
Saturdays with no processing on Sunday or recognised Scottish public holidays. A change to 24/6 operations
{though still with no processing on Sunday or recognised Scottish public holidays) would enable a significant
decrease in the ‘name plate’ plant hourly throughput rate, whilst maintaining previously considered annual
production rates, with attendant possible capital reductions for the processing plant and associated infrastructure.

To this end, the Company held a number of discussions with the Loch Lomond and the Trossachs National

Park Planning Authority {“the Planning Authority”). Scotgeld submitted a formal letter to the Planning Authority
requesting pre-application advice regarding variation to this condition. The Company has received the response
and recently conducted a site visit with the Planning Authority and redevant other authorities in this regard and plan
to submit the requisite application to vary this condition shortly.

Contingent to continuing progress made towards varying this condition, the Company continues to assess other
potentially beneficial options for the project.

The Company is in discussion with possible plant suppliers regarding the capital costs and financing of the
possible smaller facility and is in negotiations relating to supplier financing for the mining equipment required with
the aim of achieving further reductions in the initial capital expenditure.

The decision notice granting planning permission 1o the project issued by the Planning Authority on 13 February
2012 required a number of ‘suspensive’ conditions to be satisfied prior to the start of development. All submissions
have been made (excluding those to be made immedialely prior to the start of development) and 64% of the
conditions have been discharged. Finalisation of these discussions relating to the outstanding conditions already
submitted, has been put on hold pending the application to vary condition 13 and further progress towards
completing finance for the project.

The Company submitted an application for a licence under the Water Erwironment (Controlled Activities)
Regulations 2011 (CAR regulations) relating to proposed burn diversion works and all necessary permitting for
these works has been granted by the Scottish Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA).

In January 2013, AMEC Earth and Environmental (AMEC) commenced detailed engineering design of the Tailings
Management Facility. Final designs and tender documents were at an advanced stage with six companies pre
qualified to tender for the construction works before work was halted. It is estimated that this work can be rapidly
completed on financing without impacting the development schedule.

As such, all necessary permitiing has either been granted or can be completed within a short time frame, subject
to the approval for the variation of condition 13 (Limitation of working hours) as noted above and engineering
design work is at a stage where it can be rapidly finalised on securing finance thus ensuring a rapid start to
development.

Given the advanced state of project development, the Company believe Cononish could be in production within 18
months of obtaining financing.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 5
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GRAMPIAN GOLD PROJECT

The Company continues to actively pursue exploration activities on its substantial land position in the Dalradian
group of the south west Grampians, a terrain highly prospective for both gold and potential base metal
occurrences. The majority (85%) of the area currently under option to Scotgold is located outside the Lach
Lomond and the Trossachs National Park.

The company’s strategy has been to advance the Cononish Project to production whilst conducting early stage
regional exploration over the wider Grampian Gold project area in conjunction with follow up work on the more
advanced prospects close to the Cononish project area.

The Grampian Gold project encompasses a large area of the highly prospective Dalradian sequence. Basic
exploration data, including gravity and airborne magnetics, is available from government surveys carried out
between 19505 and 1970s but is of a quality and spacing that does not adequately reflect the prospectivity of
the area. This and the general lack of previous exploration over the area (other than early stage exploration in the
vicinity of the Cononish project) has dictated the Company's approach to exploration.

In order to advance its understanding of the regional setting, over the past three years, the Company has
embarked on a regional scale stream sediment sampling program.

In the initial wicle spaced regional program, in excess of 750 stream sediment samples were taken over the area.
Initial interpretation of these results continues and this program is now being followed up by a more detailed

infill sampling program in the anomalous result areas in order to further target areas for detailed fieldwork and
prospecting. To date a further 250 samples have been taken in the infill program with a further 237 to be taken.

In parallel with this regional program, Scotgold continues to evaluate previcusly identified high grade outcrop
samples identified by previous exploration close to the Cononish project.

Initially, the company conducted a re-sampling program to verify previously identified occurrences and the program
confirmed the presence of a large number of high grade gold / silver vein outcrops in an area located between two
major regional faults, the Tyndrum — Glen Fyne fault and the Ericht - Laidon fault and associated with the fractures
probably generated by movements along these faults.

Considerable follow up work has been caried out to examine the extent of these occcumences through further
fieldwork, detailed rock chip sampling, initial short surface drilling and (in some cases) deeper diamond drilling and
the Company believe that further significant exploration expenditure is justified on many of these prospects when
financing is available. The most advanced of these prospects include

1)

2

3)

the River Vein area - diamond driling below exceptionally high grade surface rock chip samples has
proved structural continuity of a vein structure to a depth of approximately 100m and a similar strike extent
as defined by current driling and remains open along strike and at depth: this warrants further diamond
driling {see Press Release — Exploration Progress at River Vein — 30/01/2012).

the Sron Garbh mafic / ultramafic complex — short surface driling intersected highly anomalous grades of
Gold, Platinum, Palladium, Copper Nickel and Cobalt, in and close to the ‘Gabbreic / Appinitic’ zone of
the complex. Mineralisation is seen to be contained in ‘sulphide blebs’ in a 'leopard rock” textured zone.
Ihese characteristics are diagnostic of the worldwide ‘magmatic Cu - Ni - PGE - A’ group of deposits
associated with mafic / ultramafic intrusives such as Aguablanca in Spain, certain parts of the Sudbury
mines in Ontario, Canada; Voisey's Bay in Labrador Canada and Lac des Isles in Quebec, Canada. Such
deposits oceur as sulphide concentrations {massive through to disseminated sulphides) associated with
a variety of mafic and ultramafic magmatic rocks (see Press Release — Highly Anomalous Platinum Group
Metals Gold and Base metals - 07/03/2012).

the Auch / Beinn Odhar veins — shallow surface driling below one of the identified high grade outcrops

confirmed its prospectivity and a considerable number of the other curently identified outcrops require
initial short surface driling as a precursor to further more intensive drilling.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 7
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As an adjunct to field activities, Scotgeld

has over the past four years co-sponsored

a doctoral research project to investigate

gold occurrences in the area in addition to

a number of related MSc dissertations on
various aspects of the mineralisation in the
Tyndrum area. The results from these research
projects are being assessed in relation to
future exploration activity.

The Company believe that the next phase of
exploration in the central “Tyndrum’ option area
should compromise an airborne geophysical
survey in order to assess the nature and
continuity of the structural regime in this area
with a view to determining its potential to host
similar ‘Cononish style’ deposits. Results from
the infill stream sediment sampling program
will guide further exploration effort in areas
outside the immediate Cononish area.

Competent Persons Statement:

The information in this report that relates to
Exploration Results is based on information
compiled by Mr David Catterall. Pr Sci

Nat, who is a member of the South African
Council for Natural Scientific Professions.
Mir Catterall is employed as a constltant to
Scotgold Resources Ltd. Mr Catterall has
sufficient experience which is relevant to the
style of mineralisation and type of deposit
under consideration and to the activity which
he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent
Person as defined in the 2012 Edition of
the ‘Australasian Code for Reporting of
Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and
Ore Reserves’. M Catterail consents fo the
inclusion in the report of the matters based
on his information in the form and context in
which it appears.

The information in this report that relates

to Mineral Resources is based on resource
estimates compiled by EurGeal Dr Simon
Dominy FAUsIMM (CP), FGS (CGeol), FIMNMM,
Executive Consultant with Snowden based

in the Loondon, UK Office. Dr. Dominy has
sufficient experience that is relevant to the
style of depostt under consideration and to
the activity which he is undertaking to qualify
as Competent Person as defined in the 2012
Edition of the Australasian Code for Reporting
of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources
and Ore reserves. Dr Dominy consents to the
inclusion in the report of the matters based
on this information in the form and context in
which it appears.
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Subsequent events

As announced on 22 September (see ASX Release - Company Update for full details), the Company entered into
the convertible nate agreements (Convertible Nates) on the terms and conditions set out in the Company’s Notice
of Meeting dated 23 June 2014 and approved by Shareholders at the General Meeting on 30 July 2014,

$1 milion has been advanced to the Company under the Convertible Note Agreements. The funds raised by the
Convertible Notes has been used as part-repayment of the RMB Facility as described below and the balance will
be used for working capital.

The Company announced that the RMB Facility has been partially repaid using funds advanced under the
Convertible Notes such that the £1,500,000 amount outstanding has been reduced by £320,000 to £1,180,000.
Furthermore capitalised interest outstanding on the facility has been settled.

The Company also announced that the remaining amount under the BMB Fagility Agreement has been extended
to 31 December 2015 in consideration for:

(a) the partial repayment of the RMB Facility set out in paragraph 2 above (such that the facility amount is
£1,180,000; and

b) the issue to RMB Australia Holdings Ltd of 9,000,000 fully paid ordinary Scotgold Shares and 30,000,000
unlisted Options exercisable at 0.69 pence on or before 22 September 2017.

The Shares and Options have been issued under the Company's Listing Rule 7.1 capacity.
Tenement details

The Company holds a Lease (100%) from the Crown Estate Commissioners over Cononish Farm, County of Perth,
Scotland UK.

The Company holds a Lease (100%) from the landowner over Cononish Farm, County of Perth, Scotland UK.

The Company holds five Mines Royal Option Agreements (100%) with the Crown Estate Commissioners as

detailed below:

Glen Orchy: Location — counties of Perth and Argyll, Scotland UK

Glen Lyon: Location — counties of Perth and Argyll, Scotland UK

Inverliever: Location — counties of Dunbarton, Argyll and Perth, Scotland UK

Knapdale: Location — county of Argyll, Scotland UK

Ochils: Location — county of Clackmannan, Perth, Kinross and Stirling, Scotland UK

No tenements were acquired or disposed of during the year.
No other beneficial interests are held in any farm-in or farm-out agreements.

No other beneficial interests in farm-in or farm out agreements were acqjuired or disposed of during the year.

REVIEW OF OPERAT HONS
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors submit their report on the consolidated entity consisting of Scotgold Resources Limited and its
controlled entities (“Scotgold”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

DIRECTORS

The following persons were Directors of Scotgold Resources Limited during the whole of the financial year and up
to the date of this report unless otherwise stated;

John Bentley Executive Chairman 17/02/2009 present
Chris Sangster Chief Executive Officer 17/10/2007 present
Phillip Jackson Non Executive Director 14/08/2007 present

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY
John Bentley Executive Chairman B.Tech (Hons) Brunel University
Qualifications and experience

Mr Bentley has over 40 years experience in the natural resources sector. He was Managing Director of Gencor’s
Brazlian mining company, Sac Bento Mineracao, from 1988 to 1993 when he became Chief Executive of Engen's
Exploration & Production division. In 1996 he was instrumental in floating Energy Africa Ltd on the Johannesburg
stock exchange and became Chief Executive for the following five years building it into one of the leading African
independent oil and gas companies.

More recently Mr Bentley was Executive Chairman of FirstAfrica Oil ple and a Non-Executive Director of Adastra
Minerals Ltd. He currently serves on the board of a number of resource companies including as Chairman of Faroe
Petroleum Ple, Deputy Chairman of Wentworth Resources Ltd and Non-Executive Director of Kea Petroleum Plc.

Mr Bentley holds a degree in Metallurgy from Brunel University.
Interest in Shares and Options

Fully Paid Shares 13,703,728
Special Responsibilities

Overall strategic guidance and UK Capital markets.
Directorships held in ASX listed entities

None

SCOTCOLD ANNUAL REPORT | 2014
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Christopher Sangster CEO / Managing Director BSc (Hons), ARSM, GDE

Qualifications and experience

Mr Sangster is a mining engineer with over 30 years experience in the mining industry. He has a Bachelor of
Science (Honours) Degree in Mining Engineering from the Royal School of Mines, Imperial College in London
and a GDE in Mineral Economics from the University of Witwatersrand. He currently lives close to the Company’s
exploration licences at Comrie in Scotland with his wife and family.

Mr Sangster’s career covers extensive production and technical experience at senior levels in both junior and
multi-national companies in gold, diamonds and base metals in Africa, UK and Ganada and covers a wide range of
mining applications.

Between 1996 and 1999 Mr Sangster was General Manager for Caledonia Mining Corporation for the Cononish
Gold Project and a Director of Fynegold Exploration, where he was responsible for all aspects of the project
including feasibility study preparation, project due diligence, finance negotiations, exploration initiatives and
planning permission applications.

After 1999, Mr Sangster moved to the Zambian Copperbelt with Anglo American Plc / KGM Plc where he attained
the position of Vice President of Mining Services and in 2005 joined Australian Mining Consultants as a Principal
Mining Engineer. More recently, Mr Sangster was employed as General Manager for AIM — listed company
European Diamonds Plc.

Interest in Shares and Options

Fully Paid Shares 16,744,153
Special Responsibilities

Mr Sangster is the CEOQ / Managing Director and is responsible for the day to day running of the company.
Directorships held in listed entities

Nene

Phillip Jackson Non-executive Director BdJuris LLB MBA FAICD
Qualifications and experience

Mr Jackson is a barrister and solicitor with over 25 years legal and international corparate experience, especially
in the areas of commercial and contract law, mining law and corporate structuring. He has worked extensively in
the Middle East, Asia and the United States of America. In Australia, he was formerly a managing legal counsel for
Western Mining Corporation, and in private practice specialised in small to medium resource companies.

Mr Jackson was Managing Region Legal Counsel: Asia-Pacific for Baker Hughes Incorporated for 13 years. He
is now Legal Manager for a major international il and gas company. He has been a Director of a number of
Australian public companies, particularly mining companies. He has been Chairman of Aurora Minerals Limited
since it listed in 2004 and Desert Energy Limited, since it listed in August 2007.

His experience includes management, finance, accounting and human resources.

DIRECTORS' REPORT 13
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Interest in Shares and Options
Fully Paid Shares 4,331,250
Special Responsibiiities

Mr Jackson is Chairman of the Audit Committee and is responsible for legal matters.

Directarships held in listed entities

Company Name Appointed

Aurora Minerals Limited 24 September 2003

Desert Energy Limited 12 December 2006

Peter Newcomb Company Secretary FCA (ICAEW)
Qualifications and experience

Mr Newcomb is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia with over thirty five years professional and commercial experience.

He has worked in a number of industries and locations including London, Scotland, Singapore and Perth. The
maijority of his experience over the last fifteen years has been in the resources industry in Western Australia. Mr
Mewcomb is also Finance Director and Company Secretary of Taruga Gold Limited and Company Secretary of
Athena Resources Limited.

SHARES UNDER OPTION
At the date of this report unissued shares of the Company under option are:

Number of shares under option Exercise price Expiry date
3,000,000 $0.080 31 March 2022
26,222,222 £0.045 24 July 2015
153,161 £0.031 7 December 2015
7,111,111 £0.045 28 March 2016
50,000,000 $0.012 31 March 2015
30,000,000 $0.069 22 September 2017

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A review of the operations of the consolidated entity during the financial year is contained in the Review of
Operaticns section of this Financial Report. The Company’s strategy in Scotland continues to focus on advancing
the 100% owned Concnish Gold and Silver Project to production whilst continuing to explore its large, highly
prospective land position around Cencnish and elsewhere in Scotland which extends to some 4,300km?.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the consclidated entity during the year was mineral exploration in Scotland.

SCOTGOLD ANNUAL REPORT | 2014
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Operating Results

The consolidated loss after income tax for the financial year was $1,466,149 (2013: $2,583,401).
Financial Position

At 30 June 2014 the Company had cash reserves of $640,857 (2013: $570,253).

Dividends

No dividends were paid during the year and no recommendation is made as to dividends.
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity
that occurred during the financial year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report or in the consolidated
financial statements.

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
On 23 September 2014 the company announced the following
1. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The company has entered into convertible note agresments (Convertible Notes} on the terms and conditions
set out in the Company's Notice of Meeting dated 23 June 2014 (and approved by Shareholders at the General
Meeting on 30 July 2014).

$1 miillion has been advanced to the Company under the Convertible Note Agreements. The funds raised by the
Convertible Notes has been used as part-repayment of the RMB Facility as described below and the balance will
be used for working capital.

The Convertible Notes have a repayment date of 24 months from their date of issue, with an interest rate of 1%
per annum. The holders of the Convertible Notes may elect to convert the Convertible Notes (in part or in full) into
ordinary shares in the Company at a conversion price of $0.0075 per share. For every share issued on conversion
of the Convertible Notes, one free attaching option will be issued, exercisable at $0.012 on or before 31 March
216, Full details of the Convertible Motes and attaching options were set out in the Company’s Notice of Meeting
dated 23 June 2014,

2. PARTIAL REPAYMENT OF RMB FACILITY

The BRMB Facility has been partially repaid using funds advanced under the Convertible Notes such that the
£1,500,000 ameunt outstanding has been reduced by £320,000 to £1,180,000. Furthermore capitalised interest
outstanding on the facility has been settled.

3. EXTENSION OF RMB FACILITY

The remaining amount under the RMB Facility Agreement has been extended to 31 December 2015 in
consideration for:

(a) the partial repayment of the RMEB Facility set out in paragraph 2 above (such that the facility amount is
£1,180,000; and

(B) the issue to RMB Australia Holdings Ltd of 9,000,000 fully paid ordinary Scotgold Shares and 30,000,000
unlisted Options exercisable at 0.69 pence on or before 22 September 2017,

The Shares and Options have been issued under the Company’s Listing Rule 7.1 capacity.

DIRECTORS” REPORT 15
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LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

The Company intends to continue its exploration activities with a view to the commencement of mining operations
as soon as possible.

Further information on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results
of operations have not been included in this report because the Directors believe it would be likely to result in
unreasonable prejudice to the Company.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The following table sets out the number of meetings of the Company’s Directors held during the year ended 30
June 2014, and the number of meetings attended by each Director. These meetings included matters relating to
the Remuneration and Nomination Committees of the Company.

Number eligible Number
to attend attended

John Bentley
Chris Sangster
Phillip Jackson

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is comprised of Mr Jackson who chaired one meeting of the audit committee during the year
ended 30 June 2014,

REMUNERATION REPORT (audited)

This report details the nature and amount of remuneration for each director and executive of Scotgold Resources
Limited.

The information provided in the remuneration report includes remuneration disclosures that are required under
Accounting Standards AASB 124 “Related Party Disclosures”. These disclosures have been transferred from the
financial report and have been audited.

Remuneration policy

The board policy is to remunerate Directors at market rates for ime, commitment and responsibilities. The Board
determines payments to the Directors and reviews their remuneration annually, based on market practice, duties
and accountability. Independent external advice is sought when required. The maximum aggregate amount of
Directors' fees that can be paid is subject to approval by shareholders in general meeting, from time to time.
Fees for Non-Executive Directors are not linked to the performance of the consolidated entity. However, to align
Directors’ interests with shareholders” interests, the Directors are encouraged to hold securities in the Company.

The Company’s aim is to remunerate at a level that will attract and retain high-calibre Directors and employees.
Company officers and Directors are remunerated to a level consistent with size of the Company.

All remuneration paid to key management personnel is valued at the cost to the company and expensed.

SCOTGOLD ANNUAL REPORT | 2014
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Performance-based remuneration

The company does not pay any performance-based component of salaries.

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Directors’ Remuneration

No salaries, commissions, bonuses or superannuation were paid or payable to Directors during the year.
Remuneration was by way of fees paid monthly in respect of inveices issued to the Company by the Directors
or companies associated with the Directors in accordance with agreements between the Company and those
entities.

Details of the agreements are set out below.
Agreements in respect of remuneration of Directors:
Executive Directors

Chris Sangster is on a contract dated 28 January 2009 which provides for a fixed salary and benefits, with a
termination period of six months. John Bentley (through Ptarmigan Natural Resources Ltd) is on a contract
dated 17 February 2009 which provides for a fixed fee, with a termination period of six months. In both cases
the remuneration is reviewed annually. At the date of this report the annual remuneration for Chris Sangster

is £132,000 and for John Bentley is £33,000. In the event of a termination of contract giving less notice than
provided for in these contracts, the remaining notice period will be paid in full.

Mon-Executive Directors

The Company's constitution provides that the Non-Executive Directors may collectively be paid as remuneration
for their services a fixed sum not exceeding the aggregate sum determined by a general meeting. The aggregate
remuneration has been set at an amount of $300,000 per annum. A Director may be paid fees or other amounts
as the Directors determine where a Director performs special duties or otherwise performs services outside the
scope of the ordinary duties of a Director. A Director may also be reimbursad for out of pocket expenses incurred
as a result of their directorship or any special duties. Executive Directors may be paid on commercial terms as the
Directors see fit.

DIRECTORS” REPORT 17
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The total remuneration paid to key management personnel is summarised below:

Director/Secretary  Associated Company Fees Consulting Total
§ $ $

Year ended 30 June 2013
John Bentley Ptarmigan Natural Resources Ltd 24,000 40,617 64,617
Chris Sangster - 211,023 211,023
Phillip Jackson Holihox Pty Ltd 50,000 - 50,000
Shane Sadleir Mineral Products Holdings Pty Ltd 43,750 - 43,750
Peter Newcomb Symbios Pty Ltd - 170,100 170,100
117,750 421,740 539,490

Year ended 30 June 2014
John Bentley Ptarmigan MNatural Resources Ltd 91,982 - 91,982
Chris Sangster 241,348 241,348
Phillip Jacksen Holihox Pty Ltd 33,000 33,000
Peter Newcomb Symbios Pty Ltd - 170,100 170,100
124,982 411,448 536,430

Key management personnel share holding

Balance Purchase Date of Balance
30 June 2012 and Sales resignation 30 June 2013
John Bentley 1,462,500 500,000 - 1,962,500
Chris Sangster 6,438,250 6,438,250
Phillip Jackson 2,187,500 (1,437,500} 750,000
Shane Sadleir 14,603,481 362,500 14,965,981 -
Peter Newcomb 2,277,968 510,000 - 2,787,968
26,969,699 {66,000} 14,965,981 11,938,718
Balance Purchase Date of Balance
30 June 2013 and Sales resignation 30 June 2014
John Bentley 1,862,500 1,471,875 - 3,434,375
Chrig Sangster 6,438,250 4,828,688 - 11,266,938
Phillip Jackson 750,000 562,500 1,312,500
Peter Newcomb 2,787,968 7,466,545 10,254,513
11,938,718 14,329,608 - 26,268,326

Directors’ option holding
Mo options were held by Directors in the years ended June 2013 and June 2014,

The consolidated entity does not have any full ime Executive officers, other than the Managing Director as
detailed above.
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Aggregate amounts payable to Directors and their personally related entities.

Consolidated Consolidated

Entity Entity

2014 2013

$ $

Accounts payable 187,653 73,305

There were no performance related payments made during the vear.
End of remuneration report.
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The consolidated entity has conducted exploration activities on mineral tenements. The right to conduct these
activities is granted subject to enwironmental conditions and requirements.  The consolidated entity aims to ensure
a high standard of environmental care is achieved and, as a minimum, to comply with relevant environmental
regulations. There have been no known breaches of any of the environmental conditions.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year, the Company has not given an indemnity or entered into an agreement to indemnify any
of the Directors.

AUDITOR

HLB Mann Judd continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.
NON-AUDIT SERVICES

There were no non-audit services provided during the current year by our auditors, HLB Mann Judd.
AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

The auditor’s independence declaration has been received for the year ended 30 June 2014 and forms part of the
Directors’ report.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF COMPANY

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any
proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for
all or any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

CHRIS SANGSTER
Managing Director

Dated at Tyndrum, Scotland, this 30th day of September 2014

DIRECTORS” REPORT 19
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Board of Directors of Scotgold Resources Limited is responsible for the corporate governance of the
Company. The Board guides and monitors the business and affairs of Scotgold Resources Limited on behalf
of the shareholders by whom they are elected and to whom they are accountable. This statement reports on
Scotgold Resources Limited's key governance principles and practices.

1: COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Cormpany, as a listed entity, must comply with the Corporations Act 2001 and the Australian Securities
Exchange Limited (ASX) Listing Rules. The ASX Listing Rules require the Company to report on the extent to
which it has followed the Corporate Governance Recommendations published by the ASX Corporate Governance
Council (ASXCGC). Where a recommendation has not been followed, that fact is disclosed, together with the
reasons for the departure.

The table below summaries the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Council's
Recommendations:

- ASX Corporate Governance Council Recommendations m

1 Lay solid foundations for management and oversight
14  Establish the functions reserved to the board and those delegated to

senior executives and disclose those functions. ) it
2{h), 3(b).
1.2  Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior executives.  Remuneration Yes
Report

1.3 Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 1. 2(a), 2(h), 3(b), Yes

22 A majority of the board should be independent directors. 2(e) Yes

22 The chair should be an independent director. 2(c), 2(e) Yes
The roles of chair and chief executive officer should not be exercised by

28 the same individual. 2(0). 2(0) 168

24 The Board should establish a nomination committee. 2(d) No

Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the board, its () Ve
committees and individual directors.

26  Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 2. gg gg]) 20, Yes

'3 Promote ethical and responsible decision-making
Establlsh a code of conduct and disclose the code or a summary as to:
the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the company’s
integrity;
a - the practices necessary to take into account the company’s legal 4fa) Yes
obligations and the reasonable expectations of its stakeholders; and
the responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and
investigating reports of unethical practices

SCOTGOLD ANNUAL REPORT 1 2014
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- ASX Corporate Governance Council Recommendations Comply

Establish a policy concerning diversity and disclose the policy or a
summary of that policy. The palicy should include requirements for the
3.2  board to establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity 4(c) No
for the board to assess annually both the objectives and progress in
achieving them.

Disclose in each annual report the measurable objectives for achieving
3.3  gender diversity set by the board in accordance with the diversity policy 4(c) No
and progress towards achieving them.

Disclose in each annual report the propartion of women employees in the

34  whole organisation, women in senior executive positions andwomenon  4(¢) No
the board.
3.5  Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 3. 4(a), 4(c) Yes

Safeguard integrity in financial reporting
41  The Board should establish an audit committee. 3(a) Yes

The audit committee should be structured so that it:
+ consists only of non-executive directors;
consists of a majority of independent directors;

i is chaired by an independent chair, who is not chair of the Board; @ g
and
has at least three members.
4.3 The audit committee should have a formal charter 3a) Yes
4.4  Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 4. 3(a) Yes
5 Makeﬁmely and balanced disclosure
Establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX
51 Listing Rule disclosure requirements and to ensure accountability at 5), 5(0) Yos
: senior executive level for that compliance and disclose those policies or a 3
summary of those policies.
5.2  Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 5. 5(a), 5(b) Yes
Design a communications policy for promoting effective communication
6.1 with shareholders and encouraging their participation at general meetings  5(a), 5(b) Yes
and disclose the pelicy or a summary of that policy.
6.2 Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 6. 5(a), 5(b) Yes
7 Recognise and manage risk
71 Establish policies for the oversight and management of material business 6(a) Yes
i risks and disclose a surmmary of those policies.
The Board should require management to design and implement the
risk management and internal control system to manage the company’s
7.0 material business risks and report to it on whether those risks are being 6(a), 6(b), 6() os

managed effectively. The Board should disclose that management has
reported to it as to the effectiveness of the company's management of its
material business risks.

CORPORAIL GOVERNANCL STATLMENT 21

42



04 l Corporate Governance Statement

e

- ASX Corporate Governance Council Recommendations m

The Board should disclose whether it had received assurance from the
chief executive officer and the chief financial officer that the declaration
provided in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act is
founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and
that the system is operating effectively in all material respects in relation
to financial reporting risks.

7.3 6(c) Yes

7.4 Provide the information indicated in the Guide fo reporting on principle 7. Yes

6(a), 6(b), 6(c),
6(d)
8.1  The Board should establish a remuneration committee. 3lc) No

The remuneration committee should be structured so that it:
caonsist of a majority of independent directors

82 is chaired by the independent chairman He
has at least three members
AL ; . . 3(c),
Clearly distinguish the structure on non-executive directors’ remuneration .
83 from that of executive directors and senior executives. Eanounmmn iee
84  Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 8. 3(c), Yes

2, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2a) Roles and Responsibiliies of the Board

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and investors for the overall performance of the Company and takes
responsibility for monitoring the Company’s business and affairs and setting its strategic direction, establishing and
overseeing the Company's financial position.

The Board is responsible for:

- Appointing, evaluating, rewarding and if necessary the removal of the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") and
senior management;
Development of corporate objectives and strategy with management and approving plans, new
investments, major capital and operating expenditures and major funding activities proposed by
management;
Monitoring actual performance against defined performance expectations and reviewing operating
information to understand at all times the state of the health of the Company;
Overseeing the management of business risks, safety and occupational health, erwironmental issues and
community development;
Satisfying itself that the financial statements of the Company fairly and accurately set cut the financial
position and financial performance of the Company for the period under review;
Salisfying itself that there are appropriate reporting systems and controls in place to assure the Board that
proper operational, financial, compliance, risk management and internal control process are in place and
functioning appropriately;
Approving and maonitoring financial and other reporting;
Assuring itself that appropriate audit arrangements are in place;

SCOTGOLD ANNUAL REPORT 1 2014
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Ensuring that the Company acts legally and responsibly on all matters and assuring itself that the Company
has adopted a Code of Conduct and that the Company practice is consistent with that Code; and other
palicies, and

Reporting to and advising shareholders.

Other than as specifically reserved to the Board, responsibility for the day-to-day management of the
Company’s business activities is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Management.

2(b) Board Composition

The Directors determine the composition of the Board employing the following principles:

- the Board, in accordance with the Company’s constitution must comprise a minimum of three Directors;
the roles of the Chairman of the Board and of the Chief Executive Officer should be exercised by different
inclividuals;
the majority of the Board should comprise Directors who are non-executive;

the Board should represent a broad range of qualifications, experience and expertise considered of benefit
to the Company; and

the Board must be structured in such a way that it has a proper understanding of, and competency in, the
current and emerging issues facing the Company, and can effectively review management’s decisions.

The Board is currently comprised of two Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors. The skills,
experience, expertise, qualifications and terms of office of each director in office at the date of the annual report is
included in the Directors’ Report.

The Company's constitution requires one-third of the Directors {or the next lowest whale number) to retire by
rotation at each Annual General Mesting (AGM). The Directors to retire at each AGM are those who have been
longest in office since their last election. Where Directors have served for equal periods, they may agree amongst
themselves or determine by lot who will retire. A Director must retire in any event at the third AGM since he or she
was last elected or re-elected. Retiring Directors may offer themselves for re-election.

A Director appeinted as an additional or casual Director by the Board will hold office until the nexd AGM when they
may be re-elected.

The Chief Executive Officer is not subject to retirement by rotation and, along with any Director appeinted as an
additional or casual Director, is not to be taken into account in determining the number of Directors required to
retire by rotation,

2ic) Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman is responsible for:
leadership of the Board;
the efficient organisation and conduct of the Board's functions;
the promotion of constructive and respectful relations between Board members and between the Board
and management;
contributing to the briefing of Directors in relation to issues arising at Board meetings;
facilitating the effective contribution of all Board members; and
committing the time necessary to effectively discharge the role of the Chairman.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsibie for:
implementing the Company’s strategies and policies; and
the day-to-day management of the Company’s business activities
2(d) Nomination Committee

The Company does not comply with ASX Recommendation 2.4. The Company is not of a relevant size to consider
formation of a nomination committes to deal with the selection and appeintment of new Directors and as such a
nomination committee has not been formed.

Nominations of new Directors are considered by the full Board in accordance with the Company’s “Selection of
New Directors Policy”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCLE STATEMENT 23
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2(e) Independent Directors

The Company recognises that independent Directors are important in assuring shareholders that the Board

is property fulfiling its role and is diligent in holding senior management accountable for its performance. The
Board assesses each of the directors against specific criteria to decide whether they are in a position to exercise
independent judgment.

Directors of Scotgold Resources Limited are considered to be independent when they are independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with, or could
reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with, the exercise of their unfettered and independent judgement.

In making this assessment, the Board considers all relevant facts and circumstances. Relationships that the Board
will take into consideration when assessing independence are whether a Director:
is a substantial shareholder of the Company or an officer of, or otherwise associated directly with, a
substantial shareholder of the Company;
is employed, or has praviously been employed in an executive capacity by the Company or another
Company member, and there has not been a period of at least three years between ceasing such
employment and serving on the Board;

has within the last three years been a principal of a material professional advisor or a material consultant

to the Company or another Company member, or an employee materially asscciated with the service
provided;

is a material supplier or customer of the Gompany or other Company member, or an officer of or otherwise
associated directly or indirectly with a material supplier or customer; or

has a material contractual relationship with the Company or another Company member other than as a
Director.

T'he Board currently includes one independent non-executive Director.

In accordance with the definition of independence above, and the materiality threshclds set, the following Directors
of Scotgold Resources Limited are considered to be independent:

Name Paosition

Phillip Jackson Non Executive Director

The term in office held by each director in office at the date of this report is as follows:

In office since

John Bentley 17/02/2009

Chris Sangster 17/10/2007

Phillip Jackson 14/08/2007
2if) Avoidance of conflicts of interest by a Director

In order to ensure that any interests of a Director in a particular matter to be considered by the Board are known by
each Director, each Director is required by the Company to disclose any relationships, duties or interests held that
may give rise to a potential conflict. Directors are required to adhere strictly to constraints on their participation and
voting in relation to any matters in which they may have an interest.

2(g) Board access to information and independent advice
Directors are able to access members of the management team at any time to request relevant information.

There are procedures in place, agreed by the Board, to enable Directors, in furtherance of their duties, to seek
independent professional advice at the company’s expense.
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2(h) Review of Board performance

The performance of the Board is reviewed regularly by the Chairman. The Chairman conducts performance
evaluations which involve an assessment of each Board member's performance against specific and measurable
qualitative and quantitative performance criteria. The performance criteria against which directors and executives
are assessed is aligned with the financial and non-financial objectives of Scotgold Resources Limited. Directors
whose performance is consistently unsatisfactory may be asked to retire.

3. BOARD COMMITTEES
3(a) Audit Committee

The audit committes is comprised of one independent non-executive director, Mr Jackson who chaired one
meeting of the audit committee between commencement of the financial year and the date of this report.

The role and responsibilities of the Audit Committes are summarised below.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting and oversesing
the independence of the external auditors. The Board sets aside time 1o deal with issues and responsibilities
usually delegated to the Audit Committee to ensure the integrity of the financial staterments of the Company and
the independence of the auditor.

The Board reviews the audited annual and half-year financial statements and any reports which accompany
published financial statements and recommends their approval to the members. The Board also reviews annually
the appointment of the external auditor, their indepenclence and their fees.

The Board is also responsible for establishing policies on risk oversight and management. The Company has not
formed a separate Risk Management Committee due to the size and scale of its cperations.

3(b) External Auditors

The Company's policy is to appoint external auditors who clearly demonstrate quality and independence. The
performance of the external auditor is reviewed annually and applications for tender of external audit services are
requested as deemed appropriate, taking into consideration assessment of performance, existing value and tender
costs. Itis a legal requirement to rotate engagement partners on listed companies at least every five years.

An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors is provided in the notes to the financial statements in the financial
report.  There were no non-audit senvices provided by the auditors during the year.

There is no indemnity provided by the company to the auditor in respect of any potential liability to third parties.

The external auditor is requested to attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer shareholder
questions about the conduct of the audit and preparation and content of the audit report.

3c) Remuneration Committes

The role of a Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board in fulfiling its responsibilities in respect of establishing
appropriate remuneration levels and incentive policies for employees.

The Board has not established a separate Remuneration Committee due to the size and scale of its operations.
This does not comply with Recommendation 8.1 however the Board as a whole takes responsibility for such
issues.

The responsibilities include setting policies for senior officers remuneration, setting the terms and conditions
for the CEQ, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the Company's incentive schemes and
superannuation arrangements, reviewing the remuneration of both executive and non-executive directors and
undertaking reviews of the CEO's performance.

The Company has structured the remuneration of its senicr executive, where applicable, such that it comprises
a fixed salary, statutory superannuation and participation in the Company’s employee share option plan. The
Company believes that by remunerating senior executives in this manner it rewards them for performance and
aligns their interests with those of sharehclders and increases the Company’s performance.

CORPORATL GOVERNANCL STATEMENT
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Non-executive directors are paid their fees out of the maximum aggregate amount approved by shareholders
for non-executive director remuneration. The Company does not adhere to Recommendation 8.2 Box 8.2 ‘Non-
executive directors should not receive options or bonus payments’. The Company may, in the future, granted
options to non-axecutive directors. The Board is of the view that options (for both executive and non-executive
directors) are a cost effective benefit for small companies such as Scotgold Resources Limited that seek to
conserve cash reserves. They also provide an incentive that ulimately benefits both shareholders and the
optionholders, as optionholders will only benefit if the market value of the underlying shares exceeds the option
strike price. Ultimately, shareholders will make that determination.

The remuneration received by directors and executives in the current period is contained in the “Remuneration
Report” within the Directors’ Report of the Annual Report.

4, ETHICAL AND RESPONSIBLE DECISION MAKING
4Aa) Code of Ethics and Conduct

The Board endeavours to ensure that the Directors, officers and employees of the Company act with integrity and
observe the highest standards of behaviour and business ethics in relation to their corporate activities. The “Code
of Conduct” sets out the principles, practices, and standards of personal behaviour the Company expects people
to adopt in their daily business activities.

All Directors, officers and employees are required to comply with the Code of Conduct. Senior managers are
expectad to ensure that employees, contractors, consultants, agents and partners under their supervision are
aware of the Company’s expectations as set cut in the Code of Conduct.

All Directors, officers and employees are expected 10:
+ comply with the law;
act in the best interests of the Company;
be responsible and accountable for their actions; and

observe the ethical principles of fairness, honesty and truthfulness, including prompt disclosure of potential
conflicts.

4o) Palicy concerning trading in Company securities

The Company's “Dealings in Company Shares and Options Policy” applies to all Directors, officers and employees.
This policy sets out the restrictions on dealing in securities by people who work for, or are associated with the
Company and is intended to assist in maintaining market confidence in the integrity of dealings in the Company’s
securities. The policy stipulates that the only appropriate time for a Director, officer or employee to deal in the
Company's securities is when they are not in possession of price sensitive information that is not generally available
to the market.

As a matter of practice, Company shares may only be dealt with by Directors and officers of the Company under
the following guidelines:

- notrading is permitted in the period of 14 days preceding release of each quarterly report, half-yearly
report and annual financial report of the Company or for a period of 2 trading days after the release of such
report;
guidelines are to be considered complementary to and not replace the various sections of the
Corporations Act 2001 dealing with insider trading; and
prior approval of the Chairman, or in his absence, the approval of two directors is required prior to any
trading being undertaken.

4(c) Palicy concerning gender diversity

Scotgold is committed to establishing a policy concerning diversity and disclosure of the policy. The policy will
include requirements for the board to establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity and for the
Board to assess annually the objectives and report in the Annual Report.
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As a company with a small market capitalisation, the company has a small beard. The company has no
established policy in relation to gender diversity at present but is aware of the principle and will be alert for
opportunities when board changes are conternplated. Given the size of the company and the limited number of
employees, reporting the numbers of employees by gender is not regarded as a meaningful statistic.

5. IIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURI
5(a) Shareholder communication

The Company believes that all shareholders should have equal and timely access to material information
about the Company including its financial situation, performance, ownership and governance. The Company's
“ASX Disclosure Policy" encourages effective communication with its shareholders by requiring that Company
announcements:

be factual and subject to internal vetting and authorisation before issue;

be made in a timely manner;

not omit material information;

be expressed in a clear and objective manner to allow investors to assess the impact of the information

when making investment decisions;

be in compliance with ASX Listing Rules continuous disclosure requirements; and

be placed on the Company’s website promptly following release.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings. Copies of addresses by the Chairman or Chief
Executive Officer are disclosed to the market and posted on the Company's website. The Company’s external
auditor attends the Company’s annual general meeting to answer shareholder questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the audit report, the accounting policies adopted by the Company and the
independence of the auditor in relation to the conduct of the audit.

5(b) Continuous disclosure policy

The Company is committed to ensuring that shareholders and the market are provided with full and timely
information and that all stakeholders have equal opportunities to receive externally available information issued by
the Company. The Company’s “ASX Disclosure Policy” described in 5(a) reinforces the Company’s commitment to
continuous disclosure and outline management's accountabiliies and the processes to be followed for ensuring
compliance.

The policy also contains guidelines on information that may be price sensitive. The Company Secretary has

been nominated as the person responsible for communications with the ASX. This role includes responsibility for
ensuring compliance with the continuous disclosure requirements with the ASX Listing Rules and overseeing and
coordinating information disclosure to the ASX.

6. RECOGNISING AND MANAGING RISK

The Board is responsible for ensuring there are adequate policies in relation to risk management, compliance
and internal control systems. The Company’s policies are designed to ensure strategic, operational, legal,
reputation and financial risks are identified, assessed, effectively and efficiently managed and monitered to enable
achievement of the Company’s business objectives. A written policy in relation to risk oversight and management
has been established (“Risk Management and Internal Control Policy”). Considerable importance is placed on
maintaining a strong control environment. There is an organisation structure with clearly drawn responsibilities.

Gla) Board oversight of the risk management system

The Board is responsible for approving and overseeing the risk management systemn. The Board reviews, at least
annually, the effectiveness of the implementation of the risk management controls and procedures.
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The principle aim of the system of internal control is the management of business risks, with a view to enhancing
the value of shareholders’ investments and safeguarding assets. Although no system of internal control can
provide absolute assurance that the business risks will be fully mitigated, the internal control systems have been
designed to meet the Company’s specific needs and the risks to which it is exposed.

Annually, the Board is responsible for identifying the risks facing the Company, assessing the risks and ensuring
that there are controls for these risks, which are to be designed to ensure that any identified risk is reduced to an
acceptable level.

The Board is also responsible for identifying and monitoring areas of significant business risk. Internal control
measures currently adopted by the Board include:
- atleast quarterly reporting to the Board in respect of operations and the Company’s financial position, with
a comparison of actual resulls against budget; and
regular reports to the Board by appropriate members of the management team and/or independent
advisers, outlining the nature of particular risks and highlighting measures which are either in place or can
be adopted 1o manage or mitigate those risks.

6(b) Risk management roles and responsibilities

The Board is responsible for approving and reviewing the Company’s risk management strategy and policy.
Executive management is responsible for implementing the Board approved risk management strategy and
developing policies, controls, processes and procedures to identify and manage risks in all of the Company’s
activities.

The Board is responsible for satisfying itself that management has developed and implemented a sound system of
risk management and internal control.

Blc) Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, provide to the Board written certification that

in all material respects:

the Company's financial statements present a true and fair view of the Company's financial condition and
operational results and are in accordance with relevant accounting standards;

the statement given to the Board on the integrity of the Company’s financial statements is founded on a
sound systermn of risk management and internal compliance and controls which implements the policies
adopted by the Board; and

the Company's risk management an internal compliance and contral system is operating efficiently and
effectively in all material respects.

6(d) Internal review and risk evaluation

Assurance is provided to the Board by executive management on the adequacy and effectiveness of management
controls for risk on a regular basis.

7. OTHER INFORMATION

Further information relating to the company's corporate governance practices and policies has been made pubicly
available on the company’s web site at www.scotgoldresources.com
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Mann Judd

Accountants | Business and Financial Advisers

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

As lead auditor for the audit of the consclidated financial report of Scotgold Resources Limited for the year ended
30 June 2014, | declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:

a) the auditor independence requirements of the Corparations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

b) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation o the audit.

Y /N

Perth, Western Australia MR W Ohm
30 September 2014 Partner

HLBE Mann Judd (WA Partnership) ABN 22 193 232 714

Level 4 130 Stiring Straet Perth 6000 PO Box 8124 Perth BC 6349 Western Australia. Telephone +61 (08) 9227 7500, Fax +61 (08) 9227 7533,
Email: hb@hibwa.com.au, Website: htlp:/fawew. hib.corm.au

Liability imited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

HLB Mann Judd (WA Partnership} is a member of IIEE Intemational, a world-wide orgarisation of accounting firms and business acvisers
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

CONSOLIDATED

Notes
2014 2013
$ $

Revenue 2 20413 15,454
Administration costs (301,644) (354,575)
Interest expense (192,959) (103,350)
Depreciation and profit on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 3 {20,545) (26,234)
Employee and consultant costs (236,399) (371,000)
Listing and share registry cosls (199,137) (139,262)
Legal fees (93.416) (58,450)
Barrowing costs (5,545) (266,426)
Share based payments (121,154) {910,000
Office and communication costs (105,642) (156,322)
Other expenses (255,001) (281,132)
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX BENEFIT T (1511,029)  (2,651,297)
Income tax benefit 4 44,880 67,896
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (1,466,149) (2,683,401)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that may be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Exchange difference on translation of foreign subsidiaries {14,633) 680
Total comprehensive result for the year (1,480,782) (2,682,721)
Basic (loss) per share (cents per share) 23 (0.44) (1.28)

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 30 June 2014

CONSOLIDATED
Notes
2014 2013
$ $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 640,857 570,253
Trade and other receivables 3] 169,989 26,050
Other current assets H 13,026 24618
Total Current Assets 823,872 620,921
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 6 90,335 83,222
Plant and equipment 8 121,301 144 487
Mineral exploration and evaluation 9 13,894,769 13,348, 454
Total Non Current assets 14,106,405 13,576,163
TOTAL ASSETS 14,930277 14,197,084
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 10 353,598 331,085
Other current liabilities 10 69,060 119,286
Interest bearing liabilities 11 3,031,286 2,607,455
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,453,944 3,057,826
NET ASSETS 11,476,333 11,139,258
EQUITY
Issued capital 12 18,463,121 16,766,418
Reserves 13 978,169 871,648
Accurmulated losses 13 (7,964,957) (6,498,808)
TOTAL EQUITY 11,476,333 11,139,258

These financial staterments should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

CONSOLIDATED

Issued Accumulated Options Foreign Total
Capital Losses Reserve Currency Equity
Translation
Reserve
Year Ended 30 June 2013 $ $ $ $ $
Balance 1 July 2012 16,079,010 (3,915,407) - (46,032) 12,117,571
Placement 727,515 - - - 727,515
Options issued - - 917,000 - 917,000
Share issue expenses (40,107) - - - (40,107)
Total comprehensive result
for the year - (2,583,401) - 680 (2,582,721)
As at 30 June 2013 16,766,413 (6,498,808) 917,000 (45,352) 11,139,258
Year Ended 30 June 2014
Balance 1 July 2013 16,766,418 (6,498,808) 917,000 (45,352) 11,139,258
Placements {(Note 12) 925,270 - - = 925,270
Entitlements Issue 830,872 - - = 830,872
Options issued - 121,154 - 121,154
Share issue expenses (59,439) - - = (59,439)
Total comprehensive result
for the year . (1,466,149) - (14,633) (1,480,782)
As at 30 June 2014 18,463,121 (7,964,957) 1,038,154 (59,985) 11,476,333

These financial staterments should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 30 June 2014

CONSOLIDATED

Notes
2014 2013
$ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payment to suppliers (1,044,010) (1,184,916)
Interest income received 9,756 8,751
Net Cash Outflow From Operating Activities 19 (1,034,254) (1,176,165)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for exploration expenditure {596,402) (1,263,995)
Proceeds of disposal of other fixed assets 2,641 -
Net Cash Outflow From Investing Activities (593,761) (1,263,995)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares and options 1,756,142 727,515
Share and option issue transaction costs (59,439) (40,107)
Borrowings net of costs - 2,230,245
Net Cash Inflow From Financing Activities 1,696,703 2,917,653
Net increase in cash held 68,688 477,493
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash
equivalents 1,916 20,145
5?Qaasrh and cash equivalents at the beginning of this financial 570,253 72,615
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of this financial year 5 640,857 570,253

These financial staterments should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 33

54



10

34

Notes to and forming part of
the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2014

NOTE 1T = STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and Interpretations and comply with
other requiremnents of the law. Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The financial statements have also been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statements are
presented in Australian dollars.

The company is a listed public company, incorporated in Australia and operating in Australia and Scotland. The
entity’s principal activity is mineral exploration.

The accounting policies detailed below have been consistently applied to all of the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the consclidated entity consisting of Scotgold Resources and its
subsidiaries.

Reporting Basis and Conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a going concern,
which assumes the commercial realisation of the future potential of the Company’s assets and the discharge of
their liabilities in the normal course of business.

At 30 June 2014, the group had cash available of $6840,857, but had a working capital deficit of $2,630,072

due primarily to the loan from RMB Bank of $3,031,286. Subsequent to year end, the company completed a
placement of 56,874,933 fully paid ordinary shares at an issue price of $0.0075 to raise $426,562 and 18,765,318
fully paid ordinary shares at an issue price of $0.010 to raise $187,653.

Also subsequent to year end $1 million has been advanced to the Company under Convertible Note Agreements.
The funds raised by the Convertible Notes has been used as part-repayment of the RMB Facility as described
below and for working capital.

The RMB Facility has been partially repaid using funds advanced under the Convertible Notes such that the
£1,500,000 amount outstanding has been reduced by £320,000 to £1,180,000. Furthermore capitalised interest
outstanding on the facility has been settled.

The Board considers that the Company is a going concern and recognises that additional funding is required to
ensure that the Company can continue to fund its operations and further develop their mineral exploration and
evaluation assets during the twelve menth period from the date of this financial report. Such additional funding as
occurred during the year ended 30 June 2014 as disclosed in Note 12, can potentially be derived from either one
or a combination of the following:

The placement of securities under the ASX Listing Rule 7.1 or othenwise;

An excluded offer pursuant to the Corporations Act 2001; or

The sale of assets.
Accordingly, the Directors believe the Company will obtain sufficient funding to enable it and the consolidated entity

to continue as going concerns and that it is appropriate to adopt that basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial report.

However, the existence of the above conditions constitute a material uncertainty in relation to the company’s ability
to continue as a going concern and whather it will therefore realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities in the
normal course of business.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
Statement of Compliance
The financial report was authorised for issue on 30 September 2014.

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the financial report,
comprising the financial statements and notes thereto, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).

Adoption of new and revised standards
Changes in accounting policies on initial application of Accounting Standards

In the year ended 30 June 2014, the Directors have reviewed all of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the AASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual reporting
period.

It has been determined by the Directors that there is no impact, material or otherwise, of the new and revised
Standards and Interpretations on its business and, therefore, no change is necessary to consolidated entity
accounting paolicies.

The Directors have also reviewed all new Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the year ended 30 June 2014. As a result of this review the Directors have determined that there is no
impact, material or otherwise, of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations on its business and, therefore,
no change necessary to the consolidated entity's accounting palicies.

Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Consclidation

A controlled entity is any entity controlled by Scotgold Resources Limited. Control exists where Scotgold
Resources Limited has the capacity to dominate the decision-making in relation to the financial and operating
policies of another entity so that the other entity operates with Scotgold Resources Limited to achieve the
objectives of Scotgold Resources Limited. All controlled entities have a 30 June financial year-end.

All intercompany balances and transactions between entities in the consolidated entity, including any unrealised
profit or losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistencies with those policies applied by the parent entity.

Where controlled entities have entered or left the consolidated entity during the year, their operating results have
been included from the date control was obtained or until the date control ceased.

() Income Tax

The charge for current income tax expenses is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any non-assessable
or disallowable items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or are substantively enacted by the
balance date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liakility method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be
recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no
effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the statement of comprehensive income except where it relates to
iterns that may be creclited dlirectly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be available
against which deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the assumption that
no acverse change will occur inincome taxation legislation and the anticipation that the consolidated entity will
derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of
deductibility imposed by the law.
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{c} Plant and Equipment
Each class of plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impaimment losses.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by Directors to ensure it is not in excess of the
recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash
flows which will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows
have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

Subseqguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item wall flow to the consolidated entity and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Deprediation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including capitalised lease assets, but excluding computers, is
depreciated on a reducing balance commencing from the time the assel is held ready for use. Computers are
depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful lives to the consolidated entity commencing from the time the
asset is held ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset: Depreciation Rate:
Plant and Equipment 15 - 50%
The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance date.

An asset’s camying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s camying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and
losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included
in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

(d) Exploration and Evaluation Expenciture

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred is either written off as incurred or accumulated in respect of each
identifiable area of interest. Tenement acquisition costs are initially capitalised. Costs are only carried forward to
the extent that they are expected to be recouped through the successful development of the areas, sale of the
respective areas of interest or where activities in the area have not yet reached a stage which permits reasonable
assessment of the existence of economically recoverable reserves.

Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in full against profit in the year in which the
decision to abandon the areas is made.

When production commences, the accumulated costs for the relevant area of interest are amortised over the life of
the area according to the rate of depletion of the economically recoverable reserves.

A regular review is undertaken of each area of interast to determine the appropriateness of continuing to carry
forward costs in relation to that area of interest.

Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs necessitated by exploration and evaluation activities are
expensed as incurred and treated as exploration and evaluation expenditure.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
(e) Impaiment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Directors review the camying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether thera is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets, being the higher of the assst's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use, is compared to
the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the
staternent of comprehensive income.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the consolidated entity estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

) Provisions

Provisions are recognised where there is a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

(@) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

{h) Revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the
financial assets.

{i) Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Value Added Tax (VAT)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST or VAT, except where the amount
of GST or VAT incurred is not recoverable from the relevant authority. In these circurnstances the GST or VAT
is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item in expenses. Receivables and
payables in the staterment of financial position are shown inclusive of GST or VAT.

i lssued Capital

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the Company. Any
transaction costs arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the share
proceeds received.

(k) Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in
presentation for the current financial year.

{h Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments has been identified as the Board of Directors of Scotgold Resources
Limited.

(m) Share based payments — shares and options

The fair value of shares and share options granted is recognised as an expense with a coresponding increase in
equity. Fair value is measured at grant date and recognised over the period during which the grantees become
unconditionally entitied to the shares or share options.

The fair value of share grants at grant date is determined by reference to the share price at that time.

The fair value of share options at grant date is determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes
into account the exercise price, the term of the option, any vesting and performance criteria, the share price at
grant date, the expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free rate
for the term of the option.
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Upan the exercise of the option, the balance of the share-based payments reserve relating to the option is
transferred to share capital.

n) Foreign currency translation

Boeth the functional and presentation currency of Scotgold Resources Limited and its subsidiaries is Australian
dollars. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange
rates ruling at the dale of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance date.

All exchange differences in the consolidated financial report are taken to profit or loss with the exception of
differences on foreign currency borowings that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These
are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in profit or
loss.

Tax charges and crediits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings are also recognised in equity.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates al the
date when the fair value was determined.  Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

The functional currency of the foreign operation, Scotgold Resources is Pounds Sterling (£).

As at the balance date the assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency of
Scotgold Resources Limited at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance date and income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rate for the pericd, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantty during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.

The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity, being
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign entity, the defarred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to the partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control over

the subsiciary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-atiributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
jointly controlled entities that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

(o) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The application of accounting policies requires the use of judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readlily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Key Estimates - Impairment

The Directors assess impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the consclidated entity
that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key
estimates.
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Impairment of mineral exploration and evaluation

At 30 June 2014, the Group had capitalised mineral exploration and evaluation expenditure of $13,894,769 (2013:
$13,348,454). During the year, as part of the Company’s Notice of General Meeting lodged with ASX on 23 June
2014, a valuation was conducted of the Group's Cononish Gold and Silver Project by an independent valuer based
in the United Kingdom. This report was on a fair market value basis and was carried out in accordance with the
principles of the VALMIN code.

The valuation was determined upon the expected value method based upon discounted cash flow analysis which
was derived by applying a discount factor of 70% to the results of the DCF analysis to arrive at a fair market value
basis. The value was based upon a post-tax NPV of £7.91 million at a discount rate of 10% which after a discount
factor of 70% arrived at a fair market valuation of £2.4 million (equivalent to $4.4 million at 30 June 2014 spot rate).

AASB 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources requires an assessment of recoverable amount to be
completed whenever facts and circumstance suggest that the camying amount of an exploration asset may exceed
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is defined within AASE 136 Impairmment of Assets as the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Value-in-use is determined on a pre-tax basis and is the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash-generating unit.

As AASE 136 requires recoverable amount to be determined on the basis of the higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs to sell, the directors have instructed the independent valuers to prepare the recoverable amount
calculation on the basis of value-in-use. The value determined by the independent valuers on this basis is £11
million {$20 million at 30 June 2014 spot rate). This is in excess of the carrying value of the associated exploration
expenditures at 30 June 2014 and therefore, in accordance with AASB 136, no impairment has been recorded.

NOTE 2 — REVENUE

2014 2013
$ $

Revenue
Interest received 9,758 9,483
Other income 10,655 5,971
Total revenue 20,413 15,454
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NOTE 3 - LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAX EXPENSES

2013
$

266,426

266,426

19,910
6,288

26,234

2014
$
Expenses
Barrowing costs expensed 5,545
Total borrowing cost expensed 5,545
Depreciation of non-cument assets
Plant and Equipment 17,589
Mator vehicles 5,662
Office furniture and equipment 35
Total depreciation of non-current assets 23,186
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,641

NOTE 4 - INCOME TAX

The prima facie tax benefit at 30% on loss from ordinary activities is reconciled to the income tax benefit in the

2013
$

2,583,401

775,020

(273,000)
69,358
(67,896)
(265)

503,217

(436,321)

financial staternents as follows:

2014
$
Loss from ordinary activities 1,466,149
Prima facie income tax benefit at 30% 439,845

Tax effect of permanent differences
Share based payments (36,346)
Share Issue Costs amortised 48,772
R & D Tax Offset refund received {44,880)
Other non-deductible expenses {465)
Income tax benefit adjusted for permanent differenceas 406,926
Deferred tax asset not brought to account (362,046)
Income tax benefit 44,880

67,896
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INCOME TAX BENEFIT

The directors estimate the cumulative unrecognised deferred tax asset attributable to the company and its
controlled entity at 30% is as follows:

2014 2013
$ $

UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Revenue Losses after permanent differences 1,701,215 1,290,397
Capital Raising Costs yet to be claimed 30,845 39,232
1,732,060 1,329,629

The potential deferred tax asset has not been brought to account in the financial report at 30 June 2014 as the
Directors do not believe it Is appropriate to regard the realisation of the asset as probable. This asset will only be
obtained if:

(a) The company and its controlled entity derive future assessable income of an amount and type
sufficient to enable the benefit from the deductions for the tax losses and the unrecouped exploration
expenditure to be realised;

(b} The company and its controlied entity continue to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed
by tax legislation; and

(c) No changes in tax legislation adversely affect the company and its controlled entity in realising the
benefit from the deductions for the tax losses and unrecouped exploration expenditure.

Franking Credlits
No franking credits are available at balance date for the subsequent financial year.

NOTE 5 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2014 2013
$ $
Cash at bank and on hand 640,857 570,253
NOTE 6 — TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Current
GST / VAT receivable 37,626 22,624
Other receivables 132,363 3,526
169,989 26,050
Non-current
Bond on Tenement 90,335 83,222
NOTE 7 — OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments 13,026 24,618
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NOTE 8 — PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2014 2013
$ $
Plant and equipment

Cost 349,160 349,150
Accumulated Depreciation (227,849) (204,663}
121,31 144,487

Movement for the year
Opening balance 144,487 170,721
Additions - -
Disposals = =
Depreciation expensed (23,186) (26,234)
Closing balance 121,301 144,487

NOTE 9 — MINERAL EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION

Opening balance 13,348,454 12,084,602
Expenditure during the year 546,315 1,263,852
Closing balance 13,894,769 13,348,454

The ultimate recoupment of exploration expenditure carried forward is dependent upon successful developmeant
and commercial exploitation, or sale of the respective areas.

As disclosed on note 1{n), an impairment assessment was conducted during the year by an independent
valuer which indicated the value-in-use associated with the Cononish project was £11 million ($20 million at 30
June 2014 spot rate) and, as this is in excess of the related carrying amount in accordance with AASE 136 no
impairment has been recorded at 30 June 2014.

2014 2013
$ $

NOTE 10 = TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 353,598 331,085
Other accruals 69,060 119,286
422 658 450,371
Trade creditors and accruals relating to exploration expenditure 106,246 156,333
Trade creditors and accruals relating to administration 316,412 294,038
422,658 450,371

Trade crediitors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms (2013: 30 days).
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NOTE 11 — INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
Financing Agreements

Interest is charged at average LIBOR three months rate plus 5% for the first facility of £1.18m and at average LIBOR
three months rate plus 9.5% for the extension of £0.32m.

The loan is secured over the shares in the subsidiary company Scotgold Resources Limited (SC 309525) together
with a floating charge over the assets of that company.

The facility is fully drawn down at 30 June 2014 in the amount of £1,500,000, together with capitalised interest of
£177,817. The carrving value of the assets pledged as security is $20,257,816 at 30 June 2014.

NOTE 12 - ISSUED CAPITAI

2014 2013
$ $
(a) Issued capital
433,889,318 ordinary shares fully paid (2013: 211,565,739} 18,463,121 16,766,418
(b) Movements in ordinary share capital of the Company were as follows:
Date Details Shares Value $
{cents)
Balance at 30 June 2012 196,249,629 16,079,010
272012 Placement 15,318,110 4.7500 727,515
Transaction costs arising on share issugs : ) {40,107)
Balance at 30 June 2013 211,565,739 16,766,418
20¥09/2013  Placement 10,000,000 2.0000 200,000
06/01/2014  Entitlernents I1ssue 148,519,802 0.5000 742,599
23/01/2014  Entitlernents Issue Shortfall 17,654,502 0.5000 88,273
05/03/2014  Placement 90,000,000 0.7500 675,000
21/03/2014  Placement 6,149,275 0.8175 50,270
Transaction costs arising on share issues - (59,439)
483,889,318 18,463,121
(c) Movements in options were as follows:
Balance at 30 June 2012 - -
31/07/2012  Options issued — RMB borrowing costs v 26,222,222 785,000
10/10/2012  Options issued — Incentive options 2 3,000,000 =
7M2/2012 Options issued — Free attaching options & 15,316,110 -
TM2/2012 Options issued — Share issue costs # 163,161 7,000
9/04/2013 Options issued — RMB borrowing costs & 7111111 125,000
Balance at 30 June 2013 51,802,604 917,000
Options vesting - Incentive options 121,154
Options Expiring 7 June 2014 ) £1 5,316:1_1@_ ) -
Balance at 30 June 2014 36,486,494 1,038,154
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Option exercise dates and prices

Exercise on or before Exercise price
1+ 24 July 2015 £0.045
31 March 2022 $0.080
7 June 2014 £0.045
4 7 December 2015 £0.031
5 28 March 2016 £0.045

(d) Voting and dividend rights

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion to the
number of shares held.

At sharehclders mestings each ordinary share is enfitied to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each
sharehclder has one vote on a show of hands.

2014 2013
$ $
NOTE 13 - RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Accumulated Losses
Balance at beginning of the year 6,498,808 3,915,407
Met loss from ordinary activities 1,466,149 2,583,401
Balance at end of the year 7,964,957 6,498,808
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 45,352 46,032
Reserve arising on translation of foreign currency subsicliary 14,633 (B80)
Balance at end of the year 59,985 45,352
Share Option Reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 917,000 -
Reserve arising on Black Scholes valuation of options 121,154 917,000
Balance at end of the year 1,038,154 ) 217,000

Nature and purpose of reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial staternents of foreign subsidiaries.

Share Option Reserve

The share option reserve is used to record the assessed value of options issued.
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NOTE 14 — SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
During the current and prior year share based payments in the form of aptions were made as follows.

Grant Date

24/07 12
Tnanz
9/04/13
8Mnonz

Purpose of issue

RME borrowing costs

Share issue costs

RMB borrowing costs

Consultants incentive options

2014
Number

3,000,000

500,000

2014 2013
Value Number
$

- 26,222,222
153,161
7411111
8.0 -
33,486,494

2013
Value
cents

6.8
6.9
6.6

Caonsultants incentive options vest as shown below and for the purposes of valuing the share based payment the
total value is prorated using the number of days in the vesting period to 30 June 2014.

Values were derived using the Black Scholes madel using the following parameters:

Grant
Date

31/07/12
mmanz2
Y04/13
anonz
81012
8M10Mn2

Vesting
Date

31/0712
7212
9/04/13
31/03/13
31/03/14
31/03/15

Nurber

26,222,222
153,161
711,111
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

Volatility

124%
200%
124%
111%
111%
111%

No share options were exercised during the year.

Value
date

24/Q712
Q7/12/12
09/04/12
31/03/13
31/03/14
31/03/15

Expiry Price Non-
date (cents)  marketability
discount

24/12/15 6.8 30%
0vM2M1s 6.9 30%
28/03/16 6.6 30%
31/03/22 8.0 30%
31/03/22 8.0 30%
31/03/22 8.0 30%

Value
$

785,000
7,000
125,000
44,923
44,923
31,307

The share opfions cutstanding at the end of the year had a weighted average exercise price of 6.9 cents per
optlion (2013: 7.0 cents per option).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was 4.0 cents per option (2013: 2.7 cents per

option).
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NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
Mineral Tenement Leases
In order to maintain current rights of tenure to mining tenements, the consolidated entity will be required to outlay

in the year ending 30 June 2015 amounts of $58,250 in respect of minimum tenerment expenditure requirements
and lease rentals. The obligations are not provided for in the financial report and are payable as follows :

Minirmum Licence Fee Total
expenditure
$ § $
Not later than one year 27,000 31,250 58,250
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years 27,000 31,250 58,2560
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years 81,000 93,750 174,750
135,000 156,250 291,250

The Company has a number of avenues available to continue the funding of its current exploration program and as
and when decisions are made, the Company will disclose this information to shareholders.

NOTE 16 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has entered into a donations agreement with the Strathfillan Cormmunity Development Trust
("SCOT") pursuant to which the Company will work with SCDT to provide additional facilities and opportunities
for the community served by SCDT and provide funding in respect of the same of up to £350,000. This liability is
contingent upon starting the development as defined under the Planning conditions and Decision letter.

Scotgold Resources Limited and its controlled entities have no other known material contingent liabilities as at 30
June 2014,

NOTE 17 - INVESTMENT IN CONTROLLED ENTITY

Registered Country of Interest Held Value of

Number Incorporation investment
Parent 3
Scotgold Resources Limited 42127042773 Australia 100% N/A
Subsidiary
Scotgold Resources Limited SC 309525 Scotland 100% 5,491,881
Subsidiary of subsidiary
Fynegeld Exploration Limited SC 084497 Scotland 100% =
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NOTE 18 - SEGMENT INFORMATION
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of Scotgold Resources
Limited.

NOTE 19 - NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2014 2013
$ s

Reconciliation of loss after income tax to net operating cash flows
Loss from ordinary activities (1,466,149) (2,583,401)
Depreciation 23,186 26,234
Profit on sale of fixed assets (2.641) -
Borrowing costs - 266,426
Capitalised interest expense 423,832 110,784
Non-cash movement on reserves 121,154 917,000

(900,618) (1,262,957)

Movement in assets and liabilities

Receivables {151,052) 14382

Other current assets 11,592 -4,249

Payables 22,374 96,178

Revaluation effect of foreign currency working capital (16,549) (19,519)

Net cash used in operating activities (1,034,254) (1,176,165)
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NOTE 20 - KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

(a) Directors

The names and positions of Directors in office at any time during the financial year are;

In office from
John Bentley Non Executive Chairman 17/02/2009
Chris Sangster Managing Director 17/10/2007
Phillip Jackson Non Executive Director 14/08/2007

(b} Remuneration Polices

In office to

present
present
present

Remuneration policies are disclosed in the Remuneration Report which is contained in the Directors’ Report.

(c) Directors’ Remuneration

No salaries, commissions, bonuses or superannuation were paid or payable to Directors during the year.
Remuneration was by way of fees paid monthly in respect of invoices issued to the Company by the Directors
or Companies associated with the Directors in accordance with agreements between the Company and those

entities.

The Directors are entitled to reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred whilst on company business.

{d) The aggregate compensation made to key management personnel of the group is set out below.

Consolidated
2014 2M3
$ $

Short-term employee benefits 536,430 539,490
Post employment benefits -
Other long term benefits £
Share based payments = =

536,430 539,490

() Aggregate amounts payable to Directors and their personally related entities.

Consolidated
Entity
2014

$

Accounts payable 187,653

Consolidated
Entity
2013
$

73,305

SCOTGOLD ANNUAL REPORT | 2014

69



Notes to and forming part of
the Financial Statements | 10

For the year ended 30 June 2014

NOTE 21 - RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

Parent Entity Parent Entity
2014 2013
Transactions within the Consolidated Entity $ ]
Aggregate amount receivable within the consolidated entities at
balance date
Non-current receivables 14,765,935 13,880,255
NOTE 22 - REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS
Consolidated
2014 2013
$ &
Auditing and reviewing of the financial statements of Scotgold
Resources Limited and of its controlled entities. 33,100 30,650
33,100 30,650
NOTE 23 - 1 OSS PER SHARE
Consolidated
2014 2013
$ 3
Earnings used in calculation of earnings per share 1,466,149 5.583,401
Number Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year used in the calculation of basic loss per share 328,829,995 210,642 576

There are no potential ordinary shares on issue at the date of this report.

NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
() Financial Risk Management Policies

The consolidated entity’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and hire purchase liabilities.

The Board's overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the Group in meeting its financial targets, whilst
maintaining potential adverse effects on financial performance. The Group has developed a framework for a risk
management policy and internal compliance and control systems that covers the organisational, financial and
operational aspects of the group’s affairs. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring the maintenance of, and
compliance with, appropriate systems.

(b} Financial Risk Exposures and Management

The main risks the group is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk
and liquiclity risk.
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Interest Rate Risk

The consolidated entity's exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value will
fluctuate as a result of change in the market, interest rate and the effective weighted average interest rate on these
financial assats, is as follows:

Weighted Average Floating Interest Rate
Effective Interest Rate
2014 2013 2014 2013
$ $

Financial Assets
Cash at Bank 1.93% 1.09% 640,857 570,253
Trade and other receivables - - 260,324 109,272
Total Financial Assets 901,181 679,525
Financial Liabilities
RMEB Loan {(Note 11) 6.70% 5.25% 3,031,286 2,607 455
Trade and other payables - - 363,598 331,085
Total Financial Liabilities 3,384,84 2,938,540

The aggregate net fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the
staternent of financial position and in the notes to and forming part of the financial statements.
Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis relating to its exposure to interest rate risk. This sensitivity analysis
demonstrates the effect on the current year results and equity which could result in a change in these risks.

At 30 June 2014 the effect on the loss and equity as a result of a change in the interest rate of 1% with all other
variables remaining constant is not material.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures 1o exchange rate
fluctuations arise.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
reporting date is as follows:

Currency Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets
2014 2014 2013 2013
§ $ $ $
£ Sterling 3,338,417 175,824 2,994,003 257,230
Foreign currency

Other than translational risk the Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk at the balance date.
Liquidity Risk
The group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows.

At balance date the contracted maturity for the RMB loan of £1,500,000 was 11 August 2014.
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Subsequent to year end a partial repayment of the principal has been made and a re-negotiated contracted
maturity for the balance of the RME loan of £1,180,000 is on the earlier of capital raising of £2 million or
31 Decemnber 2015.

Credit Risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date, is the
carmying amount net of any provisions for doubtful debts, as disclosed in the statement of financial position and
notes to the financial statement.

In the case of cash deposited, credit risk is minimised by deposiling with recognised financial intermediaries such
as banks, subject to Australian Prudential Regulation Authority supervision.

The consolidated entity does not have any material risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors under
financial instruments entered into by it.

Capital Management Risk

Management controls the capital of the Group in order to maximise the return to shareholders and ensure that the
group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern.

Management effectively manages the Group’s capital by assessing the Group’s financial risks and adjusting
its capital structure in response to changes in these risks and in the market. These responses include the
management of expenditure and debt levels and share and option issues.

There have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to control capital of the Group since the
prior year.

Met Fair Values

For financial assets and liabilities, the net fair value approximates their carrying value. The consolidated entity has
no financial assets or liabilities that are readily traded on organised markets at balance date and has no financial
assets where the carrying amount exceeds net fair values at balance date.

NOTE 25 - MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

Other than as set out below there are no other matters or circumstances that have arisen after the balance date
that have significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the consdlidated entity, the results of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in future periods.

On 23 September 2014 the company announced the following
CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The company has entered into convertible note agreements (Convertitle Notes) on the terms and conditions
set outin the Company's Notice of Meeting dated 23 June 2014 (and approved by Shareholders at the General
Meeting on 30 July 2014).

$1 milion has been advanced to the Company under the Convertible Note Agreements. The funds raised by the
Convertible Notes will be used as part-repayment of the RMB Fagility as described below and for working capital.

The Convertible Notes have a repayment date of 24 months from their date of issue, with an interest rate of 1%
per annum. The hotders of the Convertible Notes may elect to convert the Convertible Notes (in part or in full) into
ordinary shares in the Company at a conversion price of $0.0075 per share. For every share issued on conversion
of the Convertible Notes, one free attaching option will be issued, exercisable at $0.012 on or before 31 March
2016. Full details of the Convertible Notes and attaching options were set out in the Company's Notice of Meeting
dated 23 June 2014.
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Notes to and forming part of
10 | the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014
PARTIAL REPAYMENT OF RMB FAGILITY

The RMB Facility has been partially repaid using funds advanced under the Convertible Notes such that the
£1,500,000 amount outstanding has been reduced by £320,000 to £1,180,000. Furthermore capitalised interest
outstanding on the facility has been settled.

EXTENSION OF RMB FACILITY

The remaining amount under the RMB Fagility Agreerment has been extended to 31 December 2015 in
consideration for:

(a the partial repayment of the RMB Facility set out in paragraph 2 above (such that the facility amount is
£1,180,000; and

) the issue to RMB Australia Holdings Ltd of 9,000,000 fully paid ordinary Scotgold Shares and 30,000,000
unlisted Opticns exercisable at 0.69 pence on or before 22 September 2017.

The Shares and Options have been issued under the Company’s Listing Rule 7.1 capacity.
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Notes to and forming part of
the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2014

NOTE 26 - PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES

Financial Position

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Total Current Assets
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiary
Loan to subsidiary

Total Non Current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payabies
Interest bearing loan

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY

Issued capital
Reserves

Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY
Financial Performance

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

2014 2013

$ $

530,256 358,954
117,792 4,735
648,048 363,689
6,143 6,567
5,491,881 5,491,881
8,580,077 7,970,120
14,078,100 13,468,568
14,726,148 13,832,257
218,373 85,576
3,031,286 2,607,455
3,249,659 2,693,031
11,476,489 11,139,226
22,540,613 20,843,909
1,038,154 917,000
(12,102,278) (10,621,652)
11,476,489 11,139,257
1,480,626 2 582,772
1,480,626 2,582,772

The parent entity has not entered into any guarantees in relation to debits of its subsidiaries, has no contingent
liabilities, and has no commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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Directors’ Declaration

In the opinion of the Directors of Scolgold Resources Limited (the ‘Company’):

(a) the accompanying financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001 including:

{i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June
2014 and of its performance for the year then ended; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001,
professional reporting requirements and other mandatory requirements.

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

{c) the financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

This declaration has been made after receiving the daclarations required to be made to the Directors in
accordance with Section 2954 of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2014,

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

CHRIS SANGSTER
Managing Director

Dated at Tyndrum, Scotland, this 30th day of September, 2014.

SCOTGOLD ANNUAL REPORT | 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report | 12

Mann Judd

Accountants | Business and Financial Advisers
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Scotgold Resources Limited

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Scotgold Resources Limited (“the company”}, which
comprises the consalidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and the directors’ declaration for the conselidated entity. The congolidated entity comprises the
company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2007 and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emror.

In Note 1, the directors also state, in acceordance with Accounting Standard AASE 101: Presentation of Financial
Staternents, that the financial report cormplies with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Australian Audiling Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements refating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstaternent of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal contral. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting pelicies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or management.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

HLBE Mann Judd (WA Partnership) ABN 22 193 232 714

Level 4 130 Stiring Street Perth 6000 PO Box 8124 Perth BC 62349 Western Australia, Telephone +61 (08) 8227 7500, Fax +61 (08) 9227 7533,
Email: hb@hibwa.com.au, Website: htlp:/fawew. hib.corm.au

Liability imited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

HLE Mann Judd (WA Partnership) is a member of m International, a world-wide organisation of accounting firms and business acvisers

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Independent Auditor’s Report

HLB Mann Judd

Accountants | Business and Financial Advisers

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.
Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion:

@ the financial report of Scotgold Resources Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

fii giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(il complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2007; and
() the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.
Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial report, which indicates that at 30 June
2014, the group had cash available of $640,857, but had a working capital deficit of $2,630,072 due primarily to
the loan from RMB Bank of $3,031,286. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue as

a going concern and therefore, the company may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the remuneration report included in the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2014.
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the remuneration report in
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2007. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion the remuneration report of Scotgold Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014 complies
with section 300A of the Corporations Act 20017.

Hi8 Manmn Tual ﬁ”ﬂu&‘/—\

HLB Mann Judd M R W Ohm
Chartered Accountants Partner

Perth, Western Australia
30 September 2014
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Shareholders Details

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING
Number of Shareholders
Shareholding ASX AlM Total
1 - 1,000 65 7 72
1,001 - 5,000 76 19 95
5,001 - 10,000 122 15 137
10,001 - 100,000 652 60 712
100,001 - ormore 215 75 290
1,129 176 1,305
Shareholding Number of Shares
1 - 1,000 13,202 3,080 16,262
1,001 - 5,000 266,012 43,714 309,726
5,001 - 10,000 1,023,551 112,849 1,136,400
10,001 - 100,000 24,072,932 2,274 462 26,347,394
100,001 - ormore 315,369,702 225,350,085 540,719,787
Total on Issue 340,745,399 227,784,170 568,529,569
Voting Rights

Article 16 of the Constitution specifies that on a show of hands every member present in person, by attorney or by
proxy shall have :

a) for every fully paid share held by him one vote

b) for every share which is not fully paid a fraction of the vate equal to the amount paid up on the share over
the nominal value of the shares

Substantial Shareholders
The following substantial shareholders have notified the Company in accordance with Corporations Act 2001,

Mr Nat le Roux 87,333,333 15.4%
Mr Richard Milne Harris 29,874,933 5.3%

Directors’ Shareholding
The interest of each director in the share capital of the Company is detailed in the Directors’ Report.

SHAREHOLDLRS DLTAILS
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13 | Shareholders Details

58

TOP TWENTY SHAREHOLDERS

Mr Nat le Roux

HSDL Nominees Limited

Barclayshare Nomineges Limited

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited — A/C 2
Golden Matrix Holdings Pty Ltd

TD Direct Investing Nominees (Europe) Limited <SMKTNOMS=>
Westland Group Holdings Pty Ltd

Hargreaves Lansdown (Nominees) Limited <15942>
Hargreaves Lansdown (Nominees) Limited <VRA>
Share Nominees Limited

Mr John Bentley

Mr Graham Donaldson & Mrs Christine Donaldson
Mr Peter John Newcomb

Investor Nominees Limited <WRAP>

Mr Richard Milne Harris

Secure Nominees Limited <SVCLT>

RME Australia Holdings Limited

HSDL Mominees Limited <MAXI>

Investor Nominees Limited <NOMINEE>

Mrs Dorita Maria Thomson

SCOIGOLD ANNUAL REPORT | 2014

Shares

87,333,333
27,149,655
22,918,856
21,065,480
19,874,933
17,597,191
17,500,000
16,116,224
13,982,504
12,807,276
12,545,603
11,851,786
10,417,855
10,059,091
10,000,000

9,995,000

9,000,000

7,068,673

6,719,386

6,305,916

350,288,562

%

15.4%
4.8%
4.0%
3.7%
3.5%
3.1%
3.1%
2.8%
2.5%
2.3%
2.2%
2.1%
1.8%
1.8%
1.8%
1.8%
1.6%
1.2%
1.2%
1.2%

61.6%
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Interest in Exploration Leases

Scotland
Locoin———— Ligromn———Jorwwone | e
Conoenish Glen Orchy Option Agreement 975 sq km
Glen Lyon | 5 1369sakm
Inverliever Option Agreement 5 November 2013 864 sq km
Option A 5AuUSL2013 676 5 km
Option Agreement 5 August 2013 426 sq km

Mining Leases in Scotland — general information

The mineral rights to gold and silver in most of Britain, including Scotland, are generally held by the Crown, In order
to explore for gold and silver, an option agreement is required to be concluded with the Crown which entitles the
holder to explore for gold and silver (subject to access agreements with the landowner (see below)) and on the
grant of planning permission (and other conditions), to take out a lease for exploitation of these metals.

Surface rights (and other minerals rights) are generally held by the landowner with whom access and lease
agreements must separately be obtained.

Mineral developments in Scotland are governed by the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act, with
responsibility for planning control exercised by the local Autherity. Statutory designations inform as to the
appropriate levels of environmental assessment to be carried out.

A .

JX Gold minesideposits Cononish Deposit

@ Operating goid mine 163,000 0z Au & 596,000 oz Ag B
Dalradian metamorphic el -

-oanmhxvd!hgwmhl L

" Major Caledonian faults

~| L Scotgold tenement boundary
Prepared under Canadian

M nstitute of Mining Metallurgy

and Pefroleum guidelines

‘.V

: — =
1,030,000 oz Au (JORC

Scotgold’s Grampian GafdPre}th licence areas in relation to regional geology and structures,
gold deposits and operating gold mines in Scotland and Ireland.

INTEREST IN EXPLORATION LEASES
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15 | Company Information - Scotland

Exploration Office

Nominated Adviser (NOMAD)

Share Registry

Auditor

Solicitors

Bankers

Media

60 SCOTGOLD ANNUAL REPORT | 2014

Upper Tyndrum Station
Tyndrum, Stirlingshire
Scotland

FK20 8RY

Phone +44(0) 183 840 0306

Westhouse Securities Limited
Heron Tower

110 Bishopsgate

London

EC2N 4AY

Phone +44(0) 207 601 6114

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS09 677

Phone +44(0) 870 703 6300

Scott-Moncrieff
Exchange Place 3
Semple Street
Edinburgh

EH3 BBL

Phone +44(0) 131 473 3500

Harper McLeod LLP
The Ca'd'oro
Glasgow

G13PE

Phone +44(0) 141 221 8888

Bank of Scotland
Shandwick Place
Edinburgh
EH11 1¥H

Phone +44{0) 870 850 1671

Bankside Consultants
6 Middle Street
London

EC1A

Phone +44(0) 207 367 8888
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SCOTGOLD

RESOURCES LIMITED

24 Colin Street, West Perth, WA 8005
Telephone +61 8 9222 5850
Facsimile 61 8 9222 5810
Email sgz@scotgoldresources.com
www.scotgoldresources.com
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Annexe 4d : Rapport d’audit associé au rapport d’activité de 2014

g
SCOTGOLD

RESOURCES LIMITED

ABN : 42127 042773
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SCOTGOLD

RESOURCES LIMITED

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN

Directors

Company Secretary

Registered Office

Share Registry

Auditor

Bankers

42127042773

John Bentley Executive Chairman
Chris Sangster CEO / Managing Director
Phillip Jackson Non-Executive Director

Peter Newcomb

24 Calin Street
Perth, VWA 6005

Telephone: +61 8 9222 5850
Facsimile: +61 8 9222 5810
Email: sgz@scotgoldresources.com

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd

Level 2, Reserve Bank Building
45 St Georges Terrace
Perth, WA 6000

Telephone: +61 8 9323 2000
Facsimile: +61 8 9323 2033

HLB Mann Judd
Level 4, 130 Stirling Street
Perth, VWA 6000

Telephone: +61 8 9227 7500
Facsimile: +61 8 9227 7533

Westpac Banking Corporation
116 James Street
Northbridge, VWA 6000

Securities Exchange Listing

Scotgold Resources Limited shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange and
on the AlM board of the London Stock Exchange.

The home exchange is Perth, Western Australia.

ASX Code: Shares SGZ
AlM Code: Shares SGZ
Website www . scotgoldresources.com.au
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SCOTGOLD

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

ABOUT SCOTGOLD

Australian Securities Exchange listed Scotgold Resources Limited (ASX:SGZ) was established in 2007 and listed
on the ASX in January 2008. The company's shares were admitted to trading on the AIM market of the London
Stock Exchange (AIM:SGZ) in February 2010. The Company’'s principal objective, since 2008, has been the
advancement of the Cononish Gold and Silver Project in Scotland’s Grampian Highlands to a production decision
and exploration of the highly prospective tenements comprising the Grampian Gold Project with the view of
identifying further project opportunities.

Scotgold has focused initially on the development of the Cononish Gold and Silver Project and has identified
resources (estimated in accordance with the JORC Code (2004)) in the Measured, Indicated and Inferred
categories (see later for breakdown) of 169,200 oz of gold and 631,300 oz of silver at 3.5g/t gold cut-off.

Subsequent to an initial rejection of its application for planning permission to develop the project in 2010, the
Company submitted a revised application and on 13th October 2011, the Director of Planning issued a report to the
Parks Board recommending approval of the application and at a special meeting on 25th October 2011, the Board
of the Parks Authority unanimously approved the application subject to the conclusion of various legal agreements
and agreement on a number of outstanding conditions. These were successfully concluded and on 15th February
2012, the Parks Board issued the Decision Letter granting planning permission for the development.

The Crown Estate Commissioners unconditional grant of the Crown Lease was confirmed in May 2012.

The Grampian Gold Project comprises Crown Option agreements of some 4,200km’ in the south west Grampians
of Scotland and covers some of the most prospective areas of the Dalradian geoclogical sequence in the UK. This
sequence extends westward from the UK to the eastern seaboard of Canada and the Appalachian belt in the US,
and eastward into Sweden and Norway, has been identified by the British Geological Survey as being highly
prospective for both significant gold and base metal deposits. On a more local scale, the Dalradian sequence
extends to the south west from Scotland into Northern Ireland where it hosts other gold resources at Cavancaw (c.
0.5 Moz of gold) and Curraghinalt {c. 3.5M oz of gold).

The Company is conducting a regional stream sediment sampling program over the wider Grampian gold project
area whilst continuing to evaluate a number of previously identified high grade outcrops in the vicinity of the
Cononish project.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

CONONISH GOLD AND SILVER PROJECT
Resources

Subsequent to the grant of planning permission in February 2012 and as a result of discussions with potential
financiers to the project, the Company embarked on an 18 hole (2200m) infill drilling program aimed at converting
Inferred resources to Indicated resources which was completed in October 2012. Full details of the results from the
infill program were announced in the press release of 8/10/2012 - Drilling Results.

Based on the results of the infill driling program, Dr Simon Dominy of Snowden Mining Industry Consultants Pty
Ltd (Snowden) compiled an updated Resource estimate reported in accordance with the JORC 2004 Code.

Table 1 below shows the revised Mineral Resource estimate as announced in the press release of 14/11/2012 —
Cononish Resource Update. The table also serves as the Company’s Annual Mineral Resource statement.

Table 1: Annual Mineral Resource Statement as at 30/06/2014

Scotgold Resources Limited Page 4
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Cononish Main Vein Gold and Silver Mineral Resources (reported at a 3.5 g/t Au cut-off) compiled 14/11/12.

Reported using the 2004 JORC Code (JORC, 2004). Tonnages and contained ounces rounded to the nearest 100t
or 100 oz. Gold grade rounded to the nearest 0.1 g/t Au. The Inferred Resource grade is reported with a grade
range to indicate the likely upside due to the information effect.

Classification Tonnes (t) Grade (g/t) Ounces (02) Grade (g/t) Ounces (0z)
Gold Gold Silver Silver
Measured (M) 53,100 141 24,000 61.2 104,500
Indicated (1) 142,900 12.7 58,600 49.9 229,500
Total M. and . 196,000 13.1 82,600 53.0 334,000
Inferred 264,600 102 {(10-15) 86,600 34.9 297,300

Scotgold Note: Incorporating the grade range, the Inferred Mineral Resource is estimated to lie between 85,000
0z Au and 127,000 oz Au. It should be noted that any upside may not exist or it may only be present in a portion of
the resource.

Note: This information was prepared and first disclosed under the JORC Code 2004. it has not been
updated since to comply with the JORC Code 2012 on the basis that the information has not materially
changed since it was last reported.

There has been no change to the reported Mineral Resources between 30/06/2013 and 30/06/2014, which as at
30/06/2013, totalled including Measured, Indicated and Inferred categories, 460,600t @ 11.7g/t Au and 45g/t Ag.

The results from the 2012 infill program, importantly, substantiated and increased the grades and tonnages in
previously classified Inferred category blocks with an increase in tonnage of 15.9% and 16.5% in contained ozs in
the blocks impacted and give significant encouragement to the Board regarding confidence in the potential
conversion of other Inferred blocks which may occur as future mine development progresses.

In addition to the currently defined resources, Scotgold believes that there is potential to define further resources
close to the Cononish mine, subject to appropriate further work. The extensive gold-in-soil anomalies,
mineralisation associated with outcrops and trenching and geophysical anomalies in close proximity to the current
resource clearly warrant further follow up during the development stage. Much of this potential is based on the
along strike and down dip extensions of the Cononish vein, but there are indications that other reefs are present in
the area too. At this stage, such figures are highly conceptual and there is no guarantee that further exploration will
define additional resources.

Ore Reserves

There are no Ore Reserves estimated in terms of the JORC (2012) code as at 30/06/2014.

Reserves reported in 2013 under the JORC 2004 code are no longer applicable. As noted in the following section
and subsequent to its internal review of both Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves, the Company is examining a
number of different options and possible configurations for the project and has deemed it appropriate to update
both Minerals Resources and Ore Reserves to comply with the JORC (2012) code when this work has been
concluded.

Project status

Scotgold Resources Limited Page 5
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In order to facilitate financing under current market conditions, the Company, in conjunction with its consultants,
have continued to examine and evaluate possible alternative configurations for the Cononish Gold and Silver
Project with a view to optimising returns and attempting to reduce the initial capital expenditure and the overall
funding requirement to bring the project to production.

The initial options considered to date have considered varied processing rates, strategic mining sequences and
mining selectivity. These options remain under current review and a number of other options relating to
construction, commissioning and production build up periods, as well as plant configuration, are currently being
considered for further examination and evaluation before a preferred development option can be finalised.

From the initial options considered, it was apparent that a change to the current planning condition (Condition 13)
regarding the hours of operation of the processing plant presented an attractive opportunity to be actively pursued.
Current planning conditions restrict hours of operation of the processing plant from 07h00 to 23h00 Mondays to
Saturdays with no processing on Sunday or recognised Scottish public holidays. A change to 24/6 operations
(though still with no processing on Sunday or recognised Scottish public holidays) would enable a significant
decrease in the ‘name plate’ plant houry throughput rate, whilst maintaining previously considered annual
production rates, with attendant possible capital reductions for the processing plant and associated infrastructure.

To this end, the Company held a number of discussions with the Loch Lomond and the Trossachs National Park
Planning Authority (“the Planning Authority”). Scotgold submitted a formal letter to the Planning Authority
requesting pre-application advice regarding variation to this condition. The Company has received the response
and recently conducted a site visit with the Planning Authority and relevant other authorities in this regard and plan
to submit the requisite application to vary this condition shortly.

Contingent to continuing progress made towards varying this condition, the Company continues to assess other
potentially beneficial options for the project.

The Company is in discussion with possible plant suppliers regarding the capital costs and financing of the possible
smaller facility and is in negotiations relating to supplier financing for the mining equipment required with the aim of
achieving further reductions in the initial capital expenditure.

The decision notice granting planning permission to the project issued by the Planning Authority on 13 February
2012 required a number of ‘suspensive’ conditions to be satisfied prior to the start of development. All submissions
have been made (excluding those to be made immediately prior to the start of development) and 64% of the
conditions have been discharged. Finalisation of these discussions relating to the outstanding conditions already
submitted, has been put on hold pending the application to vary condition 13 and further progress towards
completing finance for the project.

The Company submitted an application for a licence under the Water Environment {(Controlled Activities)
Regulations 2011 (CAR regulations) relating to proposed burn diversion works and all necessary permitting for
these works has been granted by the Scottish Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA).

In January 2013, AMEC Earth and Environmental ({AMEC) commenced detailed engineering design of the Tailings
Management Facility. Final designs and tender documents were at an advanced stage with six companies pre-
qualified to tender for the construction works before work was halted. It is estimated that this work can be rapidly
completed on financing without impacting the development schedule.

As such, all necessary permitting has either been granted or can be completed within a short time frame, subject to
the approval for the variation of condition 13 (Limitation of working hours) as noted above and engineering design
work is at a stage where it can be rapidly finalised on securing finance thus ensuring a rapid start to development.

Given the advanced state of project development, the Company believe Canonish could be in production within 18
months of abtaining financing.

GRAMPIAN GOLD PROJECT

Scotgold Resources Limited Page 6
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The Company continues to actively pursue exploration activities on its substantial land position in the Dalradian
group of the south west Grampians, a terrain highly prospective for both gold and potential base metal
occurrences. The majority (85%) of the area currently under option to Scotgold is located outside the Loch Lomond
and the Trossachs National Park.

The company’s strategy has been to advance the Cononish Project to production whilst conducting early stage
regional exploration over the wider Grampian Gold project area in conjunction with follow up work on the more
advanced prospects close to the Cononish project area.

The Grampian Gold project encompasses a large area of the highly prospective Dalradian sequence. Basic
exploration data, including gravity and airborne magnetics, is available from government surveys carried out
between 1950s and 1970s but is of a quality and spacing that does not adequately reflect the prospectivity of the
area. This and the general lack of previous exploration over the area (other than early stage exploration in the
vicinity of the Cononish project) has dictated the Company's approach to exploration.

In order to advance its understanding of the regional setting, over the past three years, the Company has
embarked on a regional scale stream sediment sampling program.

In the initial wide spaced regional program, in excess of 750 stream sediment samples were taken over the area.
Initial interpretation of these results continues and this program is now being followed up by a more detailed infill
sampling program in the anomalous result areas in order to further target areas for detailed fieldwork and
prospecting. To date a further 250 samples have been taken in the infill program with a further 237 to be taken.

In parallel with this regional program, Scotgold continues to evaluate previously identified high grade outcrop
samples identified by previous exploration close to the Cononish project.

Initially, the company conducted a re-sampling program to verify previously identified occurrences and the program
confirmed the presence of a large number of high grade gold [ silver vein outcrops in an area located between two
major regional faults, the Tyndrum — Glen Fyne fault and the Ericht - Laidon fault and associated with the fractures
probably generated by movements along these faults.

Considerable follow up work has been carried out to examine the extent of these occurrences through further
fieldwork, detailed rock chip sampling, initial short surface drilling and (in some cases) deeper diamond drilling and
the Company believe that further significant exploration expenditure is justified on many of these prospects when
financing is available. The most advanced of these prospects include

1) the River Vein area - diamond drilling below exceptionally high grade surface rock chip samples has
proved structural continuity of a vein structure to a depth of approximately 100m and a similar strike extent
as defined by current drilling and remains open along strike and at depth: this warrants further diamond
drilling {see Press Release — Exploration Progress at River Vein — 30/01/2012).

2) the Sron Garbh mafic / ultramafic complex — short surface drilling intersected highly anomalous grades of
Gaold, Platinum, Palladium, Copper Nickel and Cobalt, in and close to the ‘Gabbroic / Appinitic’ zone of the
complex. Mineralisation is seen to be contained in ‘sulphide blebs’ in a leopard rock’ textured zone. These
characteristics are diagnostic of the worldwide ‘magmatic Cu — Ni — PGE — Au’ group of deposits
associated with mafic / ultramafic intrusives such as Aguablanca in Spain, certain parts of the Sudbury
mines in Ontario, Canada; Voisey's Bay in Labrador Canada and Lac des Isles in Quebec, Canada. Such
deposits occur as sulphide concentrations (massive through to disseminated sulphides) associated with a
variety of mafic and ultramafic magmatic rocks (see Press Release — Highly Anomalous Platinum Group
Metals Gold and Base metals — 07/03/2012).

3) the Auch 7 Beinn Odhar veins — shallow surface drilling below one of the identified high grade outcrops
confirmed its prospectivity and a considerable number of the other currently identified outcrops require
initial short surface drilling as a precursor to further more intensive drilling.

As an adjunct to field activities, Scotgold has over the past four years co-sponsored a doctoral research project to
investigate gold occurrences in the area in addition to a number of related MSc dissertations on various aspects of

Scotgold Resources Limited Page 7

91



1y
SCOTGOLD

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

the mineralisation in the Tyndrum area. The results from these research projects are being assessed in relation to
future exploration activity.

The Company believe that the next phase of exploration in the central “Tyndrum’ option area should compromise
an airborne geophysical survey in order to assess the nature and continuity of the structural regime in this area with
a view to determining its potential to host similar ‘Cononish style’ deposits. Results from the infill stream sediment
sampling program will guide further exploration effort in areas outside the immediate Cononish area.

Competent Persons Statement:

The information in this report that relates to Exploration Resufts is based on information compiled by Mr David
Catterall. Pr Sci Nat, who is a member of the South Africanr Council for Natural Scientific Professions. Mr Catterall
is employed as a consuffant fo Scotgold Resources Ltd. Mr Catterall has sufficient experierice which is relevant fo
the stvle of mineralisation and type of deposit under consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking fo
qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2012 Edition of the ‘Australasian Code for Reporting of
Expioration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves’. Mr Catterall consents to the inciusion in the report of
the matters based on his information in the form and context in which it appears.

The Information in this report that refates to Mineral Resources is based on resource estimates compiied by
EurGeol Dr Simon Dominy FAusIMM (CP), FGS (CGeo!), FIMMM, Executive Consuitant with Snowden based in
the Loondon, UK Office. Dr. Dominy has sufficient experience that is relevant to the style of deposit under
consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking to qualify as Competent Person as defined in the 2012
Edition of the Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Resuilts, Minerai Resources and Ore reserves. Dr
Dominy conserits to the inclusion in the report of the matters based on this information in the form and context in
which # appears.

Subsequent events

As announced on 22 September (see Press Release 24/09/2014 - Company Update for full details), the Company
entered into the convertible note agreements (Convertible Notes) on the terms and conditions set out in the
Company’s Notice of Meeting dated 23 June 2014 and approved by Shareholders at the General Meeting on 30 July
2014.

AUD$1 million has been advanced to the Company under the Convertible Note Agreements. The funds raised by the
Convertible Notes has been used as part-repayment of the RMB Facility as described below and the balance will be
used for working capital.

The Company announced that the RMB Facility has been partially repaid using funds advanced under the
Convertible Notes such that the £1,500,000 amount outstanding has been reduced by £320,000 to £1,180,000.
Furthermaore capitalised interest outstanding on the facility has been settled.

The Company also announced that remaining amount under the RMB Facility Agreement has been extended to 31
December 2015 in consideration for:

(a) the partial repayment of the RMB Facility set out in paragraph 2 above (such that the facility amount is
£1,180,000; and

(b) the issue to RMB Australia Heoldings Ltd of 9,000,000 fully paid ordinary Scotgold Shares and 30,000,000
unlisted Options exercisable at 0.69 pence on or before 22 September 2017.

The Shares and Options have been issued under the Company’s Listing Rule 7.1 capacity.

Tenement details
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The Company holds a Lease (100%) from the Crown Estate Commissioners over Cononish Fam, County of Perth,
Scotland UK.

The Company holds a Lease (100%) from the landowner over Cononish Farm, County of Perth, Scotland UK.

The Company holds five Mines Royal Option Agreements (100%) with the Crown Estate Commissioners as
detailed below:

Glen Orchy: Location — counties of Perth and Argyll, Scotland UK

Glen Lyon: Location — counties of Perth and Argyll, Scotland UK

Inverliever: Location — counties of Dunbarton, Argyll and Perth, Scotland UK
Knapdale: Location — county of Argyll, Scotland UK

Ochils: Location — county of Clackmannan, Perth, Kinross and Stirling, Scotland UK
No tenements were acquired or disposed of during the quarter

No other beneficial interests are held in any farm-in or farm-out agreements

No other beneficial interests in farm-in or farm out agreements were acquired or disposed of during the quarter
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Your Directors submit their report on the consolidated entity consisting of Scotgold Resources Limited and its
controlled entities (“Scotgold”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

DIRECTORS

The following persons were Directors of Scotgold Resources Limited during the whole of the financial year and up
to the date of this report unless otherwise stated;

In office from In office to
John Bentley Executive Chairman 17/02/2009 present
Chris Sangster Chief Executive Officer 17/10/2007 present
Phillip Jackson MNon Executive Director 14/08/2007 present

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

John Bentley Executive Chairman B.Tech {Hons) Brunel University

Qualifications and experience

Mr Bentley has over 40 years experience in the natural resources sector. He was Managing Director of Gencar’'s
Brazilian mining company, Sao Bento Mineracao, from 1988 to 1993 when he became Chief Executive of Engen’s
Exploration & Production division. In 1996 he was instrumental in floating Energy Africa Ltd on the Johannesburg
stock exchange and became Chief Executive for the following five years building it into one of the leading African
independent oil and gas companies.

More recently Mr Bentley was Executive Chairman of FirstAfrica Oil plc and a Non-Executive Director of Adastra
Minerals Ltd. He currently serves on the board of a number of resource companies including as Chairman of Faroe
Petroleum Plc, Deputy Chairman of Wentworth Resources Ltd and Non-Executive Director of Kea Petroleum Plc.
IMr Bentley holds a degree in Metallurgy from Brunel University.

Interest in Shares and Options

Fully Paid Shares 13,703,728

Special Responsibilities

Overall strategic guidance and UK Capital markets.

Directorships held in ASX listed entities

None
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Christopher Sangster CEO / Managing Director BSc (Hons), ARSM, GDE
Qualifications and experience

Mr Sangster is a mining engineer with over 30 years experience in the mining industry. He has a Bachelor of
Science (Honours) Degree in Mining Engineering from the Royal School of Mines, Imperial College in London and

a GDE in Mineral Economics from the University of Witwatersrand. He currently lives close to the Company’s
exploration licences at Comrie in Scotland with his wife and family.

Mr Sangster's career covers extensive production and technical experience at senior levels in both junior and multi-
national companies in gold, diamonds and base metals in Africa, UK and Canada and covers a wide range of
mining applications.

Between 1996 and 1999 Mr Sangster was General Manager for Caledonia Mining Corporation for the Cononish
Gold Project and a Director of Fynegold Exploration, where he was responsible for all aspects of the project
including feasibility study preparation, project due diligence, finance negotiations, exploration initiatives and
planning permission applications.

After 1999, Mr Sangster moved to the Zambian Copperbelt with Anglo American Plc / KCM Plc where he attained
the position of Vice President of Mining Services and in 2005 joined Australian Mining Consultants as a Principal
Mining Engineer. More recently, Mr Sangster was employed as General Manager for AIM — listed company
European Diamonds Plc.

Interest in Shares and Options

Fully Paid Shares 16,744,153

Special Responsibilities

Mr Sangster is the CEQO / Managing Director and is responsible for the day to day running of the company.
Directorships held in listed entities

None

Phillip Jackson Non-executive Director BJuris LLB MBA FAICD

Qualifications and experience

IMr Jackson is a barrister and solicitor with over 25 years legal and international corporate experience, especially in
the areas of commercial and contract law, mining law and comporate structuring. He has worked extensively in the
Middle East, Asia and the United States of America. In Australia, he was formedy a managing legal counsel for
Western Mining Corporation, and in private practice specialised in small to medium resource companies.

Mr Jackson was Managing Region Legal Counsel: Asia-Pacific for Baker Hughes Incorporated for 13 years. He is
now Legal Manager for a major international oil and gas company. He has been a Director of a number of
Australian public companies, particularly mining companies. He has been Chairman of Aurora Minerals Limited

since it listed in 2004 and Desert Energy Limited, since it listed in August 2007.

His experience includes management, finance, accounting and human resources.
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Interest in Shares and Options

Fully Paid Shares 4.331,250
Special Responsibilities

Mr Jackson is Chairman of the Audit Committee and is responsible for legal matters.

Directorships held in listed entities

Company Name Appointed

Aurora Minerals Limited 24 September 2003

Desert Energy Limited 12 December 2006

Peter Newcomb Company Secretary FCA (ICAEW)

Qualifications and experience

Mr Newcomb is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and VWales and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia with over thirty five years professional and commercial experience.

He has worked in a number of industries and locations including London, Scotland, Singapore and Perth. The
majority of his experience over the last fiteen years has been in the resources industry in Western Australia. Mr
Newcomb is also Finance Director and Company Secretary of Taruga Gold Limited and Company Secretary of
Athena Resources Limited.

SHARES UNDER OPTION

At the date of this report unissued shares of the Company under option are:

Number of shares under option Exercise price Expiry date
3,000,000 $0.080 31 March 2022
26,222,222 £0.045 24 July 2015
153,161 £0.031 7 December 2015
711,11 £0.045 28 March 2016
50,000,000 $0.012 31 March 2015
30,000,000 $0.069 22 September 2017

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A review of the operations of the consclidated entity during the financial year is contained in the Review of
Operations section of this Financial Report. The Company's strategy in Scotland continues to focus on advancing
the 100% owned Cononish Gold and Silver Project to production whilst continuing to explore its large, highly
prospective land position around Cononish and elsewhere in Scotland which extends to some 4,300km2.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the consolidated entity during the year was mineral exploration in Scotland.
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Operating Results

The consolidated loss after income tax for the financial year was $1,466,149 (2013: $2,583,401).
Financial Position

At 30 June 2014 the Company had cash reserves of $640,857 (2013: $570,253).

Dividends

No dividends were paid during the year and no recommendation is made as to dividends.
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity
that occurred during the financial year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report or in the consolidated
financial statements.

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
On 23 September 2014 the company announced the following
1. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The company has entered into convertible note agreements (Conwvertible Notes) on the terms and conditions set
out in the Company’s Notice of Meeting dated 23 June 2014 (and approved by Shareholders at the General
Meeting on 30 July 2014).

AUD$1 million has been advanced to the Company under the Convertible Note Agreements. The funds raised by
the Convertible Notes has been used as part-repayment of the RMB Facility as described below and the balance
will be used for working capital.

The Convertible Notes have a repayment date of 24 months from their date of issue, with an interest rate of 1% per
annum. The holders of the Convertible Motes may elect to convert the Convertible Motes (in part or in full) into
ordinary shares in the Company at a conversion price of AUD$0.0075 per share. For every share issued on
conversion of the Convertible Notes, one free attaching option will be issued, exercisable at AUD$0.012 on or
before 31 March 2016. Full details of the Convertible Notes and attaching options were set out in the Company’s
Notice of Meeting dated 23 June 2014.

2. PARTIAL REPAYMENT OF RMB FACILITY

The RMB Facility has been partially repaid using funds advanced under the Convertible Notes such that the
£1,500,000 amount outstanding has been reduced by £320,000 to £1,180,000. Furthermore capitalised interest
outstanding on the facility has been settled.

3 EXTENSION OF RMB FACILITY

The remaining amount under the RMB Facility Agreement has been extended to 31 December 2015 in
consideration for:

(a) the partial repayment of the RMB Facility set out in paragraph 2 above (such that the facility amount is
£1,180,000; and
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(b) the issue to RMB Australia Holdings Ltd of 9,000,000 fully paid ordinary Scotgold Shares and 30,000,000
unlisted Options exercisable at 0.69 pence on or before 22 September 2017.

The Shares and Options have been issued under the Company’s Listing Rule 7.1 capacity.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

The Company intends to continue its exploration activities with a view to the commencement of mining operations
as soon as possible.

Further information on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results of
operations have not been included in this report because the Directors believe it would be likely to result in
unreasonable prejudice to the Company.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The following table sets out the humber of meetings of the Company’s Directors held during the year ended 30
June 2014, and the number of meetings attended by each Director. These meetings included matters relating to
the Remuneration and Nomination Committees of the Company.

Number eligible Number
to attend attended

John Bentley 2 2
Chris Sangster 2 2
Phillip Jackson 2 2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is comprised of Mr Jackson whao chaired one meeting of the audit committee during the year
ended 30 June 2014.

REMUNERATION REPORT (audited)

This report details the nature and amount of remuneration for each director and executive of Scotgold Resources
Limited.

The information provided in the remuneration report includes remuneration disclosures that are required under
Accounting Standards AASB 124 “Related Party Disclosures”. These disclosures have been transferred from the
financial report and have been audited.

Remuneration policy

The board policy is to remunerate Directors at market rates for time, commitment and responsibilities. The Board
determines payments to the Directors and reviews their remuneration annually, based on market practice, duties
and accountability. Independent external advice is sought when required. The maximum aggregate amount of
Directors’ fees that can be paid is subject to approval by shareholders in general meeting, from time to time. Fees
for Mon-Executive Directors are not linked to the performance of the consolidated entity. Howewver, to align
Directors’ interests with shareholders’ interests, the Directors are encouraged to hold securities in the Company.

The Company's aim is to remunerate at a level that will attract and retain high-calibre Directors and employees.
Company officers and Directors are remunerated to a level consistent with size of the Company.
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All remuneration paid to key management personnel is valued at the cost to the company and expensed.
Performance-based remuneration

The company does not pay any performance-based component of salaries.

Details of remuneration for year ended 30 June 2014

Directors’ Remuneration

No salaries, commissions, bonuses or superannuation were paid or payable to Directors during the year.
Remuneration was by way of fees paid monthly in respect of invoices issued to the Company by the Directors or
companies associated with the Directors in accordance with agreements between the Company and those entities.

Details of the agreements are set out below.
Agreements in respect of remuneration of Directors:
Executive Directors

Chris Sangster is on a contract dated 28 January 2009 which provides for a fixed salary and benefits, with a
termination period of six months. John Bentley (through Ptarmigan Natural Resources Ltd) is on a contract dated
17 February 2009 which provides for a fixed fee, with a termination period of six months. In both cases the
remuneration is reviewed annually. At the date of this report the annual remuneration for Chris Sangster is
£132,000 and for John Bentley is £33,000. In the event of a termination of contract giving less notice than provided
for in these contracts, the remaining notice period will be paid in full.

Non-Executive Directors

The Company’s constitution provides that the Non-Executive Directors may collectively be paid as remuneration for
their services a fixed sum not exceeding the aggregate sum determined by a general meeting. The aggregate
remuneration has been set at an amount of $300,000 per annum. A Director may be paid fees or other amounts as
the Directors determine where a Director performs special duties or otherwise performs services outside the scope
of the ordinary duties of a Director. A Director may also be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses incurred as a
result of their directorship or any special duties. Executive Directors may be paid on commercial terms as the
Directors see fit.
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The total remuneration paid to key management personnel is summarised below:

Director/Secretary Associated Company Fees Consulting Total
$ 5 $
Year ended 30 June 2013
John Bentley Ptarmigan Natural Resources Ltd 24,000 40,617 84,617
Chris Sangster - 211,023 211,023
Phillip Jackson Holihox Pty Ltd 50,000 - 50,000
Shane Sadleir Mineral Products Holdings Pty Ltd 43750 - 43,750
Peter Newcomb Symbios Pty Ltd - 170,100 170,100
117,750 421,740 539,490
Year ended 30 June 2014
John Bentley Ptarmigan Natural Resources Ltd 91,982 91,082
Chris Sangster - 241,348 241,348
Phillip Jackson Holihox Pty Ltd 33,000 33,000
Peter Newcomb Symbios Pty Ltd - 170,100 170,100
124,982 411,448 536,430
Key management personnel share holding
Balance 30 Purchase and Date of Balance 30
June 2012 Sales resignation June 2013
John Bentley 1,462,500 500,000 = 1,962,500
Chris Sangster 6,438,250 = = 6,438,250
Phillip Jackson 2,187,500 (1,437,500) - 750,000
Shane Sadleir 14,603,481 362,500 14,965,981 -
Peter Newcomb 2,277,968 510,000 - 2,787,968
26,969,699 (65,000) 14,965,981 11,938,718
Balance 30 Purchase and Date of Balance 30
June 2013 Sales resignation June 2014
John Bentley 1,962,500 1,471,875 - 3,434,375
Chris Sangster 6,438,250 4,828,688 - 11,266,938
Phillip Jackson 750,000 562,500 - 1,312,500
Peter Newcomb 2,787,968 7,466,545 - 10,254,513
11,838,718 14,329,608 - 26,268,326

Directors’ option holding
No options were held by Directors in the years ended June 2013 and June 2014

The consolidated entity does not have any full time Executive officers, other than the Managing Director as detailed
above.
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Aggregate amounts payable to Directors and their personally related entities.

Consolidated Consolidated
Entity Entity
2014 2013
$ $
Accounts payable 187,653 73,305

There were no performance related payments made during the year.

End of remuneration report.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The consolidated entity has conducted exploration activities on mineral tenements. The right to conduct these
activities is granted subject to environmental conditions and requirements. The consolidated entity aims to ensure
a high standard of environmental care is achieved and, as a minimum, to comply with relevant environmental
regulations. There have been no known breaches of any of the environmental conditions.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year, the Company has not given an indemnity or entered into an agreement to indemnify any
of the Directors.

AUDITOR

HLB Mann Judd continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.
NON-AUDIT SERVICES

There were no non-audit services provided during the current year by our auditors, HLB Mann Judd.
AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

The auditor's independence declaration has been received for the year ended 30 June 2014 and forms part of the
Directors’ report.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF COMPANY

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any
proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for
all or any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

CHRIS SANGSTER — Managing Director

Dated at Tyndrum, Scotland, this 30th day of September 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of Scotgold Resources Limited is responsible for the corporate governance of the
Company. The Board guides and monitors the business and affairs of Scotgold Resources Limited on behalf of the
shareholders by whom they are elected and to whom they are accountable. This statement reports on Scotgold
Resources Limited's key governance principles and practices.

1. COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Company, as a listed entity, must comply with the Corporations Act 2001 and the Australian Securities
Exchange Limited (ASX) Listing Rules. The ASX Listing Rules require the Company to report on the extent to
which it has followed the Corporate Governance Recommendations published by the ASX Corporate Governance
Council (ASXCGC). Where a recommendation has not been followed, that fact is disclosed, together with the
reasons for the departure.

The table below summaries the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate Govemance Council's
Recommendations:

ASX Corporate Governance Council Recommendations Reference Comply

Lay solid foundations for management and oversight

1.1 Establish the functions reserved to the board and those delegated to | 2(a) Yes
senior executives and disclose those functions.
1.2 Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior | 2(h), 3(b), Yes
executives. Remuneration
Report
1.3 Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 1. | 2(a), 2(h), 3(b), Yes
2 Structure the board to add value
2.1 A majority of the board should be independent directors. 2{e) Yes
2.2 The chair should be an independent director. 2(c), 2(e) Yes
23 The roles of chair and chief executive officer should not be exercised by | 2(b), 2(c) Yes
the same individual.
2.4 The Board should establish a nomination committee. 2(d) No
25 Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the board, its | 2(h) Yes

committees and individual directors.

26 Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 2. | 2(b), 2(c), 2(d), 2(e), Yes

2(h)
3 Promote ethical and responsible decision-making
3.1 Establish a code of conduct and disclose the code or a summary as to: 4(a) Yes
¢ the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the company’s
integrity;
* the practices necessary to take into account the company’s legal
obligations and the reasonable expectations of its stakeholders;
and
* the responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and
investigating reports of unethical practices
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ASX Corporate Governance Council Recommendations Reference Comply
3.2 Establish a policy concerning diversity and disclose the policy or a | 4(c) No
summary of that policy. The policy should include requirements for the
board to establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity
for the board to assess annually both the objectives and progress in
achieving them.
3.3 Disclose in each annual report the measurable objectives for achieving | 4(c) No
gender diversity set by the board in accordance with the diversity policy
and progress towards achieving them.
3.4 Disclose in each annual report the proportion of women employees in | 4(c) MNo
the whole organisation, women in senior executive positions and women
on the board.
3.5 Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 3. | 4(a), 4(c) Yes
4 Safeguard integrity in financial reporting
4.1 The Board should establish an audit committee. 3(a) Yes
4.2 The audit committee should be structured so that it: 3(a) No
e consists only of non-executive directors;
e consists of a majority of independent directors;
¢ is chaired by an independent chair, who is not chair of the Board;
and
* has at least three members.
4.3 The audit committee should have a formal charter 3(a) Yes
4.4 Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 4. | 3(a) Yes
5 Make timely and balanced disclosure
51 Establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX | 5(a), 5(b) Yes
Listing Rule disclosure requirements and to ensure accountability at
seniar executive level for that compliance and disclose those policies or
a summary of those palicies.
52 Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 5. | 5(a), 5(b) Yes
6 Respect the rights of shareholders
6.1 Design a communications policy for promoting effective communication | 5(a), 5(b) Yes
with shareholders and encouraging their participation at general
meetings and disclose the policy or a summary of that policy.
6.2 Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 6. | 5(a), 5(b) Yes
7 Recognise and manage risk
71 Establish policies for the owversight and management of material | 6(a) Yes
business risks and disclose a summary of those policies.
7.2 The Board should require management to design and implement the risk | 6(a), 6(b), 6(d) Yes
management and internal control system to manage the company's
material business risks and report to it on whether those risks are being
managed effectively. The Board should disclose that management has
reported to it as to the effectiveness of the company’'s management of its
material business risks.
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COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)

ASX Corporate Governance Council Recommendations Reference Comply
7.3 The Board should disclose whether it had received assurance from the | 6(c) Yes
chief executive officer and the chief financial officer that the declaration
provided in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act is
founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and
that the system is operating effectively in all material respects in relation
to financial reporting risks.
7.4 Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 7. | 6(a), 6(b), 6(c), 6(d) Yes
8 Remunerate fairly and responsibly
8.1 The Board should establish a remuneration committee. 3(c) No
8.2 The remuneration committee should be structured so that it: No
e consist of a majority of independent directors
¢ s chaired by the independent chairman
¢ has at least three members
8.3 Clearly distinguish the structure on non-executive directors’ | 3(c), Remuneration Yes
remuneration from that of executive directors and senior executives. Report
8.4 Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on principle 8. | 3(c), Yes

2. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2(a) Rcoles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and investors for the overall performance of the Company and takes
responsibility for monitoring the Company's business and affairs and setting its strategic direction, establishing and
overseeing the Company’s financial position.

The Board is responsible for:

Appointing, evaluating, rewarding and if necessary the removal of the Chief Executive Officer {("CEQO") and
sehior management;

Development of comporate objectives and strategy with management and approving plans, new
investments, major capital and operating expenditures and major funding activities proposed by
management;

Monitoring actual performance against defined performance expectations and reviewing operating
information to understand at all times the state of the health of the Company;

Overseeing the management of business risks, safety and occupational health, environmental issues and
community development;

Satisfying itself that the financial statements of the Company fairly and accurately set out the financial
position and financial performance of the Company for the period under review;

Satisfying itself that there are appropriate reporting systems and controls in place to assure the Board that
proper operational, financial, compliance, risk management and internal control process are in place and
functioning appropriately;

Approving and monitoring financial and other reporting;

Assuring itself that appropriate audit amangements are in place;

Ensuring that the Company acts legally and responsibly on all matters and assuring itself that the Company
has adopted a Code of Conduct and that the Company practice is consistent with that Code; and other
policies; and
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e Reporting to and advising shareholders.
e Other than as specifically reserved to the Board, responsibility for the day-to-day management of the
Company’s business activities is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Management.

2(b) Board Composition
The Directors determine the composition of the Board employing the following principles:

¢ the Board, in accordance with the Company's constitution must comprise a minimum of three Directors;

e the roles of the Chairman of the Board and of the Chief Executive Officer should be exercised by different
individuals;

e the majority of the Board should comprise Directors who are non-executive;

 the Board should represent a broad range of qualifications, experience and expertise considered of benefit
to the Company; and

e the Board must be structured in such a way that it has a proper understanding of, and competency in, the
current and emerging issues facing the Company, and can effectively review management's decisions.

The Board is currently comprised of two Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors. The skills,
experience, expertise, qualifications and terms of office of each director in office at the date of the annual report is
included in the Directors’ Report.

The Company’'s constitution requires one-third of the Directors {(or the next lowest whole number) to retire by
rotation at each Annual General Meeting (AGM). The Directors to retire at each AGM are those who have been
longest in office since their last election. Where Directors have served for equal periods, they may agree amongst
themselves or determine by lot who will retire. A Director must retire in any event at the third AGM since he or she
was last elected or re-elected. Retiring Directors may offer themselves for re-election.

A Director appointed as an additional or casual Director by the Board will hold office until the next AGM when they
may be re-elected.

The Chief Executive Officer is not subject to retirement by rotation and, along with any Director appointed as an
additional or casual Director, is not to be taken into account in determining the number of Directors required to
retire by rotation.

2(c) Chaiman and Chief Executive Officer
The Chairman is responsible for:

e |eadership of the Board;

e the efficient organisation and conduct of the Board's functions;

o the promotion of constructive and respectful relations between Board members and between the Board
and management;

e contributing to the briefing of Directors in relation to issues arising at Board meetings;

o facilitating the effective contribution of all Board members; and

e committing the time necessary to effectively discharge the role of the Chairman.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for:

¢ implementing the Company's strategies and policies; and
¢ the day-to-day management of the Company’s business activities
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2(d) Nomination Committee

The Company does not comply with ASX Recommendation 2.4. The Company is not of a relevant size to consider
formation of a homination committee to deal with the selection and appointment of new Directors and as such a
nomination committee has not been formed.

Nominations of new Directors are considered by the full Board in accordance with the Company’'s “Selection of
New Directors Policy”.

2(e) Independent Directors

The Company recognises that independent Directors are important in assuring shareholders that the Board is
properly fulfilling its role and is diligent in holding senior management accountable for its performance. The Board
assesses each of the directors against specific criteria to decide whether they are in a position to exercise
independent judgment.

Directors of Scotgold Resources Limited are considered to be independent when they are independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with, or could
reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with, the exercise of their unfettered and independent judgement.

In making this assessment, the Board considers all relevant facts and circumstances. Relationships that the Board
will take into consideration when assessing independence are whether a Director:

* is a substantial shareholder of the Company or an officer of, or otherwise associated directly with, a
substantial shareholder ofthe Company;

e is employed, or has previously been employed in an executive capacity by the Company or ancther
Company member, and there has not been a period of at least three years between ceasing such
employment and serving on the Board;

e has within the last three years been a principal of a material professional advisor or a material consultant to
the Company or another Company member, or an employee materially associated with the service
provided;

e is a material supplier or customer of the Company or other Company member, or an officer of or otherwise
associated directly or indirectly with a material supplier or customer; or

e has a material contractual relationship with the Company or another Company member other than as a
Director.

The Board currently includes one independent non-executive Director.

In accordance with the definition of independence above, and the materiality thresholds set, the following Directors
of Scotgold Resources Limited are considered to be independent:

Name Position

Phillip Jackson Non Executive Director
The term in office held by each director in office at the date of this report is as follows:

In office since

John Bentley 17/02/2009
Chris Sangster 17/10/2007
Phillip Jackson 14/08/2007
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2(f) Avoidance of conflicts of interest by a Director

In order to ensure that any interests of a Director in a particular matter to be considered by the Board are known by
each Director, each Director is required by the Company to disclose any relationships, duties or interests held that
may give rise to a potential conflict. Directors are required to adhere strictly to constraints on their participation and
voting in relation to any matters in which they may have an interest.

2(g) Board access to information and independent advice

Directors are able to access members of the management team at any time to request relevant information.
There are procedures in place, agreed by the Board, to enable Directors, in furtherance of their duties, to seek
independent professional advice at the company’s expense.

2(h) Review of Board performance

The performance of the Board is reviewed regularly by the Chairman. The Chairman conducts performance
evaluations which involve an assessment of each Board member's performance against specific and measurable
qualitative and quantitative performance criteria. The performance criteria against which directors and executives
are assessed is aligned with the financial and non-financial objectives of Scotgold Resources Limited. Directors
whose performance is consistently unsatisfactory may be asked to retire.

3. BOARD COMMITTEES
3(a) Audit Committee

The audit committee is comprised of one independent non-executive director, Mr Jackson who chaired one
meeting of the audit committee between commencement of the financial year and the date of this report.

The role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are summarised below.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting and overseeing
the independence of the external auditors. The Board sets aside time to deal with issues and responsibilities
usually delegated to the Audit Committee to ensure the integrity of the financial statements of the Company and the
independence of the auditor.

The Board reviews the audited annual and half-year financial statements and any reports which accompany
published financial statements and recommends their approval to the members. The Board also reviews annually
the appointment of the external auditor, their independence and their fees.

The Board is also responsible for establishing policies on risk oversight and management. The Company has not
formed a separate Risk Management Committee due to the size and scale of its operations.

3(b) External Auditors
The Company’'s policy is to appoint external auditors who clearly demonstrate quality and independence. The
perfarmance of the external auditor is reviewed annually and applications for tender of external audit services are
requested as deemed appropriate, taking into consideration assessment of performance, existing value and tender

costs. It is a legal requirement to rotate engagement partners on listed companies at least every five years.

An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors is provided in the notes to the financial statements in the financial
report. There were no non-audit services provided by the auditors during the year.

There is no indemnity provided by the company to the auditor in respect of any potential liability to third parties.
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The external auditor is requested to attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer shareholder
questions about the conduct of the audit and preparation and content of the audit report.

3(c) Remuneration Committee

The role of a Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities in respect of establishing
appropriate remuneration levels and incentive policies for employees.

The Board has not established a separate Remuneration Committee due to the size and scale of its operations.
This does not comply with Recommendation 8.1 however the Board as a whole takes responsibility for such issues.

The responsibilities include setting policies for senior officers remuneration, setting the terms and conditions for the
CEO, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the Company's incentive schemes and
superannuation arrangements, reviewing the remuneration of both executive and non-executive directors and
undertaking reviews of the CEQ’s performance.

The Company has structured the remuneration of its senior executive, where applicable, such that it comprises a
fixed salary, statutory superannuation and participation in the Company's employee share option plan. The
Company believes that by remunerating senior executives in this manner it rewards them for performance and
aligns their interests with those of shareholders and increases the Company’s performance.

Non-executive directors are paid their fees out of the maximum aggregate amount approved by shareholders for
non-executive director remuneration. The Company does not adhere to Recommendation 8.2 Box 8.2 ‘Non-
executive directors should not receive options or bonus payments’. The Company may, in the future, granted
options to non-executive directors. The Board is of the view that options (for both executive and non-executive
directors) are a cost effective benefit for small companies such as Scotgold Resources Limited that seek to
conserve cash reserves. They also provide an incentive that ultimately benefits both shareholders and the
optionholders, as optionholders will only benefit if the market value of the underlying shares exceeds the option
strike price. Ultimately, shareholders will make that determination.

The remuneration received by directors and executives in the current period is contained in the “Remuneration
Report” within the Directors’ Report of the Annual Report.
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4. ETHICAL AND RESPONSIBLE DECISION MAKING
4(a) Code of Ethics and Conduct

The Board endeavours to ensure that the Directors, officers and employees of the Company act with integrity and
observe the highest standards of behaviour and business ethics in relation to their corporate activities. The “Code
of Conduct” sets out the principles, practices, and standards of personal behaviour the Company expects people to
adopt in their daily business activities.

All Directors, officers and employees are required to comply with the Code of Conduct. Senior managers are
expected to ensure that employees, contractors, consultants, agents and partners under their supervision are
aware of the Company's expectations as set out in the Code of Conduct.

All Directors, officers and employees are expected to:

e comply with the law;

e actin the best interests of the Company;

e be responsible and accountable for their actions; and

e observe the ethical principles of fairness, honesty and truthfulness, including prompt disclosure of potential
conflicts.

4(b) Policy concerning trading in Company securities

The Company’s “Dealings in Company Shares and Options Policy” applies to all Directors, officers and employees.
This policy sets out the restrictions on dealing in securities by people who work for, or are associated with the
Company and is intended to assist in maintaining market confidence in the integrity of dealings in the Company’s
securities. The policy stipulates that the only appropriate time for a Director, officer or employee to deal in the
Company's securities is when they are not in possession of price sensitive information that is not generally
available to the market.

As a matter of practice, Company shares may only be dealt with by Directors and officers of the Company under
the following guidelines:

e no trading is permitted in the period of 14 days preceding release of each quarterly report, halfyearly
report and annual financial report of the Company or for a period of 2 trading days after the release of such
report;

e guidelines are to be considered complementary to and not replace the various sections of the Corporations
Act 2001 dealing with insider trading; and

e prior approval of the Chairman, or in his absence, the approval of two directors is required prior to any
trading being undertaken.

4(c) Policy concerning gender diversity

Scotgold is committed to establishing a policy concerning diversity and disclosure of the policy. The policy will
include requirements for the board to establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity and for the
Board to assess annually the objectives and report in the Annual Report.

As a company with a small market capitalisation, the company has a small board. The company has no established
policy in relation to gender diversity at present but is aware of the principle and will be alert for opportunities when
board changes are contemplated. Given the size of the company and the limited number of employees, reporting
the numbers of employees by gender is not regarded as a meaningful statistic.
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5. TIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURE
5(a) Shareholder communication

The Company believes that all shareholders should have equal and timely access to material information about the
Company including its financial situation, performance, ownership and governance. The Company's "ASX
Disclosure Policy” encourages effective communication with its shareholders by requiring that Company
announcements:

e be factual and subject to internal vetting and autharisation before issue;

¢ be made in atimely manner;

e not omit material information;

® be expressed in a clear and objective manner to allow investors to assess the impact of the information
when making investment decisions;

e be in compliance with ASX Listing Rules continuous disclosure requirements; and

¢ be placed on the Company’'s website promptly following release.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings. Copies of addresses by the Chairman or Chief
Executive Officer are disclosed to the market and posted on the Company’s website. The Company's external
auditor attends the Company’s annual general meeting to answer shareholder questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the audit report, the accounting policies adopted by the Company and the
independence of the auditor in relation to the conduct of the audit.

5(b) Continuous disclosure policy

The Company is committed to ensuring that shareholders and the market are provided with full and timely
information and that all stakeholders have equal opportunities to receive externally available information issued by
the Company. The Company's “ASX Disclosure Policy” described in 5(a) reinforces the Company’s commitment to
continuous disclosure and outline management’s accountabilities and the processes to be followed for ensuring
compliance.

The policy also contains guidelines on information that may be price sensitive. The Company Secretary has been
nominated as the person responsible for communications with the ASX. This role includes responsibility for
ensuring compliance with the continuous disclosure requirements with the ASX Listing Rules and overseeing and
coordinating infarmation disclosure to the ASX.

6. RECOGNISING AND MANAGING RISK

The Board is responsible for ensuring there are adequate policies in relation to risk management, compliance and
internal control systems. The Company’s policies are designed to ensure strategic, operational, legal, reputation
and financial risks are identified, assessed, effectively and efficiently managed and monitored to enable
achievement of the Company’'s business objectives. A written policy in relation to risk oversight and management
has been established (“Risk Management and Internal Control Policy”). Considerable importance is placed on
maintaining a strong control environment. There is an organisation structure with clearly drawn responsibilities.
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6(a) Board oversight of the risk management system

The Board is responsible for approving and overseeing the risk management system. The Board reviews, at least
annually, the effectiveness of the implementation of the risk management controls and procedures.

The principle aim of the system of internal control is the management of business risks, with a view to enhancing
the value of shareholders' investments and safeguarding assets. Although no system of internal control can
provide absolute assurance that the business risks will be fully mitigated, the internal control systems have been
designed to meet the Company's specific needs and the risks to which it is exposed.

Annually, the Board is respaonsible for identifying the risks facing the Company, assessing the risks and ensuring
that there are controls for these risks, which are to be designed to ensure that any identified risk is reduced to an
acceptable level.

The Board is also responsible for identifying and monitoring areas of significant business risk. Internal control
measures currently adopted by the Board include:

e at least quarterly reporting to the Board in respect of operations and the Company’s financial position, with
a comparison of actual results against budget; and

e regular reports to the Board by appropriate members of the management team andfor independent
advisers, outlining the nature of particular risks and highlighting measures which are either in place or can
be adopted to manage or mitigate those risks.

6(b) Risk management roles and responsibilities

The Board is responsible for approving and reviewing the Company's risk management strategy and policy.
Executive management is responsible for implementing the Board approved risk management strategy and
developing policies, controls, processes and procedures to identify and manage risks in all of the Company's
activities.

The Board is responsible for satisfying itself that management has developed and implemented a sound system of
risk management and internal control.

6(c) Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, provide to the Board written certification that
in all material respects:

¢ the Company's financial statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s financial condition and
operational results and are in accordance with relevant accounting standards;

e the statement given to the Board on the integrity of the Company’s financial statements is founded on a
sound system of risk management and internal compliance and controls which implements the policies
adopted by the Board; and

e the Company's risk management an internal compliance and control system is operating efficiently and
effectively in all material respects.

6(d) Intemal review and risk evaluation

Assurance is provided to the Board by executive management on the adequacy and effectiveness of management
controls for risk on a regular basis.

7. OTHER INFORMATION

Further information relating to the company’s corporate governance practices and policies has been made publicly
available on the company’s web site at www .scotgoldresources.com
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

As lead auditor for the audit of the consolidated financial report of Scotgold Resources Limited for the year ended
30 June 2014, | declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:

a) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

b) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

y /N

Perth, Western Australia MR W Ohm
30 September 2014 Partner

HLE Mann Judd (WA Partnership) ABN 22 193 232 714
Level 4 130 Stirling Street Perth 6000 PO Box 8124 Perth BC 6849 Western Australia. Telephone +61 [08) 9227 7500. Fax +61 (08) 9227 7533,
Email: hib@hlbwa.com.au. Website: hitp:tiwww.hib.com.au

¥ by a scheme appi under Professional Standards Legislation

HLE Mann Judd (WA PArtnarship) 15 3 mémber of @Wm.xmnm- SrGANIEATN of MeoUNENg BIME A BUSIFEES JWEATS
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CONSOLIDATED

Notes
2014 2013
$ $

Revenue 2 20,413 15,454
Administration costs (301,644) (354,575)
Interest expense (192,959 (103,350)
Depreciation and profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 (20,545) (26,234)
Employee and consultant costs (236,399) (371,000)
Listing and share registry costs (199,137) (139,262)
Legal fees (93,416) (58,450
Borrowing costs (5,545) (266,426)
Share based payments (121,154) (910,000)
Office and communication costs (105,642) (156,322)
Other expenses (255,001) (281,132)
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX BENEFIT (1,511,029) (2651,297)
Income tax benefit 4 44,880 67,896
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (1,466,149) (2,583,401)
Other Comprehensive Income

Items that may be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Exchange difference on translation of foreign subsidiaries (14,633) 680
Total comprehensive result for the year (1,480,782) (2,582,721)
Basic (loss) per share (cents per share) 23 (0.44) (1.23)

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

Total Current Assets
NOM CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables
Plant and equipment
Mineral exploration and evaluation

Total Non Current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Other current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY

Issued capital
Reserves

Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

Notes

o

w0

10
10
11

12
13
13

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

$ $

640,857 570,253

169,989 26,050
13,026 24,618

823,872 620,921
90,335 83,222

121,301 144,487

13,894,769 13,348,454

14,106,405 13,576,163
14,930,277 14,197,084
353,508 331,085
69,060 119,286
3,081,286 2,607,455
3,453,944 3,057,826
11,476,333 11,139,258
18,463,121 16,766,418
978,169 871,648

(7,964,957 (6,498,808

11,476,333 11,139,258

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Issued Accumulated Options Foreign Total Equity
Capital Losses Reserve Currency
Translation
Reserve

Year Ended 30 June 2013 $ $ $ $ $
Balance 1 July 2012 16,079,010 (3,915,407) - (46,032) 12,117,571
Placement 727,515 - - - 727,515
Options issued - - 917,000 - 917,000
Share issue expenses (40,107) - - - (40,107)
Total comprehensive result for
the year - (2,583,401) - 680 (2,582,721)
As at 30 June 2013 16,766,418 (6,498,808) 917,000 (45,352) 11,139,258
Year Ended 30 June 2013
Balance 1 July 2013 16,766,418 (6,498,808) 917,000 (45,352) 11,139,258
Placements (Note 12) 925,270 - - - 925,270
Entitlements Issue 830,872 - - - 830,872
Options issued - - 121,154 - 121,154
Share issue expenses (59,439) - - - (59,439)
Total comprehensive result for - (1,466,149) - (14,633) (1,480,782)
the year
As at 30 June 2014 18,463,121 (7,964,957) 1,038,154 (59,985) 11,476,333

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes
2014 2013
$ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payment to suppliers (1,044,010) (1,184,916)
Interest income received 9,756 8,751
Net Cash Qutflow From Operating Activities 19 (1,034,254) (1,176,165)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for exploration expendiiture (596,402) (1,263,995)
Proceeds of disposal of other fixed assets 2,641 -
Net Cash Qutflow From Investing Activities (593,761) (1,263,995)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares and options 1,756,142 727,515
Share and option issue transaction costs (59,439) (40,107)
Borrowings net of costs - 2,230,245
Net Cash Inflow From Financing Activities 1,696,703 2,917,653
Net increase in cash held 68,688 477,493
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash 1918 20145
equivalents ’ !
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of this financial year 570,253 72,615
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of this financial year 5 640,857 570,253

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTE 1 —- STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and Interpretations and comply with
other requirements of the law. Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The financial statements have also been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statements are
presented in Australian dollars.

The company is a listed public company, incorporated in Australia and operating in Australia and Scotland. The
entity’s principal activity is mineral exploration.

The accounting policies detailed below have been consistently applied to all of the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the consolidated entity consisting of Scotgold Resources and its
subsidiaries.

Reporting Basis and Conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a going concem,
which assumes the commercial realisation of the future potential of the Company's assets and the discharge of
their liabilities in the normal course of business.

At 30 June 2014, the group had cash available of $640,857, but had a working capital deficit of $2,630,072 due
primarily to the loan from RMB Bank of $3,031,286. Subsequent to year end, the company completed a placement
of 56,874,933 fully paid ordinary shares at an issue price of $0.0075 to raise $426,562 and 18,765,318 fully paid
ordinary shares at an issue price of $0.010 to raise $187,653.

Also subsequent to year end $1 million has been advanced to the Company under Convertible Note Agreements.
The funds raised by the Convertible Notes has been used as part-repayment of the RMB Facility as described
below and for working capital.

The RMB Facility has been partially repaid using funds advanced under the Convertible Notes such that the
£1,500,000 amount outstanding has been reduced by £320,000 to £1,180,000. Furthermore capitalised interest
outstanding on the facility has been settled.

The Board considers that the Company is a going concern and recognises that additional funding is required to
ensure that the Company can continue to fund its operations and further develop their mineral exploration and
evaluation assets during the twelve month period from the date of this financial report. Such additional funding as
ocecurred during the year ended 30 June 2014 as disclosed in Note 12, can potentially be derived from either one or
a combination of the following:

e The placement of securities under the ASX Listing Rule 7.1 or otherwise;
¢ An excluded offer pursuant to the Corporations Act 2001; or
+ The sale of assets.

Accordingly, the Directors believe the Company will obtain sufficient funding to enable it and the consolidated entity

to continue as going concerns and that it is appropriate to adopt that basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial report.
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However, the existence of the above conditions constitute a material uncertainty in relation to the company's ability
to continue as a going concern and whether it will therefore realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

Statement of Compliance
The financial report was authorised for issue on 30 September 2014,

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian equivalents to
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the financial report,
comprising the financial statements and notes thereto, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).

Adoption of new and revised standards
Changes in accounting policies on initial application of Accounting Standards

In the year ended 30 June 2014, the Directors have reviewed all of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the AASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual reporting
period.

It has been determined by the Directors that there is no impact, material or otherwise, of the new and revised
Standards and Interpretations on its business and, therefore, no change is necessary to consolidated entity
accounting policies.

The Directors have also reviewed all new Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the year ended 30 June 2014. As a result of this review the Directors have determined that there is no
impact, material or otherwise, of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations on its business and, therefore,
no change necessary to the consolidated entity's accounting policies.

Accounting Policies

(@) Basis of Consolidation

A controlled entity is any entity controlled by Scotgold Resources Limited. Control exists where Scotgold
Resources Limited has the capacity to dominate the decision-making in relation to the financial and operating
policies of another entity so that the other entity operates with Scotgold Resources Limited to achieve the
objectives of Scotgold Resources Limited. All controlled entities have a 30 June financial year-end.

All intercompany balances and transactions between entities in the consolidated entity, including any unrealised
profit or losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistencies with those policies applied by the parent entity.

Where controlled entities have entered or left the consolidated entity during the year, their operating results have
been included from the date control was obtained or until the date control ceased.

(b) Income Tax

The charge for current income tax expenses is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any non-assessable or
disallowable items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or are substantively enacted by the
balance date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be
recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no
effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss.
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Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the statement of comprehensive income except where it relates to
items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be available
against which deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the assumption that
no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation that the consolidated entity will
derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of
deductibility imposed by the law.

(c) Plant and Equipment
Each class of plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by Directors to ensure it is not in excess of the
recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash
flows which will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows
have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the consolidated entity and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including capitalised lease assets, but excluding computers, is
depreciated on a reducing balance commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Computers are
depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful lives to the consolidated entity commencing from the time the
asset is held ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset: Depreciation Rate:
Plant and Equipment 15 - 50%
The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’'s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and
losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included
in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

(d) Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred is either written off as incurred or accumulated in respect of each
identifiable area of interest. Tenement acquisition costs are initially capitalised. Costs are only carried forward to
the extent that they are expected to be recouped through the successful development of the areas, sale of the
respective areas of interest or where activities in the area have not yet reached a stage which permits reasonable
assessment of the existence of economically recoverable reserves.

Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in full against profit in the year in which the
decision to abandon the areas is made.
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When production commences, the accumulated costs for the relevant area of interest are amortised over the life of
the area according to the rate of depletion of the economically recoverable reserves.

A regular review is undertaken of each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of continuing to carry
forward costs in relation to that area of interest.

Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs necessitated by exploration and evaluation activities are
expensed as incurred and treated as exploration and evaluation expenditure.
(e) Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Directors review the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use, is compared to
the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the
statement of comprehensive income.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the consolidated entity estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

M Provisions

Provisions are recognised where there is a legal or constructive abligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

(h) Revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the
financial assets.

(i} Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Value Added Tax (VAT)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST or VAT, except where the amount of
GST or VAT incurred is not recoverable from the relevant authority. In these circumstances the GST or VAT is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item in expenses. Receivables and
payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST or VAT.

)] Issued Capital

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the Company. Any
transaction costs arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the
share proceeds received.

(k) Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in
presentation for the current financial year.

[{}] Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
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performance of the operating segments has been identified as the Board of Directors of Scotgold Resources
Limited.

(m) Share based payments — shares and options

The fair value of shares and share options granted is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in
equity. Fair value is measured at grant date and recognised over the period during which the grantees become
unconditionally entitled to the shares ar share options.

The fair value of share grants at grant date is determined by reference to the share price at that time.

The fair value of share options at grant date is determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes
into account the exercise price, the term of the option, any vesting and performance criteria, the share price at
grant date, the expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free rate
for the term of the option.

Upon the exercise of the option, the balance of the share-based payments reserve relating to the option is
transferred to share capital.

(n)  Foreign currency translation

Both the functional and presentation currency of Scotgold Resources Limited and its subsidiaries is Australian
dollars. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance date.

All exchange differences in the consclidated financial report are taken to profit or loss with the exception of
differences on foreign currency borrowings that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These
are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in profit or
loss.

Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings are also recognised in equity.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

The functional currency of the foreign operation, Scotgold Resources is Pounds Sterling (£).

As at the balance date the assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency
of Scotgold Resources Limited at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance date and income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rate for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.

The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate compaonent of equity, being
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to the partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or jointly controlled entities that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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{0) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The application of accounting policies requires the use of judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Key Estimates — Impairment

The Directors assess impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the consolidated entity
that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key
estimates.

Impairment of mineral exploration and evaluation

At 30 June 2014, the Group had capitalised mineral exploration and evaluation expenditure of $13,894,769 (2013:
$13,348,454). During the year, as part of the Company’s Notice of General Meeting lodged with ASX on 30 July
2014, a valuation was conducted of the Group’s Cononish Gold and Silver Project by an independent valuer based
in the United Kingdom. This report was on a fair market value basis and was carried out in accordance with the
principles of the VALMIN code.

The valuation was determined upon the expected value method based upon discounted cash flow analysis which
was derived by applying a discount factor of 70% to the results of the DCF analysis to arrive at a fair market value
basis. The value was based upon a post-tax NPV of £7.91 million at a discount rate of 10% which after a discount
factor of 70% arrived at a fair market valuation of £2.4 million {equivalent to $4.4 million at 30 June 2014 spot rate).

AASB 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources requires an assessment of recoverable amount to be
completed whenever facts and circumstance suggest that the carrying amount of an exploration asset may exceed
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is defined within AASB 136 Impairment of Assets as the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Value-in-use is determined on a pre-tax basis and is the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash-generating unit.

As AASB 136 requires recoverable amount to be determined on the basis of the higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs to sell, the directors have instructed the independent valuers to prepare the recoverable amount
calculation on the basis of value-in-use. The value determined by the independent valuers on this basis is £11
million ($20 million at 30 June 2014 spot rate). This is in excess of the carrying value of the associated exploration
expenditures at 30 June 2014 and therefare, in accordance with AASB 136, no impairment has been recorded.

2014 2013
$ $

NOTE 2 - REVENUE
Revenue
Interest received 9,758 9483
Other income 10,655 5,971
Total revenue 20,413 15,454
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NOTE 3 - LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAX EXPENSES

Expenses

Borrowing costs expensed
Total borrowing cost expensed

Depreciation of non-current assets
Plant and Equipment

Motor vehicles

Office furniture and equipment

Total depreciation of non-current assets

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

NOTE 4 -INCOME TAX

2014 2013
$ $
5,545 266,426
5545 266,426
17,589 19,910
5562 6,288
35 36
23,186 26,234
2,641 .
2014 2013
$ $

The prima facie tax benefit at 30% on loss from ordinary activities is reconciled to the income tax benefit in the

financial statements as follows:

Loss from ordinary activities
Prima facie income tax benefit at 30%
Tax effect of permanent differences
Share based payments
Share Issue Costs amortised
R & D Tax Offset refund received
Other non-deductible expenses
Income tax benefit adjusted for permanent differences

Deferred tax asset not brought to account

Income tax benefit

Scotgold Resources Limited

1,466,149 2,583,401
439,845 775,020
(36,346) (273,000

48772 69,358

{44,880) (67,8986)

(465) (265)

406,926 503,217

(362,048) (435,321)

44 880 67,896
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2014 2013
INCOME TAX BENEFIT

The directors estimate the cumulative unrecognised deferred tax asset attributable to the company and its
controlled entity at 30% is as follows:

UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Revenue Losses after permanent differences 1,701,215 1,290,397
Capital Raising Costs yet to be claimed 30,845 39,232
1,732,060 1,329,629

The potential deferred tax asset has not been brought to account in the financial report at 30 June 2014 as the
Directors do not believe it is appropriate to regard the realisation of the asset as probable. This asset will only be
obtained if:

(@) The company and its controlled entity derive future assessable income of an amount and type
sufficient to enable the benefit from the deductions for the tax losses and the unrecouped exploration
expenditure to be realised;

(b) The company and its controlled entity continue to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed
by tax legislation; and
(c) No changes in tax legislation adversely affect the company and its controlled entity in realising the

benefit from the deductions for the tax losses and unrecouped exploration expenditure.

Franking Credits
No franking credits are available at balance date for the subsequent financial year.
NOTE 5 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand 640,857 570,253

NOTE 6 — TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current

GST / VAT receivable 37,626 22524

Other receivables 132,363 3,526
169,989 26,050

Non-current

Beond on Tenement 90,335 83,222

NOTE 7 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments 13,026 24,618
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2014 2013

$ $
NOTE 8 — PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment
Cost 349,150 349,150
Accumulated Depreciation (227,849) (204,663)

121,301 144,487
Movement for the year
Opening balance 144,487 170,721
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Depreciation expensed (23,186) (26,234
Closing balance 121,301 144,487
NOTE 9 — MINERAL EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION
Opening balance 13,348,454 12,084,602
Expenditure during the year 546,315 1,263,852
Closing balance 13,894,769 13,348,454

The ultimate recoupment of exploration expenditure carried forward is dependent upon successful development
and commercial exploitation, or sale of the respective areas.

As disclosed on note 1(n), an impairment assessment was conducted during the year by an independent valuer
which indicated the value-in-use associated with the Cononish project was £11 million ($20 million at 30 June 2014
spot rate) and, as this is in excess of the related carrying amount in accordance with AASB 136 no impairment has

been recorded at 30 June 2014.

NOTE 10 - TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 353,508 331,085

Other accruals 69,060 119,286
422658 450,371

Trade creditors and accruals relating to exploration expenditure 106,246 156,333

Trade creditors and accruals relating to administration 316,412 294,038
422,658 450,371

Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms (2013: 30 days).
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NOTE 11 - INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

Financing Agreements

Interest is charged at average LIBOR three months rate plus 5% for the first facility of £1.18m and at average
LIBOR three months rate plus 9.5% for the extension of £0.32m.

The loan is secured aver the shares in the subsidiary company Scotgold Resources Limited (SC 309525) together
with a floating charge over the assets of that company.

The facility is fully drawn down at 30 June 2014 in the amount of £1,500,000, together with capitalised interest of
£177,817. The carrying value of the assets pledged as security is $20,257,816 at 30 June 2014.

2014 2013
$ $
NOTE 12 - ISSUED CAPITAL
a) Issued capital
483,889,318 ordinary shares fully paid (2013: 211,565,739) 18,463,121 16,766,418
(b) Movements in ordinary share capital of the Company were as follows:
Date Details Shares Value $
{cents)
Balance at 30 June 2012 196,249,629 16,079,010
711212012 Placement 15,316,110 4.7500 727,515
Transaction costs arising on share issues - (40,107)
Balance at 30 June 2013 211,565,739 16,766,418
20/09/2013 Placement 10,000,000 2.0000 200,000
06/01/2014 Entitlements Issue 148,519,802 0.5000 742,599
23/01/2014 Entitlements Issue Shortfall 17,654,502 0.5000 88,273
05/03/2014 Placement 90,000,000 0.7500 675,000
21/03/2014 Placement 6,149,275 0.8175 50,270
Transaction costs arising on share issues - (59,439)
483,889,318 18,463,121
(c) Movements in options were as follows:
Balance at 30 June 2012 - -
31/07/2012 Options issued — RMB borrowing costs 1 26,222,222 - 785,000
10/10/2012 Options issued — Incentive options 2 3,000,000 - -
7212012 Options issued — Free attaching options 3 15,316,110 - -
7122012 Options issued — Share issue costs 4 153,161 - 7,000
9/04/2013 Options issued — RMB borrowing costs 5 7,111,111 - 125,000
Balance at 30 June 2013 51,802,604 917,000
Options vesting — Incentive options - 121,154
Options Expiring 7 June 2014 (15,316,110) -
Balance at 30 June 2014 36,486,494 1,038,154
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Option exercise dates and prices

Exercise on or before Exercise price

1 24 July 2015 £0.045
2 31 March 2022 $0.080
3 7 June 2014 £0.045
4 7 December 2015 £0.031
5 28 March 2016 £0.045

{d) Voting and dividend rights

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion to the

number of shares held.

At shareholders meetings each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each

shareholder has one vote on a show of hands.

NOTE 13 - RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Accumulated Losses

Balance at beginning of the year
Net loss from ordinary activities
Balance at end of the year

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Balance at beginning of the year

Reserve arising on translation of foreign currency subsidiary
Balance at end of the year

Share Option Reserve

Balance at beginning of the year

Reserve arising on Black Scholes valuation of options
Balance at end of the year

Nature and purpose of reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve

2014 2013
$ $
6,498,808 3,915,407
1,466,149 2,583,401
7,964,957 6,498,808
45,352 46,032
14,633 (680)
59,985 45,352
917,000 4
121,154 917,000
1,038,154 917,000

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the

financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

Share Option Reserve

The share option reserve is used to record the assessed value of options issued.

Scotgold Resources Limited
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NOTE 14 - SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

During the current and prior year share based payments in the form of options were made as follows.

2014 2014 2013 2013
Grant Date Pumpose of issue Number Value Number Value
$ cents
24/07/112 RMB borrowing costs - - 26,222,222 6.8
711212 Share issue costs - - 153,161 6.9
9/04/13 RMB borrowing costs - - 7,111,111 6.6
81012 Consultants incentive options 3,000,000 8.0 -
3,000,000 33,486,494

Consultants incentive options vest as shown below and for the purposes of valuing the share based payment the
total value is prorated using the number of days in the vesting period to 30 June 2014.

Values were derived using the Black Scholes model using the following parameters:

Grant Vesting Number Volatility Value Expiry Price MNon- Value
Date Date date date (cents) marketability $
discount

310712 310712 26,222,222 124% 24/07/12 2412115 6.8 30% 785,000
7112112 7112112 153,161 200% 071212 07112115 6.9 30% 7,000
904113 9f04/13 711,111 124% 09/04/12  28/03/16 6.6 30% 125,000
8/10/12 31/03/13 1,000,000 111% 31/03/13  31/03/22 8.0 30% 44,923
8M10/12 31/03/14 1,000,000 111% 31/03/14  31/03/22 8.0 30% 44,923
8/M10/12 31/03M15 1,000,000 111% 3103115 31/03/22 8.0 30% 31,307

No share options were exercised during the year.

The share options outstanding at the end of the year had a weighted average exercise price of 6.9 cents per option
(2013: 7.0 cents per option).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was 4.0 cents per option (2013: 2.7 cents per
option).

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
(a) Mineral Tenement Leases
In order to maintain current rights of tenure to mining tenements, the consclidated entity will be required to outlay

in the year ending 30 June 2015 amounts of $58,250 in respect of minimum tenement expenditure requirements
and lease rentals. The obligations are not provided for in the financial report and are payable as follows :

Minimum Licence Total
expenditure Fee
$ $

Not later than one year 27,000 31,250 58,250
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years 27,000 31,250 58,250
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years 81,000 93,750 174,750

135,000 156,250 291,250
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The Company has a number of avenues available to continue the funding of its current exploration program and as
and when decisions are made, the Company will disclose this information to shareholders.

NOTE 16 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has entered into a donations agreement with the Strathfillan Community Development Trust
("SCDT") pursuant to which the Company will work with SCDT to provide additional facilities and opportunities for
the community served by SCDT and provide funding in respect of the same of up to £350,000. This liability is
contingent upon starting the development as defined under the Planning conditions and Decision letter.

Scotgold Resources Limited and its controlled entities have no other known material contingent liabilities as at 30
June 2014.

NOTE 17 - INVESTMENT IN CONTROLLED ENTITY

Registered Country of Interest Held Value of

Number Incorporation investment
Parent 3
Scotgold Resources Limited 42127042773 Australia 100% N/A
Subsidiary
Scotgold Resources Limited SC 309525 Scotland 100% 5,491,881
Subsidiary of subsidiary
Fynegold Exploration Limited SC 084497 Scotland 100% -

NOTE 18 - SEGMENT INFORMATION
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of Scotgold Resources
Limited.
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NOTE 19 - NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of loss after income tax to net operating cash flows
Loss from ordinary activities

Depreciation

Profit on sale of fixed assets
Borrowing costs

Capitalised interest expense
MNon-cash movement on reserves

Movement in assets and liabilities

Receivables

Other current assets

Payables

Revaluation effect of foreign currency working capital
Net cash used in operating activities

Scotgold Resources Limited

2014 2013
$ $
(1,466,149) {2,583,401)
23,186 26,234
(2,841)
- 266,426
423832 110,784
121,154 917,000
(900,618) (1,262,957
(151,052) 14382
11,592 -4,249
22,374 96,178
{16,549) (19,519
(1,034,254) {1,176,165)
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NOTE 20 - KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
(a) Directors

The names and positions of Directors in office at any time during the financial year are:

In office from In office to
John Bentley Non Executive Chairman 17/02/2009 present
Chris Sangster Managing Director 17/10/2007 present
Phillip Jackson Non Executive Director 14/08/2007 present

(b) Remuneration Polices

Remuneration policies are disclosed in the Remuneration Report which is contained in the Directors’ Report.

(c) Directors’ Remuneration

No salaries, commissions, bonuses or superannuation were paid or payable to Directors during the year.
Remuneration was by way of fees paid monthly in respect of invoices issued to the Company by the Directors or
Companies associated with the Directors in accordance with agreements between the Company and those entities.
The Directors are entitled to reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred whilst on company business.

The aggregate compensation made to key management personnel of the group is set out below.

Consolidated

2014 2013
$ $
Short-term employee benefits 536,430 539,480
Post employment benefits - -
Other long term benefits - -
Share based payments - -
536,430 539,490

(e) Aggregate amounts payable to Directors and their personally related entities.

Consolidated Consolidated
Entity Entity
2014 2013
$ $
Accounts payable 187,653 73,305
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NOTE 21 - RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

Transactions within the Consolidated Entity

Aggregate amount receivable within the consoclidated entities
at balance date

Non-current receivables

NOTE 22 - REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Auditing and reviewing of the financial statements of Scotgold
Resources Limited and of its controlled entities.

NOTE 23 - LOSS PER SHARE

Earnings used in calculation of earnings per share

Weighted awverage number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year used in the calculation of basic loss per share

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

2014 2013
5 5
14,765,935 13,880,255

Consolidated

2014 2013

$ 5
33,100 30,650
33,100 30,650

Consolidated

2014 2013
$ $
1,466,149 5.583,401
Number Number
328,829,995 210,642,576

There are no potential ordinary shares on issue at the date of this report.

NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial Risk Management Policies

The consolidated entity’'s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable,

accounts payable and hire purchase liabilities.

The Board's overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the Group in meeting its financial targets, whilst
maintaining potential adverse effects on financial performance. The Group has developed a framework for a risk
management policy and internal compliance and control systems that covers the organisational, financial and
operational aspects of the group’s affairs. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring the maintenance of, and

compliance with, appropriate systems.

Financial Risk Exposures and Management

The main risks the group is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk

and liquidity risk.

Scotgold Resources Limited
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Interest Rate Risk

The consolidated entity’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value will
fluctuate as a result of change in the market, interest rate and the effective weighted average interest rate on these
financial assets, is as follows:

Weighted Average Floating Interest Rate
Effective Interest Rate
2014 2013 2014 2013
$ $

Financial Assets
Cash at Bank 1.93% 1.09% 640,857 570,253
Trade and other receivables - - 260,324 108,272
Total Financial Assets 901,181 679,525
Financial Liabilities
RMB Loan (Note 11) 6.70% 5.25% 3,031,286 2,607 455
Trade and other payables - - 353,598 331,085
Total Financial Liabilities 3,384,84 2,938,540

The aggregate net fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the
statement of financial position and in the notes to and forming part of the financial statements.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis relating to its exposure to interest rate risk. This sensitivity analysis
demonstrates the effect on the current year results and equity which could result in a change in these risks.

At 30 June 2014 the effect on the loss and equity as a result of a change in the interest rate of 1% with all other
variables remaining constant is not material.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence expaosures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
reporting date is as follows:

Currency Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets
2014 2014 2013 2013
$ $ 5 3
£ Sterling 3,338,417 175,824 2,994,003 257,230

Foreign currency

Other than translational risk the Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk at the balance date.
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Liquidity Risk

The group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows.

At balance date the contracted maturity for the RMB loan of $1,500,000 was 11 August 2014.

Subsequent to year end a partial repayment of the principal has been made and a re-negotiated contracted
maturity for the balance of the RMB loan of $1,180,000 is on the earlier of capital raising of £2 million or 31
December 2015.

Credit Risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date, is the
carrying amount net of any provisions for doubtful debts, as disclosed in the statement of financial position and

notes to the financial statement.

In the case of cash deposited, credit risk is minimised by depositing with recognised financial intermediaries such
as banks, subject to Australian Prudential Regulation Authority supervision.

The consolidated entity does not have any material risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors under
financial instruments entered into by it.

Capital Management Risk

Management controls the capital of the Group in order to maximise the return to shareholders and ensure that the
group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern.

Management effectively manages the Group’s capital by assessing the Group’s financial risks and adjusting its
capital structure in response to changes in these risks and in the market. These responses include the
management of expenditure and debt levels and share and option issues.

There have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to control capital of the Group since the prior
year.

Net Fair Values

For financial assets and liabilities, the net fair value approximates their carrying value. The consolidated entity has
no financial assets or liabilities that are readily traded on organised markets at balance date and has no financial
assets where the carrying amount exceeds net fair values at balance date.

NOTE 25 - MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

Other than as set out below there are no other matters or circumstances that have arisen after the balance date
that have significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in future periods.

On 23 September 2014 the company announced the following

1. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The company has entered into convertible note agreements (Conwvertible Notes) on the terms and conditions set

out in the Company’s Notice of Meeting dated 23 June 2014 (and approved by Shareholders at the General
Meeting on 30 July 2014).
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AUD$1 million has been advanced to the Company under the Convertible Note Agreements. The funds raised by
the Convertible Notes will be used as part-repayment of the RMB Facility as described below and for working
capital.

The Convertible Notes have a repayment date of 24 months from their date of issue, with an interest rate of 1% per
annum. The holders of the Convertible Notes may elect to convert the Convertible Notes (in part or in full) into
ordinary shares in the Company at a conversion price of AUD$0.0075 per share. For every share issued on
conversion of the Convertible Notes, one free attaching option will be issued, exercisable at AUD$0.012 on or
before 31 March 2016. Full details of the Convertible Notes and attaching options were set out in the Company’s
Notice of Meeting dated 23 June 2014.

2. PARTIAL REPAYMENT OF RMB FACILITY

The RMB Facility has been partially repaid using funds advanced under the Convertible Notes such that the
£1,500,000 amount outstanding has been reduced by £320,000 to £1,180,000. Furthermore capitalised interest
outstanding on the facility has been settled.

3. EXTENSION OF RMB FACILITY

The remaining amount under the RMB Facilty Agreement has been extended to 31 December 2015 in
consideration for:

(a) the partial repayment of the RMB Facility set out in paragraph 2 above (such that the facility amount is
£1,180,000; and

{b) the issue to RMB Australia Holdings Ltd of 8,000,000 fully paid ordinary Scotgold Shares and 30,000,000
unlisted Options exercisable at 0.69 pence on or before 22 September 2017.

The Shares and Options have been issued under the Company’s Listing Rule 7.1 capacity.
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NOTE 26 - PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES

Financial Position

2014 2013
$ $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 530,256 358,954
Trade and other receivables 117,792 4,735
Total Current Assets 648,048 363,689
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Plant and equipment 6,143 6,567
Investment in subsidiary 5,491,881 5,491,881
Loan to subsidiary 8,580,077 7,970,120
Total Non Current assets 14,078,100 13,468,568
TOTAL ASSETS 14,726,148 13,832,257
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 218,373 85,576
Interest bearing loan 3,031,286 2,607,455
Total Current Liabilities 3,249,659 2,693,031
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,249,659 2,693,031
NET ASSETS 11,476,489 11,139,226
EQUITY
Issued capital 22540613 20,843,909
Reserves 1,038,154 917,000
Accumulated losses (12,102,278) (10,621,652)
TOTAL EQUITY 11,476,489 11,139,257
Financial Performance
Loss for the year 1,480,626 2,582,772
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive loss 1,480,626 2582772

The parent entity has not entered into any guarantees in relation to debts of its subsidiaries, has no contingent
liabilities, and has no commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

1. In the opinion of the Directors of Scotgold Resources Limited (the ‘Company’):

a. the accompanying financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001 including:

i. giving atrue and fair view of the consclidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2014
and of its performance for the year then ended; and

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001,
professional reporting requirements and other mandatory requirements.

b. there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable.

c. the financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in

accordance with Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

CHRIS SANGSTER — Managing Director

Dated at Tyndrum, Scotland, this 30th day of September, 2014.
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HLB Mann Judd

Accountants | Business and Financial Advisers
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Scotgold Resources Limited
Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Scotgold Resources Limited (“the company”), which
comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and the directors’ declaration for the consolidated entity. The consolidated entity comprises the
company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2007 and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101: Presentation of Financial
Statements, that the financial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’'s responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or management.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

HLEB Mann Judd (WA Partnership) ABN 22 193 232 714

Level 4, 130 Stirling Street Perth WA 6000. PO Box 8124 Perth BC 6849 Telaphone +61 (08) 9227 7500, Fax +61 (08) 9227 7533,
Email: hib@hlbwa.com.au, Website: hitp:iiwww, hib com.au

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legisiation

HLB Mann Judd (WA Partnership) is a membar of - accounting fims and business advisers.
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HLB Mann Judd

Accountants | Business and Financial Advisers
Independence
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.
Auditor’'s opinion
In our opinion:
(a) ?heI thanciaI report of Scotgold Resources Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
inciuaing:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001, and
(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial report, which indicates that at 30 June
2014, the group had cash available of $640,857, but had a working capital deficit of $2,630,072 due primarily to the
loan from RMB Bank of $3,031,286. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the company's ability to continue as a
going concern and therefore, the company may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

Report on the Remuneration Report
We have audited the remuneration report included in the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2014. The
directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the remuneration report in

accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion the remuneration report of Scotgold Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014 complies

with section 300A of the Corporations Act 20071.
ﬁmjf‘,\

HLB Mann Judd MR W Ohm
Chartered Accountants Partner

Hi & Manann TodA

Perth, Western Australia
30 September 2014
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SHAREHOLDER DETAILS

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING

Number of Shareholders

Shareholding ASX AlM Total
1 - 1,000 65 7 72
1,001 = 5,000 76 19 95
5,001 - 10,000 122 15 137
10,001 - 100,000 652 60 712
100,001 - ormore 215 75 280
1,129 176 1,305

Shareholding Number of Shares

1 - 1,000 13,202 3,060 16,262
1,001 - 5,000 266,012 43,714 309,726
5,001 - 10,000 1,023,551 112,848 1,136,400
10,001 - 100,000 24,072,932 2,274,462 26,347,394
100,001 - or more 315,369,702 225,350,085 540,719,787
Total on Issue 340,745,399 227,784,170 568,529,569

Voting Rights

Aricle 16 of the Constitution specifies that on a show of hands every member present in person, by attorney or by
proxy shall have :

a) for every fully paid share held by him one vote
b) for every share which is not fully paid a fraction of the vote equal to the amount paid up on the share over
the nominal value of the shares
Substantial Shareholders

The following substantial shareholders have notified the Company in accordance with Corporations Act 2001.

Mr Nat le Roux 87,333,333 15.4%
Mr Richard Milne Harris 29,874,933 5.3%

Directors’ Shareholding

The interest of each director in the share capital of the Company is detailed in the Directors’ Report.
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TOP TWENTY SHAREHOLDERS
Name

Mr Nat le Roux

HSDL Nominees Limited

Barclayshare Nominees Limited

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited — A/C 2
Golden Matrix Holdings Pty Ltd

TD Direct Investing Nominees {(Europe) Limited <SMKTNOMS>
Westland Group Holdings Pty Ltd

Hargreaves Lansdown (Nominees) Limited <1554 2>
Hargreaves Lansdown (Nominees) Limited <\VRA>
Share Nominees Limited

Mr John Bentley

Mr Graham Donaldson & Mrs Christine Donaldson
Mr Peter John Newcomb

Investor Nominees Limited <\WRAP>

Mr Richard Milne Harris

Secure Nominees Limited <SVCLT>

RMB Australia Holdings Limited

HSDL Nominees Limited <MAXI>

Inwvestor Nominees Limited <MNOMINEE>

Mrs Dorita Maria Thomson

Scotgold Resources Limited

Shares

87,333,333
27,149,555
22918,856
21,055,480
19,874,933
17,597,191
17,500,000
16,116,224
13,982,504
12,807,276
12,545,603
11,851,786
10,417,855
10,059,091
10,000,000

9,995,000

9,000,000

7,058,573

6,719,386

6,305,916

350,288,562

%

15.4%
4.8%
4.0%
3.7%
3.5%
31%
31%
2.8%
2.5%
2.3%
2.2%
21%
1.8%
1.8%
1.8%
1.8%
1.6%
1.2%
1.2%
1.2%

61.6%

A
o
=]
=

OO~ AWN =
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INTEREST IN EXPLORATION LEASES

Scotland

Location Agreement Grant Date Area

Cononish Glen Orchy Landholder Lease 23 July 2009 20 sq km
Cononish Glen Orchy Option Agreement 5 November 2013 975 sq km
Glen Lyon Option Agreement 5 November 2013 1,369 sq km
Inverliever Option Agreement 5 November 2013 864 sq km
Knapdale Option Agreement 5 August 2013 676 sq km
Ochils Option Agreement 5 August 2013 426 sq km

Mining Leases in Scotland — general information

The mineral rights to gold and silver in most of Britain, including Scotland, are generally held by the Crown, In order
to explore for gold and silver, an option agreement is required to be concluded with the Crown which entitles the
holder to explore for gold and silver {subject to access agreements with the landowner (see below)) and on the
grant of planning permission (and other conditions), to take out a lease for exploitation of these metals.

Surface rights (and other minerals rights) are generally held by the landowner with whom access and lease
agreements must separately be obtained.

Mineral developments in Scotland are governed by the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act, with
responsibility for planning control exercised by the local Authority. Statutory designations inform as to the
appropriate levels of environmental assessment to be carried out.
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Exploration Office

Nominated Adviser (NOMAD)

Share Registry

Auditor

Sdlicitors

Bankers

Media

Scotgold Resources Limited

Upper Tyndrum Station
Tyndrum, Stirlingshire
Scotland

FK20 8RY

Phone +44(0) 183 840 0306

Westhouse Securities Limited
Heron Tower

110 Bishopsgate

London

EC2N 4AY

Phone +44(0) 207 601 6114

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS99 677

Phone +44(0) 870 703 6300

Scott-Moncrieff
Exchange Place 3
Semple Street
Edinburgh

EH3 8BL

Phone +44(0) 131 473 3500

Harper McLeod LLP
The Ca'd'oro
Glasgow

G1 3PE

Phone +44(0) 141 221 8888

Bank of Scotland
Shandwick Place
Edinburgh
EH11 1YH

Phone +44(0) 870 850 1671

Bankside Consultants
6 Middle Street
London

EC1A

Phone +44(0) 207 367 8888
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Annexe 4e : CURRICULUM VITAE

C.V. Christopher Sangster (Président Directeur Général)

CURRICULUM VITAE

C.J.S. SANGSTER

B.Sc. Hons. (Min. Eng.) ARSM, GDE. (Mineral Economics),

Name

Date of Birth
Marital Status
Dependants
Nationality

Wifebs Nationality
Residential Address

Contacts

E-mail

1. PERSONAL DETAILS

SANGSTER, Christopher John Stuart
9™ July 1958

Married

Wife, son (aged 2), daughter (aged 16)
British

British

Woodville

Dalginross

Comrie

Perthshire, PH6 2EG, UK

+44 (0)1838 400306 (w)

+44 (0)1764 670293 (h)

+44 (0)77 2562 9509 (cell)

Work: cs@scotgoldresources.com

PERSONAL PROFILE AND KEY SKILLS

A highly experienced professional mining engineer with over thirty years’ experience.

e Extensive managerial experience in both production and technical fields at Senior levels

e Product diversity T gold, diamonds and base metals

e Geographical diversity T UK, South Africa, Namibia, Zambia, Canada, Australia

e Method diversity T surface (alluvial and open pit) and underground (mechanised / labour
intensive covering a wide range of methods) experience

e Project and financial skills

A proven track record of successively more responsible managerial (technical and production)
positions within the industry associated with operational units, projects and project

development.
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KEY POSITIONS il
Chief Executive Officer 04/07 T Present Scotgold Resources td

General Manager Operations 03/06 T 04/07 European Diamonds, UK (Diamonds)
Principal Mining Engineer 01/05 71 03/06 AMC Consultants UK Ltd (Consulting)
Vice President Mining Services 08/02 1 12/04 KCM plc, Zambia (O/P, U/G, Base metals)
Corporate Technical Services Manager 05/99 T 07/02 KCM plc, Zambia (O/P, U/G, Base metals)
General Manager / Director 11/96 1 05/99 Fynegold Exploration, UK (U/G, Gold)
Senior Divisional Mining Engineer 05/95 T 11/96 De Beers, SA (0/P, U/G, Diamonds, Au, Base
Metals)

Planning Manager 05/91 1 05/95 De Beers, Namibia (0/P, Diamonds)
Production Section Manager 01/89 T 05/91 De Beers Kimberley, SA (U/G, Diamonds)
Assistant General Manager 11/87 1 12/88 Augmitto, Quebec (U/G, Gold)

2. QUALIFICATIONS

2.1 UNIVERSITY OF THE WITWATERSRAND, SOUTH AFRICA (1993 - 1994)

1994: GRADUATE DIPLOMA IN ENGINEERING (GDE) IN MINERALS ECONOMICS - WITH
DISTINCTION

Mineral Policy and Investment Mine Financial Valuation*
Decision Making for Mining Investment* Minerals Economics™
Minerals Marketing* Environmental Economics

Conversion to_M.Sc. in Minerals Economics T (1996 - Now)

Statistical VValuation* Geostatistical Methods*
Mechanised Earthmoving*

Three further subjects to pass (course halted due to relocation)

2.2 UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN AFRICA (UNISA) (1990 - 1991)

1991: MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM (MDP - an MBA based program)

Organisational Behaviour Introduction to Management
Economics Industrial Relations

Financial Accounting Management Accounting*
Planning and Control Statistics and Numerical Methods*

2.3 ROYAL SCHOOL OF MINES, IMPERIAL COLLEGE, LONDON (1976 - 1979)

1979: B. SC. (MINING ENGINEERING) - 1°" CLASS HONOURS, ARSM

Ernest Glorney Scholarship Mining Association Scholarship
Honorary Secretary Chaps Club Captain RSM Cricket Club
RSM Rugby XV and Captain RSM 2" XV RSM Hockey XI

2.4 HAILEYBURY AND I.S.C, GREAT BRITAIN. (1972 -1975)

1975: A LEVELS

Chemistry Al Maths B Physics B

1973: O LEVELS

Maths (1) Chemistry (1) French (1) Latin (1)
History (2) English Language (2) English Literature (2) Physics (2)

146



3. EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

3.1 SCOTGOLD RESOURCES L td
Nature of company: Junior gold development and Exploration Company

From 04/06 — Present CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Scotgold Resources floated on the ASX in Jan 2008 and has as its key asset, the Cononish
Gold Project in the SW Grampians in Scotland. Scotgold also hold exploration licenses of
some 2200km2 over the highly prospective Dalradian belt.

Scotgoldsb objectives are to progress the Cononish project to production whilst seeking to
expand the resources available to the project through exploration of its license areas.

3.2 EUROPEAN DIAMONDS plc. (now Kopane Diamond Developments plc.)
Nature of company: Junior diamond mining and exploration company

From 03/06 — 04/07 GENERAL MANAGER OPERATIONS

European Diamonds plc has a 75% interest in the Lighuobong diamond mine in Lesotho. The
mine consists of a small open pit operation treating 200,000 tpa from the Satellite and Main
Pipes. Initially responsible for operations on the Satellite pipe and subsequently completed a
positive Pre-Feasibility study into a 3Mtpa operation on the Main Pipe.

3.3 AMC CONSULTANTS UK Ltd
Nature of Company: Mining Consultancy

From 1/05 — 03/06 PRINCIPAL MINING ENGINEER

Projects worked on:

Kluchevskoye Gold Mine, Chita region, Russian Federation T project review

Nalunag Gold Mine, Greenland T operations review and optimisation study

Iron Ore projects in Russian Federation T potential acquisition

Ozernoe Zn/Pb project, Buryatia, Russian Federation T manager for pre-feasibility study
Zambia / DRC T evaluation of potential copper / base metal properties

Cobar Mine, NSW, Australia T benchmarking exercise

3.4 KONKOLA COPPER MINES plc (Zambia) — (part of AA plc. up to Sept 2002)
Nature of Company: Copper and Cobalt Mining / Processing Company

The Nchanga open pit mines 6Mt copper and cobalt ore and 75Mt waste annually. The
Nchanga underground operations contribute 3Mt copper ore annually using caving and
mechanised room and pillar methods. Konkola Mine produces 2Mt copper ore from
mechanised Sub Level Open Stoping, Overcut and Bench, Longitudinal Room and Pillar, Post
Pillar Cut and Fill, and Drift and Fill and other methods. The company operates two
concentrators, an SX/EW plant, owns the Nkana smelter in Kitwe, a 0.3Mtpa pyrite mine and
concentrator near Lusaka and produces about 200,000 t of Copper, 2,000t of Cobalt and
100,000t of pyrite annually.
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From 8/02 — 12/04 VICE PRESIDENT MINING SERVICES responsible for the
Group Geotechnical, Geo-hydrological, Mineral Resources (including US$ 3M per year
Exploration program), Mining Training and Industrial Engineering departments and
technical responsibility for the Technical Services Managers and their departments at the
operating business units (Nchanga Open Pit and Underground Mines, Konkola and
Nampundwe Mines) and responsibilities listed for Corporate Technical Services Manager
below.

From 4/00 T 7/02 CORPORATE TECHNICAL SERVICES MANAGER with
responsibilities for strategic / business and Life of Mine planning (including pit
optimisation), financial modelling, capital equipment and project justification, high level
budget reviews, quarterly and annual reporting, technical assistance to the operating mines
(Konkola, Nchanga and Nampundwe) and evaluations on other properties. Signatory for
Mineral Resources and Reserves statement. Five month joint project with Proud foot
Consulting on Performance Management and Recognition schemes. The period also
involved considerable interaction with external consultants regarding submission of the
Competent Persons Reports, Feasibility study revalidation (internal) and other bankable
documents.

From 5/99 — 4/00 CONTRACT MINING ENGINEER. Initially part of the Konkola
Nkana Nchanga Nampundwe project team involved in investigating the purchase of three of
the operating divisions of ZCCM (Zambia Consolidated Copper Mines). Involved in the re-
optimization and re-planning of the Nchanga open pit and investigating alternative
exploitation strategies. Part of the AAC monitoring team on the Zambian Copper belt with
responsibility for monitoring the operations of ZCCM at the Nchanga division, specifically
the Nchanga Open Pit and Nchanga underground operations. Development of operational
plans and budget for post takeover company

Responsible to: C.0.0 / Senior VP Engineering and Services

3.5 FYNEGOLD EXPLORATION LTD. (TYNDRUM, SCOTLAND)

Nature of Company: Part of Caledonia Mining Corporation - a junior mining and exploration
company

12/96 — 4/99: GENERAL MANAGER / DIRECTOR with responsibility for Caledoniads Scottish
interests including the Cononish Gold Project - a 300 tpd underground gold mine awaiting project go
- ahead and construction and a 1400sqg.km exploration licence area. Activities included

feasibility study preparation and project due diligence,

landowner and finance negotiations,

exploration programme

liaison with planning authorities for planning permission re-application, community,
environmental and other groups,

e marketing initiatives

e group project evaluation.

The project was put on a care and maintenance basis as a result of delays in obtaining
corporate financing prior to the start of construction in late 1997 and subsequently shelved
in 1999 as a result of the declining gold price and continued unavailability of corporate
finance.

Responsible to: Chief Operating Officer / Vice President Operations
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3.6 DE BEERS CONSOLIDATED MINES LTD / AAC OF SOUTH AFRICA LTD.
Nature of Company: Major Multinational Resource Company

3.6.1 AACOF SALTD - (JOHANNESBURG, RSA)

9/95 - 12/96: SENIOR DIVISIONAL MINING ENGINEER - New Mining Business
5/95 - 9/95: SENIOR DIVISIONAL MINING ENGINEER - Diamond Services

Provided technical and management services to the De Beers operating mines (underground
and open pit) within the Diamond Services Division including overseeing project
development, introduction of new technology and long term planning. Seconded on request
to the New Mining Business division (responsible for project acquisition and development
in Africa (generally), excluding SA gold, diamonds and coal). Involved in technical and
financial evaluations, due diligence and feasibility studies of new projects and on potential
acquisitions as well as technical and planning assistance to operating mines in the division
and to the Technical Directors office. Projects associated with and worked on:

e Namakwa Sands T feasibility study investigation into phase 2 mining method

Gold projects in Indonesia, Uzbekistan, Ethiopia, and Tanzania.

Base metals in DRC

Due diligence / potential acquisitions in Ghana, Guinea, Tanzania

Operating Mines technical assistance and reviews- Namakwa Sands, Tati Nickel, De
Beers mines

e Feasibility study review and input

e Numerous financial and technical evaluations on various properties.

Responsible to: Consulting Mining Engineer

3.6.2 NAMDEB (formerly CDM (PTY) LTD) (ORANJEMUND, NAMIBIA)

Nature of Company: Part of De Beers group involved in open pit diamond mining

CDMos operations include moving about 45M tpa of overburden and processing 18M tpa
diamondiferous ore from a variety of alluvial / open pit and beach operations geographically
spread over a wide area including three ¢satellite operations using conventional earthmoving
fleets and two bucket wheel excavators

5/91 - 5/95: PLANNING MANAGER

Responsible for managing the Planning Department whose activities included Long and Short term
operational planning, aspects of Strategic and Corporate planning. Project development and pre-
feasibility studies into new mining areas and for implementation of new methods and technology.
Ongoing development of the in-house Production and Maintenance system.

Relieved extensively as Mine Superintendent with responsibility for production in Mining
Area No 1 (over 12 months)

Responsible to: Mine Superintendent. Promoted to Senior Divisional Mining Engineer and
transferred to AAC / De Beers Head Office
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3.6.3 DE BEERS CONSOLIDATED MINES LTD. (KIMBERLEY, RSA)
Nature of Company: Part of De Beers involved in underground diamond mining

Kimberley Mines Division comprises three major shafts and a dump re-treatment section
treating in aggregate 4M tpa of kimberlite. Underground methods employed include block
caving, sub level caving and vertical crater retreat

1/89 - 5/91: PRODUCTION SECTION (UNDERGROUND) MANAGER at

Wesselton Mine with responsibility for all aspects of this 1M tpa sub level caving operation
including major capital projects for the conversion from sub level caving to vertical crater
retreat methods and establishing a major new production level.

Relieved extensively as Mine Superintendent with responsibility for mining production
from all sources.

Responsible to: Mine Superintendent. Transferred to CDM (Pty) Ltd

3.7AUGMITTO EXPLORATION LTD. (QUEBEC, CANADA)
Nature of Company: Junior gold mining and exploration company

8/88 - 12/88: ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER
11/87 - 8/88: PLANNING ENGINEER / MINE SUPERINTENDENT

Responsible for the managing of the underground operations of this developing 1400 tpd gold
project. Activities included trackless incline and level development, start up of initial
shrinkage and open stopes, sinking a 6000 deep three compartment shaft with associated
design and planning work, supervising the mining and survey departments and administrative
duties consistent with the above positions

Responsible to: General Manager

3.8 CARNON CONSOLIDATED LTD. (CORNWALL, UK)
Nature of Company: Holding company of three underground tin mines and slate quarry

2/85-10/87: MINE MANAGER

With overall responsibility for Wheal Pendarves tin mine - a 300 tpd underground shrinkage and
long hole stoping operation. Subsequent to its purchase by RTZ, the mine was refurbished; ore
reserves re-developed and the mine brought almost to profitability prior to the collapse of the tin
price. Subsequent to closure, | was engaged in a considerable amount of project work including a
study into a coastal ésuper quarryd and other group projects

Responsible to: Divisional Manager
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3.9 RANDFONTEIN ESTATES GOLD MINING CO. LTD. (TVL., RSA)
Nature of Company: Major underground gold mining company

6/84 - 2/85: ASSISTANT SECTION MANAGER

Responsible for 3 Mine Overseers section including latterly the Trackless Mining Project producing
around 70000tpm. Relieved as Section Manager. Offer of Section Manager position on leaving.
Responsible to: Section Manager

4/83 - 6/84: PRODUCTION MINE OVERSEER

In charge of stoping and development operations producing 50000 tpm using conventional S.
African gold mining methods and room and pillar methods

12/79 - 4/83: GRADUATE TRAINEE / SHIFT BOSS/ STRATA CONTROL
OFFICER

3.10 UNIVERSITY VACATION WORK

7/78 - 9/78: Mine Planning, and Grade Control at Woodlawn Mines Ltd. (NSW, Australia) - an open
pit copper / lead / zinc mining company

7/77 - 9/77: Planning and Contract mining in sub level stoping operation at Consolidated Murchison
Mines Ltd (TVL, RSA) - an underground antimony / gold mining company

3.11 RANDFONTEIN ESTATES GOLD MINING CO. LTD. (TVL., RSA)

Nature of Company: Major underground gold mining company

8/75 - 8/76: LEARNER OFFICIAL Pre - university employment on JCI group gold mines
(Randfontein Estates, Western Areas, Elsburg). Underground experience and general exposure to
mining operations

4. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Ex - Member of Engineering Institute of Zambia (MEIZ) / Registered Engineer (R.Eng)
South African Mine Managers Certificate, Underground and Opencast Blasting Certificates
Languages  English - home language

French 1 fair / fair

Afrikaans T fair / fair
Attended numerous in-house and external managerial and technical courses / seminars
Computer literate T Excel, Word, PowerPoint etc
Mining software T Whittle 4X T optimisation (2003), basic Datamine (1994) and Surpac
(1996) courses
Additional CPD T Cut off grade optimisation (2005)
Interests - Cricket, Squash, Golf (6 Handicap - ex committee member Randfontein Estates
Golf Club) Bird Watching, Hill walking
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ROYAL SCHOOL OF MINES

Imperial College of Science and Teclmofeg}r

LONDON

CHREISTOPHER Jouw STUART SANGSTER

who has completed an approved sotirse of study at the College in

Mining

with  Fiese Class Honours

tobean ASSOCIATE of the
ROYAL SCHOOQOL OF MINES

Scaled by suthoriey of the Goverrlzg Body :
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UNIVERSITY OF THE WITWATERSRAND, JOHANNESBURG
STATEMENT OF ACADEMIC RECORD

This Is to certify thal MR CHRISTOPHER JOHN STUART SANGSTER

was registered sz detalled below,

COURSE{TOPIC

1993 EX650 GRADUATE DIFLOMA TN ENGINEERING (MINING) PART-TIME
MINN5DE MINE FINANCIAL VALUATION
MINN324 MINERAL POLICY & INVESTMENT
MINNS?0 DECISION MAKING FOR MINING [NV

~ CREDIT/SUSPENDED CREDIT FOR COURSE(3) OR COMPONENT(S) PASSED

PERMITTED TO PROCEED

1554 EX650 GRADUATE DIPLOMA IN ENGINEERING (MINING) PART-TIME

MINNS23 MINERAL ECONOMICS
MINN327 ENVIRONMENTAL ECONOMICS
MINN36S MINERALS MARKETING

PASSED ALL COURSES

COMPLETED REQUIREMENTS FOR QUALIFICATION WITH DISTINCTION

QUALIFICATIONS :

GRADUATE DIPLOMA IN ENGINEERING (MINING) PART-TIME

GDE

HE HAS FULFILLED THE REQUIREMENTS FOR A CERTIFICATE OF CONDUUL

For axplanation of courseftopic result and course/tepic decision codes sea averesf

Hon, b B commitbed o non-giscrimination

Th vl of the Wit rand rajeols racism and racial oegra: I
“.‘nu‘ ik U i ot i=a of it stat, and B ils sdminkeiration.

tha consfivton of He ssudant Body, i4 the selockion and promol

Date: 1994711/

FINAL RESULT
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Student Mumber: g3.1 10741

RESULT
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IST YEAR
PASS

PASS
PASS

IND YEAR

PASS
PAES
PASE

1994/11/17
1994/12/06
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Facuity of Emgineering

UNIVERSITY OF THE WITWATERSRAND, JOHANNESBURG

Reference: 9311074
Enquiries: HG ds
Telephone: T16-5174
Date: 17 November 1398

Mr C J 3 Sangster
P 0 Box 1DB4

CRANJEMIND
WAMIEIA

Degr Wr Sangster

AWARD OF THE GRADUATE DIPLOME IN ENGINEERING WITH DISTINCTION

I have pleasurs in advising you that you have now fulfiiled the
requirements for the awerd of the Graduate Diploma in Engineering with
distinction.

The Diploma will be awarded to you at the next Graduation Ceremony Lo be
held on Tuesday, 6 December, 1984 ta arreage graduation tickets,
please contact Mrs Yasmin Dadabhay in the Oraduation Office (telephone
T16=3560]),

& copy of your academic record will be forwarded to you in due course.

We wish to congratulate you on youwr achievement.

Yours singers

EROFESSOAYA NURICK
ASSTSTANT DEAN {POSTGRADUATE AFFATRS)
FACULTY OF ENGINEERING

c.&. Pugtgraduate Coordinater — Dr M U Ozbay

Private Bag % WITS 2050 South Adrica + Telegrams Unwits' + Telex 4-27125 34 - Telephone (0111 T16-1111

The University of the Wtwatersrand rejects raecismm ancd rackal segregation, It ts ecmmitted to nan-distrimmatdon panticulery in the constitutlon al

s student body, in the selection and promobhen of its stall, and in #ls administaton,.
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C.V. Patrick Maupard (Directeur Général Délégué)

Patrick Maupard

Home address

95 bd Saint Michel
Paris

75005

Mobile: 0609255959
Phone: 0153939420
Email:p.maupard@maupard-fiduciaire.fr

Date of Birth: 17/07/55

Expertise:

With 25 years of experience in the profession, | have an extensive understanding
of accounting, audit and tax matters, particularly those which are cross-border in
nature. | am also an expert in advising and coordinating the business
development of international start-ups and small-sized companies in France and
abroad.

Education and Qualifications:

1985:
Chartered Accountant and Legal Auditor

1979:
CECE, Studies of Foreign Trade, 2" October 1978 T 6™ July 1979

1977:
ESCAE, University of Trade and Administration of Business, Masterfs Degree in Business
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Career:

2004
Founder of HLB France

1986:
Founder of Maupard Fiduciaire

1984-1985:
Manager for Gesco, Independent accounting Firm

1981-1983:
Financial Controller for Faberg® France SA

1979-1981:
Audit Supervisor, Coopers & Lybrand France

Professional Positions:

Managing Director of Maupard Fiduciaire: an international business advisory boutique
which facilitates the growth and business development of start-ups and small sized companies
in France (1986-Ongoing)

President of HLB France: 2003-2014

Registered Chartered Accountant at the National Accounting Institution (Ordre des
Experts Comptables de Paris)

Registered Legal Auditor at Paris Audit Institution (Compagnie des Commissaires aux
Comptes de Paris)

Languages:
French: Native
English: Fluent

German: Proficiency
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C.V. Richard Gray (Directeur Général / CEO de SCOTGOLD RESOURCEYS)

Richard Gray

Mining Executive

Soberton Lodge
Swanmore,
Hampshire SO32 2QF
United Kingdom

Tel: 01329 836 205

Personal Information

Date of Birth: 10™ October 1958 Nationality: British

Marital Status: Married No. of Children: 2 (non-dependent)

Employment History

2009 T 2013 Avocet Mining PLC

20127 2013 Position Held — Head of Mining and Expansion
Summary:
e Management of technical team responsible for:
o full feasibility study of Tri K project in Guinea
o0 Inata LOMP including upgrade to existing plant to
accommodate changing ore type.
0 Souma Project prefeasibility study.
e Technical input to Exco on all issues.
e Strategic input to Exco to address current challenges facing company.
Achievements:

e Recruitment and management of highly skilled and motivated technical
team, working closely with both operations personnel and Exploration
department.

e Tri K study on schedule for submission despite aggressive schedule
required for statutory compliance.

e Low capex plant modifications identified for Inata ore and improved
production forecast facilitated by integrated geological/metallurgical
recovery model.
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2009 12012 Position Held — Executive Vice President Operations — West Africa
Summary:
o Full operational responsibility for Inata Gold Mine during construction,
commissioning and ramp up, and steady state operations.
e Input to Exco on strategic challenges and opportunities facing
company.
e Evaluation of M & A opportunities.
Achievements:
e Excellent safety record
e Successfully completion of Project construction involving termination
of EPCM contractor
e Commissioning on schedule and ramp up to full production exceeded
targets.
¢ Initiation of debottlenecking exercise which facilitated plant throughput
expansion and record gold production in first year of production.

2009 T 2009 Wega Mining AS

2009 172009 Position Held — Executive Vice President Operations
Summary:
e Provide practical input to Executive Committee on development of
Mining Projects in remote location.
e Provide a realistic assessment to the Exco and Board of Wega Mining
ASA of the state of the Inata development project.
e Coordinate activities of the in country General Manager and the EPCM
contractor.
Achievements:
e Successfully prioritized project construction activities
e Successfully hosted various due diligence teams resulting in acquisition
Wega Mining ASA by Avocet Mining Plc.

1999 T 2009 Golden Star Resources Ltd

2006 T 2009 Position Held - GM Wassa & Vice President
Summary:

e Full operational responsibility for open pit low grade gold mining
operation currently producing 130,0000z pa.

e Responsible for HBB project since inception that is currently in final
stages of implementation and will increase annual gold production to
approx., 200,0000z pa by end 2008

e Responsible for group corporate representation at the Ghana Chamber
of Mines as 1* Vice President.
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20011

19997

1998 T 1999

1983 T 1998

1996 1

Achievements:

e Successfully brought Wassa into production despite collapse of iLump
Sum Turn Keyo construction contractor prior to completion of contract,
and achieved record production in Q4 07 of 40,0000z

e Won 2 awards from Ghana EPA for most improved mine and achieved
over 4 million LTI free manhours.

e Successfully developed the HBB project, including permitting etc.
which is expected to be on budget and schedule.

e Have developed very good relationships with regulatory agencies and
other stakeholders.

I August 2005 Position Held — Chief Operating Officer

Summary:
e Responsible for overall operations and reporting to the CEO and board.
Achievements:
e Completion of Bogoso Sulphide Project Feasibility Study
e Acquisition of the Prestea property contiguous to Bogoso
e Acquisition of options on several Proscting Licences on the Akropong
Trend that have now been developed and brought into production by
Bogoso
e Record annual gold production from the Bogoso oxide CIL circuit

12001 Position Held - GM Bogoso Gold Mine

Summary:
e Full operational responsibility for open pit gold mine producing
130,0000z pa
Achievements:
e Successful transition of ownership from IFC to Golden Star Resources
e Reduction of workforce by 30% through a total retrenchment and
selective rehiring process

International Finance Corporation
Position Held — GM Bogoso Gold Limited

Summary:
e Responsible for overall operations and reporting to an external
consultant and independent board of Bogoso Gold Limited.
e Working with Deutsche Bank on the sale process for Bogoso Gold
Limited and coordinating/facilitating numerous due diligence exercises.
Achievements:
e Successful sale of Bogoso Gold Limited to Golden Star Resources
e Motivation and retention of key staff through a protracted transition
period of uncertainty

Gencor Ltd

" 1998 Gencor International Gold

Position Held — Operations Director
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Summary:
e Responsible for operations in Ghana and Indonesia reporting to the
Chief Executive Officer
e Gencor representative on a Joint Venture Committee with Eldorado
Gold Corp, pursuing an acquisition in the Dominican Republic
e Lead ateam responsible for the negotiation of a settlement with the
lenders to Bogoso Gold Limited.
e Member of a team responsible for the formulation and presentation of
an international gold strategy to the board of Gencor Ltd
Achievements:
e Successfully negotiated the sale of Bogoso Gold Limited to the lenders
e Successfully oversaw the Prima Lirang operation which achieved an
outstanding safety record and was presented an award by President
Suharto

1995711996 Oryx Mine  Position Held — Manager Mining/ Act. GM

1995711995 LonGenJV Position Held — Project Engineer
e Undertook a feasibility study to evaluate the commercial viability of 2
mining operations in central and eastern Russia in terms of
logistical,technical, cultural, climatic factors etc, including financial
evaluation and site due diligence

1994 7T 1995 Unisel Mine Position Held — Manager Mining/ Act GM

1993711994 Beatrix Mine Position Held — Project Manager

1992 University of Cape Town

1987 T 1992 Beatrix Mine Positions Held — Project Manager
Underground Manager
Mine Captain

1983 T 1987 Winklehaak Mine Positions Held — Graduate Engineer

Education
1992 University of Cape Town, The Graduate School of Business
MBA
1980 Imperial College of Science and Technology

BSc (Hons) Degree in Engineering (Mining)

Interests and Hobbies

| have a general interest in motor sport and am actively interested in sailing, horse riding,
skiing and occasionally golf
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C.V. David J. Catterall (Expert en Géologie Miniere)

David J. Catterall
Plot 431 Disaneng, Maun, Botswana; P.O. Box HA 126 HAK, Maun, Botswana

Email: dave@farscapeexploration.co.uk
Mobile: +267 74455062

SACNASP registered confractor and consultant with international operational, technical, project and feasihility
management experience from diverse industry and commodity sectors. A field based operative with a passion for
geology and working on site in remote locations, leading and developing teams and projecis. An effective and versatile
communicator, negotiator and organizer with proven commercial and technical skills developed in large corporations
and small business. Enjoy new challenges, developing geological knowledge and skills hase while working in new
areas.

Farscape Exploration (FarEx, Botswana)

Director May 2008 to Present

«  Consultant and Contract Geologist with clients based throughout Africa and Europe.

«  Contracted as Exploration Manager for Cupric Africa on their Khoemacau Project (formerly Hana Mining,
Ghanzi Project in Botswana, 2011 — to present). Successfully completed the exploration and feasibility
drilling to identify two reserves, several resources and numercus new exploration targets.

«  Contracted as Exploration Manager for Scotgold Resources on their Cononish Gold Project in Scotland,
2007 - present. Managed the exploration and feasibility drilling to establish the JORC compliant reserve
and identify new regional targets and resources.

The MSA Group, South Africa

Independent Consultant, 2007 — 2008

» Independent consultant with The MSA Group who provide specialist technical input into international
projects across all mineral commaodities, providing specialist project consulting and confracting services to
industry.

* Launch operations in joint venture interests in three uranium exploration properties in Malawi for Manfra
Resources Limited.

+  Provide cover and assistance for the Regional Exploration Manager of Mantra Tanzania in their joint
venfure interests in a portfolio of uranium exploration tenements in Tanzania.

9CQ Limited, London

Director, 2000 - 2007

+  Geological Contracting and Consultancy specialising in desk top studies and stari-up operations in Africa.
= Contracfing with Dataflow, London

«  Management and Project Management with TLC, London

Caledonia Mining

Exploration Manager Central Africa & Scotland, 1998- 2000

* Focus on development of corporate assets in Zambia and Democratic Republic of Congo (DRC).
Supervision of Joint Ventures in Zambia, assist in securing private equity financing for projects in both
Zambia and DRC.

« Initiated and led computerisation of exploration archive for Fynegold Ltd., at Cononish gold mine,
modelled the data, revised the exploration model and identified new exploration targets.

Project Manager, Central Africa, 1997-1998

*  Implemented restructuring of the Zambian operations expanded the exploration target base and identified
new exploration targets while reducing overheads and maintaining full Government and legal compliance.

«  Estahlished staff technical training programmes to develop local skills base and provide long term
employment potential for employees.

Project Manager, Zambia, 1994-1997

» Estahlished and managed 3 exploration companies a multicultural team of professional and 400 locally
trained staff which identified a cobalt resource.
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Anglo American Corp. S, Africa

Senior Geologist, Angola, 1992
«  Selected to work on new ventures in Angola but resigned when offered a research position at Leeds
University

Anglo American Corp. 8. Africa, Debswana, Botswana

Senior Geologist, Maun Copper Venture, Botswana, 1990-1992

* Researched, compiled, wrote and presented geclogical report and basin synthesis.

* Managed and successfully completed a 2 year drilling programme that successfully outlined a oc
resource

Anglo American Corp. S. Africa

Exploration Geologist, Navachab Gold Mine, Namibia, 1987-1990

» Initiated and led exploration programmes over extensive precious and base metals licenses.

«  Wrote Government compliance reports, prepared and presented corporate reporis and advised on viz
of the exploration licenses.

Gearhart Geodata Services, Scotland

Geologist, 1984-1986
«  Analysed drill and core samples, advised contractors and operators on stratigraphy and oil or gas shows.

Profezzional Membership

=  Registered Professional Natural Scientist (PriSciNat) with The South African Council for Natural Scientific
Professions (Geological Science; 400282/08)

=  Member Geological Society of South Africa (GSSA)

= Fellow of the Society of Economic Geologists (SEG)

*  Fellow of the Geological Society of London (GeolSoc)

*  Fellow of the Institute for Minerals, Metallurgy and Mining {IOM3)

*  Achieved Chartered Engineer status with British Engineering Society, 1990 (C. Eng)

*  Microsoft Certified Engineer

Professional Development

SACNASP registered Professional in Geological Science, 2008

Successfully completed both ArcGIS and SURPAC Certified courses, 2008 & 2009

Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE) course, MCP gained August 1999, TECH Connect, Kingston, Sun
Post graduate rezearch in Satellite Mapping; its application in Geological Exploration, ore body Recognition :
deposit Modelling , Dept. Earth Sciences, Univ. Leeds, UK 1992-1994

=  MSc & MCSM Mining Geology, Cambome School of Mines, Comwall, UK 1986-1987.

= BSc (Hon's) Geology, Portsmouth, UK 1981-1984.

Publications

= Hill NJ, Jenkin GRT, Holwell DA, Matthews KE, Moore P, Catterall D, Boyce AJ, Mark D, Gunn G, Naden J, Rice CM
{2011). New Gold Occurrences in the Scottish Dalradian — Nature and Constraints on Genesis. In Barra, F. et al (Eds
LET'S TALK ORE DEPOSITS. Proceedings of the 11th Biennial Meeting, Antofagasta, Chile. Vol. 2, 577-579.

= Hill MJ, Jenkin GRT, Holwell DA, Catterall D, Boyee AJd, Mark D, Maden J, Gunn G, Rice CM (2011). New Gold
Oecurrences in the Scoitish Dalradian, UK — Nature and Constraints on Genesis. Fermor 2011: Ore Deposits in an
Ewolving Earth, 7-9th Sept, Geological Society, Burdington House, London, p. 25.

*  Mumerous workshops teaching core logging, local and regional society presentations, extended abstracts and
undergraduate/postgraduate research papers

Interests
= Training and developing geologists, undergraduates and post graduates through projectithesis research, mentoring

schemes and development programmes.
= Fauna and flora, photography and reading for countries | work in.
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C.V. Jeff Smith (Expert en Géologie Miniére)

JEFF SMITH

CONSULTING GEOLOGIST

La Audiencia 117A, Valle de Villaverde, 39880
Cantabria, Spain
Phone : + 34 — 94 — 6109553
Mobile : +34 - 696435824
e-mail : jeffsmith@arrakis.es
N.I.LF. : X -0344570 - F

CURRICULUM VITAE

A professional geologist of world wide experience in both underground mining geology and
surface exploration, coupled with Project Manager skills in exploration covering a wide range
of mineral commodities.

British nationality. Spanish residence permit. Married. D.O.B. 16.0.46.
B.Sc. ( Hons ) Geology, Kings College , London.
Fluent in English and Spanish.

Jeff began his professional career with Johannesburg Consolidated Investment
(J.C.I.), a part of the Anglo American Group in South Africa, in 1970.

1970 — 1973 : Underground mining geology at Western Areas / Elsburg gold mines

(now the South Deeps Project ), and at the Randfontein gold mines on the Witwatersrand.
Sectional geologist. Mapping, guiding u.g. development, drilling layouts, sampling, grade
control etc.

1973 : Consolidated Murchison ( C.M. ) antimony and gold mine near the Kruger Park.
Largest antimony producer in the world. Underground mining geology, plus, with surveyor,
ore resource / reserve calculations. Also, involved in surface exploration mapping and
geochemical soil and stream sediment sampling along the Antimony Line.

Worked with Shaft Sinkers in their development of Athens Shaft. Mapped shaft and all
breakaway drives.

1974 /5 : Project Manager for C.M. in exploration project for antimony in Turkey. Surface
drilling with Canadian Longyear crew. Underground mapping of old mines. Field mapping
using an alidade.

1976 — 1979 : Transferred to J.C.I.Head Office. Assistant to the Group Geologist, with
responsibilities for C.M. Sb TAu mine in South Africa ; Shangani open pit nickel mine,
Zimbabwe ; Otjihase underground copper mine, Namibia etc.

1979 : Appointed Chief Geologist Otjihase copper mine Namibia.
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1980 — 1982 : Seconded as Project Manager to Spain for J.C.I. Joint Venture project
with Indumetal company of Bilbao. Underground drilling and surface exploration at the San
Antonio Sb T W mine, Alburquerque, Badajoz, Extremadura, and in Almuradiel, Ciudad Real.

1982 : Resigned from J.C.1. and joined Indumetal in Spain as Exploration Manager / Chief
Geologist Mining with responsibilities for the San Antonio antimony mine. Guided
underground development and the layout of u.g. boreholes. Fan drilling. Grade control. Ore
resource / reserve calculations. Also responsible for the San Telmo polymetallic, open pit
operation in the Spanish Pyrite Belt. Open pit mapping, surface diamond drilling, grade
control and ore resource / reserve calculations.

Adjacent to San Telmo, discovered the gold potential of the Lomero Poyatos underground
narrow vein polymetallic deposit. Richest gold bearing Pyrite Belt mine. Indumetal sold
Lomero to Tharsis mine.

Evaluation for Indumetal of the La Parrilla tungsten mine, in Extremadura. Largest tungsten
producer in Europe. Calculated the mine resource using drilling data and sampling of previous
work by Rio Algom and Pefarroya.

Also drilled ( reverse circulation ) the mine tips and calculated ore resource.

1986 : Gold exploration in Chile for Indumetal. Cerro Negro area of Carrizal Bajo and
Zapallar area near Copiapo. Systematic mapping and sampling of old mine workings.

1988. Consulted for a Swiss Group. Underground mapping and geological modelling of the
Jari-a narrow vein gold mine in northern Portugal. Laid out drilling programme.

1990 : Resigned from Indumetal. Began a new career as Consulting Geologist.

1990 -1991 : Consulted for Billiton on Au T Pb T Zn deposits in Portugal, and also Au T
Cu T Co deposits in Spain.

Consultant for Outokumpu. Assessed the Pb T Zn potential of northern Spain.
For Anglo American, evaluated the base metal potential of Iberian Pyrite Belt.
Involved with U.S. Borax in wollastonite potential in Spain.

Consulted for Process and Mining Consultants of Johannesburg. Evaluation of
various gold projects in Argentina and Uruguay.

1991 : Drilled and evaluated for C.E.M.T. ( Tharsis mine ) the gold potential of the Filon Sur
in-situ gossan at Tharsis in the Pyrite Belt.
Reverse circulation drilling of in Tsitu gossan. Calculated ore resource.

1991 -1993 : Consulted for Metallgesellschaft ( M.G. ) of Germany and Metal Mining
Corporation of Canada . Evaluated the base metal potential of the Iberian Pyrite Belt.

Was based in Tunisia for M.G and involved in Pb T Zn exploration throughout Tunisia.
Involved in the Bougrine Pb T Zn mine which was coming on stream at this time.

Geological modelling of Pb T Zn mineralization related to evaporitic diapirs and
hydrocarbons in Cretaceous sediments. Field mapping, geochemical soil sampling, photo
interpretation and statistical evaluation of data. Diamond drilling.
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Visited with M.G. personnel, the Almalyk Cu porphyry complex in Uzbekistan.

1993 : Consultant to the President of Euromines, ( Eurometaux ), ( Brussels ) Professor J.D.
Weisser of M.G. Involved in various projects associated with the individual Euromines
mining groups in the E.E.C.

1994 — 1996 : Geological consultant to Caledonia Mining Corporation ( C.M.C. ) of Canada.
Involved in the gossan heap leaching project at Tharsis in the Iberian Pyrite Belt.

Laid out > 10,000 metres of Reverse Circulation drilling in in T situ gossan and gossan
containing tips at Tharsis and La Zarza.

Responsible for the calculation of the ore reserves.

Between 1994 and 2000, six million tonnes of Au- Ag bearing gossan ore was treated and six
tonnes of gold produced.

Also evaluated the gossan resource of the Sao Domingos mine in Portugal which CMC
intended to treat at Tharsis, but transport costs prevented this happening.

1996 -2000 : Vice President Exploration for C.M.C. Responsibilities for the Cononish gold
mine and surrounding exploration areas in Scotland.

Copper T cobalt exploration in Zambia ; calculated the gossan resource of the Dunrobin gold
mine in Zambia, and re- evaluated the potential of the nearby Chosha deposit.

Underground and surface exploration at the Eersteling and Barbrook narrow vein gold mines
in South Africa.

Evaluation of the gold potential of the Kilo Moto gold field in northern Congo and the
evaluation of the open pit potential of the Lubembe Nord copper deposit at Musoshi Mine in
the Katanga province of southern Congo.

2002 : Consulted for Mariana Minerals of Australia regarding the tantalite potential of Iberia.

2003 — 2006 : Project Director Exploration Iberia for Mike Scott Associates ( MSA ) of South
Africa. Various projects in Spain involving gold and a total re T assessment and modelling (
Surpac ) of the Tharsis polymetallic deposit in the Iberian Pyrite Belt.

Although previously regarded as uniquely polymetallic, the Tharsis massive sulphide ore
bodies and their stockworks carry economic cobalt and gold mineralization.

The MSA project was deemed positive, but prematurely curtailed due to the involvement of
local politics at the time.

Dec. 2007 — Present day : Geological consultant to Scotgold Resources Ltd. in the Highlands
of Scotland, controlling ongoing diamond drilling at their Cononish Gold Mine, and involved
with regional surface exploration in the Scotgold Crown Licences for a variety of mineral
commodities.

2013 / 2014 : Geological consulting for Umbono Capital of South Africa at the San Antonio
antimony Tscheelite mine and surrounding concessions in Extremadura, Spain.
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